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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
CHEUNG Tung (President)

CHEN Feng
LAM Kam Cheung (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
LAM Fei Man

Independent Non-executive Directors

WONG Chi Keung

Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. *
ZHANG HWO Jie

WU Tak Lung

* Mr FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P resigned as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 30 June 2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

WONG Chi Keung (Chairman)
Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P *
ZHANG HWO Jie

WU Tak Lung

* Mr. FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P ceased to act as a member of the audit committee since his

resignation as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2020.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman)
WONG Chi Keung
Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
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Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon (Chairman)
LAM Chi Fan

FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. *

WU Tak Lung*

* Mr FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. ceased to act as a member of the remuneration committee
since his resignation as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2020.
Mr WU Tak Lung was appointed as a member of the remuneration committee with effect

from 30 June 2020.
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WONG Chi Keung (Chairman)
Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. *
ZHANG HWO Jie

WU Tak Lung

* Mr. FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. ceased to act as a member of the corporate governance
committee since his resignation as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 30

June 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY

LAM Kam Cheung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

CHEUNG Tung
LAM Kam Cheung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

22/F, Prince’s Building Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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LEGAL ADVISOR

MinterEllison LLP

Level 32,Wu Chung House
213 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

TRADING BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Citibank, N.A,, Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

SHARE REGISTRARS

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share registrar and transfer office

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO.Box 1093
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KY1-1102 Cayman Islands
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RAF5 22

2020 2019
20205 20194

Operating results (HK$'000) REEE (THET)
Revenue WA 3,231,701 2,997,321
Gross profit ER 623,815 605,276
Profit/(loss) before tax BrIgATEF  (B518) 69,002 (146,002)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmFH/ (B58) 61,054 (212,002)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company ZAE A AEISEREM,/ (F518) 58,523 (216,509)
Financial position (HK$'000) B IRR (F#7T)
Total assets mEE 2,514,210 2,406,763
Net current assets MENE B 273,137 107,954
Bank borrowings RITIER 547,224 622,863
Net assets BEFE 956,459 865,008
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company KATIEEANEGLEERE 954,511 854,962
Per share data (HK cents) SR (BWL)
Dividend per share BRRE

— Interim —HH# = -

~ Final —KH - -

~Total — 48t - -
Earnings/(loss) per share SREHN (B5B)

— Basic —H7K 334 (12.37)

~ Diluted ¥ 334 (12.37)
Net assets value per share ERBEZE 54.7 494
Share price as at 31 December RIRAIHNKRE 15.3 208
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PAFSEEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Key statistics TEHE
Gross profit margin (%) EMZE %) 19.3% 202%
Net profit (loss) margin (%) R (18) E(%) 1.9% (7.1%)
Inventory turnover (days) FEBEXH (XH) 75.4 780
Debtors’ turnover (days) BEBRANBEXH (K8 71.8 84.0
Creditors' turnover (days) BEREANEEXH (X&) 66.1 64.1
Payout ratio (%) KR (%) N/A RiEFA N/A 8 A
Dividend yield (%) 1% 5 U 2 22 (%) N/A RiEF N/A T8
Return on total assets (%) BEELRE(%) 2.4% (8.8%)
Return on net assets (%) FEERIRE (%) 6.4% (24.5%)
Gearing ratio (%) BEEGELEEY%) 57.2% 72.0%
Current ratio (%) MENELZE(%) 119.9% 108.4%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERNE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Sinomax Group
Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (altogether, the “Group”), | have the great

pleasure of presenting to you our annual report for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 (the "Reporting Period”).

2020 was another dynamic and challenging year. The Group's performance in the first four
months was affected by the outbreak of COVID-19, the trade war between the United States
(the “US") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China") and the anti-dumping
issues. Fortunately, our business started to turn around in the second half year.

Our strategy of focusing on customers of online sales is proved to be successful. More people
need to stay at home due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and more sales are conducted
through online channels. Mattress-in-a-Box (“MIB") is one of the major products sold through
these online channels. The demands for MIB have been encouraging. The Group has devoted
more resources and will gradually increase our production capacity to cater for both demands
for traditional sales and online sales.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated | February 2021, we entered into
a new lease agreement to rent a factory which is located in the proximity of our existing US
factory. The new lease would facilitate and expand the Group's operations in the existing US
factory and in turn enable the Group to meet our customers’ growing demands in the US.
More equipment and resources would be invested to cope with the increasing demands in the
Us.

In terms of the China market, the Group has enhanced brand recognition and expanded
our sales network by strengthening e-commerce sales channels for online shoppers. We will
devote more resources to strengthen our sales through e-commerce and promote MIB in the
China market as well.
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The Group's financial performance in the first half of 2020 was not satisfactory. With the
turnaround of the performance of our factory in the US and the cost savings in selling and

administrative expenses, the Group's results started to improve in the second half of 2020.

Looking ahead to 2021, with a view to improving our financial performance, we will continue
to implement various measures to mitigate the impacts brought about by the uncertainties
under the COVID-19 outbreak and the US-China trade war. Meanwhile, we will make good
use of our strengths and explore the opportunities in the growing MIB market, and diversity
our customer base in order to maintain our position as one of the leading experts in visco-
elastic health and wellness products in the US and the retail markets in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff members for
their dedication to the Group and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
valued customers, suppliers, bankers and other business partners their continuous support.

Lam Chi Fan

Chairman

22 March 2021

Lam Chi Fan #E R
Chairman EE £
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwASH

Revenue by operating segments

During the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$234.4
million or approximately 7.8% to approximately HK$3,231.7 million (for the year ended 3|
December 2019 (“FY2019"): approximately HK$2,997.3 million).

BEEN IR DHA

RBER > REBPBAEMA23445 8
BTN 8BELN3 I TEEBT (BE
019F12A31HIEFE (M09 BEE)) :
#9299735 8B TT) °

For the year ended 31 December

HZENAALEE

2020 2019 Changes
20204 20194 =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %

FET FHET
China market REl 5 1,649,701 1,849,128 (10.8%)
North American market EEmE 1,372,313 1,064,520 28.9%
Europe and other overseas markets BUMN R Efth &8s T 5 209,687 83,673 150.6%
Total fact 3,231,701 2997321 7.8%

Sales in the China market decreased by approximately 10.8% for the Reporting Period, as
compared to FY2019 due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the

general economy of the PRC.

In the North American market, we diversified our customer base by developing business
relationship with more new customers, as a result of which sales in this region increased by

approximately 28.9% for the Reporting Period, as compared to FY2019.

In Europe and other overseas markets, we recorded an increase of sales in this region of
approximately 150.6% for the Reporting Period, as compared to FY2019. The increase was

due to the increase in our sales to customers in Vietnam.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit (the “GP") increased by approximately HK$18.5 million or 3.1% to
approximately HK$623.8 million during the Reporting Period as compared to approximately
HK$605.3 million for FY2019.The GP margin decreased by 0.9% from approximately 20.2% to
approximately 19.3% as compared to FY2019.

The decrease in GP margin was due to slowdown in the Group's business activities in the first
half year caused by the COVID-19 outbreak.

Costs and expenses

Selling and distribution costs for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately HK$74.2
million or 18.8% to approximately HK$319.5 million, as compared to approximately
HK$393.7 million for FY2019. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs
and commission fees of approximately HK$26.0 million, depreciation and amortisation of
approximately HK$ 1.3 million and concessionaire commission for department store counters

of approximately HK$6.7 million.

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately HK$33.7
million or 14.3% to approximately HK$202.4 million, as compared to approximately
HK$236.1 million for FY2019.The decrease was mainly due to the reduction in staff costs of
approximately HK$ | |.7 million, legal and professional fee of approximately HK$7.8 million and

depreciation and amortisation of approximately HK$5.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwASH

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$69.0 million

while a loss before taxation of approximately HK$146.0 million was reported for FY2019.

The major reasons for the turnaround were as follows:

(i) the decrease in impairment losses of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
goodwill and intangible assets that were recognised for the year ended 31 December
2019;

(i) turnaround of the performance of our factory in the US;

(iily  cost savings in selling and administrative expenses; and

(iv)  the receipt of government subsidies.

Income tax expenses

Included in income tax expenses, there were tax refund from the Group's US subsidiary
of approximately HK$15.4 million (FY2019: nil) and payments of PRC withholding tax on
distributable profits from the Group's PRC subsidiaries of approximately HK$1 1.4 million, as
compared to approximately HK$24.1 million for FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 represents an unprecedented disruption to the global economy.
Our business was heavily affected by COVID-19 in the first four months of 2020. Demands
from customers were weak and it was difficult to source materials from overseas suppliers
and deliver goods to customers globally during said period of time due to, among other things,
disruption to global logistics and extensive business suspension across the global supply chains.
Sales dropped by approximately 32.5% in the first four months of 2020 comparing to the
corresponding period in 2019. Accordingly, the Group has put in place various cost controls to

reduce our operating costs in order to mitigate such impacts.

In the meantime, governments across the globe have imposed various degrees of national
lockdowns and/or encouraged their citizens to stay at home as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak, which created stronger demands for household products. More products were
purchased through online channels. Sales orders bounced back starting from the second
quarter of 2020. Sales for the Reporting Period increased by approximately 7.8% comparing
to FY2019, which was mainly contributed by the increase in sales to several online sales

customers.

There has been no material impact on the Group's liquidity position and working capital
sufficiency as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak. The Group will closely monitor the situation
and the Group's exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection with COVID-19, and
assess and react proactively to its impacts on the financial position and results of the Group

from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwASH

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$273.1

million, as compared to approximately HK$108.0 million as at 31 December 2019.

Net cash from operating activities amounted to approximately HK$!14.7 million for the

Reporting Period as compared to approximately HK$353.1 million for FY2019.

Bank balance and cash as at 31 December 2020 decreased by approximately HK$103.4
million or approximately 43.0% to approximately HK$136.9 million as compared to

approximately HK$240.3 million as at 31 December 2019.

Borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities amounting to approximately
HK$1,120.5 million of which approximately HK$592.1 million was utilised (FY2019: banking
facilities amounting to approximately HK$1,554.0 million of which approximately HK$670.5

million was utilised) (which included unsecured bank borrowings and bills payables).

Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately
HK$29.4 million (FY2019: HK$70.2 million) which was mainly for the purchase of the Group's

plant and machinery.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial ratios

BEEREADH

BAFSLER
As at As at
® i
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

2020128318 20194 12831H

Current ratio () BN L ZEO

Quick ratio @ REEERO

Gearing ratio © BEBELZR0

Debt to equity ratio @ B RS X

0 Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.

@ Quick ratio is equal to current assets less inventories and divided by current liabilities.

® Gearing ratio is derived by dividing interest-bearing debt incurred in the ordinary course of

business by total equity.

® Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is defined to

include all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents.

119.9% 108.4%
77.3% 70.1%
57.2% 72.0%
42.9% 44.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwASH

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Sinomax  International Trading Limited (“Sinomax
Trading"), as borrower and the Company as guarantor had entered into a facility agreement
(the "2018 Facility Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited, OCBC Wing Hang Bank
Limited and United Overseas Bank Limited as lenders and mandated lead arrangers, and Hang
Seng Bank Limited as agent and security trustee, in respect of term loan facilities of up to the
aggregate principal amount of US$35 million and HK$273 million (the “2018 Loan Facilities”)
with a final maturity date falling thirty-six months after the date of the 2018 Facility Agreement
(the outstanding loan balances were US$7.0 million and HK$54.6 million as at 31 December
2020). It is provided in the 2018 Facility Agreement, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if, without the prior consent of the majority of the lenders: (i) Sinomax
Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”), a controlling shareholder of the Company, ceases
to maintain (directly or indirectly) at least 51% of the entire beneficial ownership interest
in the Company; (ii) the following persons cease to collectively maintain/retain (directly or
indirectly) at least 51% beneficial ownership interest over the entire issued share capital of
Sinomax Enterprises: (a) Mr. Lam Chi Fan; (b) Mr Cheung Tung; (c) any parent, spouse, child,
brother or sister of the persons referred to in (a) and (b) above; and (d) any trust whose
principal beneficiary(ies) is any one or more of the persons referred to under (a) to (c) above;
(iif) Mr. Lam Chi Fan ceases to be the chairman of the Board; or (iv) Mr. Lam Chi Fan ceases to

maintain control over the management and business of the Company.

Failure to comply with any of the said obligations regarding control of the Company will trigger
an event of default under the 2018 Facility Agreement which may result in, inter alia, the
cancellation of all or any part of the commitments under the 2018 Facility Agreement and all
or part of the loans under the 2018 Loan Facilities becoming immediately due and payable or

becoming payable on demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group carries on business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC, the US and Vietnam. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk principally in Renminbi and Vietnamese Dong which can
be largely offset by its revenue and expenditure in the PRC and Vietnam. The Group does
not expect any appreciation or depreciation of the Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi
and Vietnamese Dong which could materially affect the Group's results of operations, and
therefore no hedging instrument has been employed. The Group will closely monitor the trend
of the Renminbi and Vietnamese Dong and take appropriate measures to deal with the foreign

exchange exposure if necessary.

TREASURY POLICY AND MARKET RISKS

The Group has a treasury policy that aims to better control its treasury operations and lower
borrowing cost. Such treasury policy requires the Group to maintain an adequate level of
cash and cash equivalents, and sufficient available banking facilities to finance the Group's daily
operations and to address short term funding needs. The Group reviews and evaluates its

treasury policy from time to time to ensure its adequacy and effectiveness.

PROSPECTS

Following the outbreak of COVID-19, the US — China trade war and the anti-dumping duty
imposed on products importing from various countries, US importers have started to review
their supply chains and will pay more attention to suppliers who have the ability to supply
in the US. Having factories in China, the US and Vietnam, we are able to supply globally to
our customers with various needs and arrange our production and logistics schedules with

flexibility to minimise the overall costs including production, tariff and transportation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERED R

Since last year, we have allocated more resources in developing a more diversified customer
base with online sales. Sales from these customers started to increase since the second
quarter of 2020. With the outbreak of COVID-19, more sales have been conducted through
online channels where MIB is one of the major products sold through these online channels.

Demands for MIB have been encouraging.

Facing with the increasing demands in the US, we are going to increase our production
capacity in the US. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated | February 2021,
we entered into a new lease agreement to rent a factory which is located in the proximity
of our existing US factory. The new lease would facilitate and expand the Group's operations
in the existing US factory and in turn enable the Group to meet our customers' growing
demands in the US. More equipment and resources would be invested to cope with the

increasing demands in the US.

Recently, prices of various key materials are increasing, particularly in the US market. We
will monitor our material costs closely and discuss with our customers for the possibility of
transferring the increased costs to our customers as and when necessary. At the same time,
we will rearrange our logistics and production schedules in various locations to minimise our

overall costs.

In the China market, the Group offers a wide range of health and household products, under
its flagship brand “SINOMAX". The Group will further enhance brand management through
various marketing activities to reinforce brand recognition and enhance the image of health,
relaxation and comfort of the “SINOMAX" brand. Sales under the brands “SPA Supreme” and
"Zeosleep” increased steadily. The Group will continue to promote its brands and products to
corporate customers so as to attract more corporate sales.We will continue to deploy more

resources to strengthen our sales through e-commerce.

Based on the increasing demands of our customers, we are optimistic about our future
performance. The Group will continue to upgrade our machinery so as to improve our

production efficiency and increase our competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Prospects” above, the Group does not have other

plans for material investments or capital assets.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

From 31 December 2020 to the date of this report, there was no significant event of the

Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the employee headcount of the Group was 2,799 (FY2019:
3,026) and the total staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration and share option
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$425.7 million for the Reporting Period (FY2019:
approximately HK$450.6 million). The decrease in staff costs was primarily due to decrease in

headcount.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate with industry practice
and provides various fringe benefits to employees including housing and travel allowances
depending on their grade and ranking within the Group. The Group also maintains medical
insurance for the benefit of its employees. The Group conducts induction training for all of its
new employees and on-going training from time to time during their employment. The nature
of training offered depends on their specific field of operation. The Group also operates an
employee incentive scheme pursuant to which rewards take the form of promotions, salary

raises and monetary bonuses, and a share option scheme.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEREERE

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company who
held office during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAM Chi Fan, aged 62

Mr: Lam is a co-founder of the Group, the Chairman of the Group and an executive Director:
Mr. Lam is also the chairman of the Company's nomination committee and a member of
the Company's remuneration committee. Mr. Lam was appointed to the Board in June 2012.
Mr. Lam is responsible for formulation of the overall business strategies of the Group. He is
also responsible for the business planning and management of the Group. Mr: Lam is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 20 years' experience in the
polyurethane foam business. Prior to founding the Group in January 2000, he was a director
of Luen Tai Component Limited, a company engaging in the sales of foam products, from
March 1991 to July 1996. He is a member of the |3th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Jiashan, Zhejiang Province Committee, the vice president of the Shau Kei Wan
District of the Scout Association of Hong Kong, an affiliated supervisor of the Huangpu
Customs of PRC and the president of the Dongguan City Tang Xia Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment. Mr. Lam is the uncle of Mr Cheung Tung, the President and an
executive Director; the father of Mr Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member of the

Group; and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director.

CHEUNG Tung, aged 45

Mr. Cheung is the President of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined
the Group in 2003 as the Chairman’s assistant, responsible for handling the information
technology infrastructure of the Group. He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He is
currently responsible for the overall management and daily operations of the Group. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung assisted
in setting up C&T Solutions Limited, a company engaging in providing information technology
services, in March 2000. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor's degree in computer engineering
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a master's degree in business
administration jointly issued by Northwestern University and the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. Mr. Cheung was granted the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong
2014" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr: Cheung is a nephew of Mr. Lam Chi Fan,
the Chairman and an executive Director; a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director;

and a cousin of Mr. Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHEN Feng, aged 57

Mr. Chen is an executive Director He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He
is responsible for the overall management of the export sales business and product
development of the Group. He is also the key executive in mapping the sales and marketing
strategies in the US through Sinomax USA Inc. (“Sinomax USA"). He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in January 2000 as an export sales
manager and became the vice president of the Group in 2007. He assisted in setting up
Sinomax USA, a company engaging in export sales in the US, and has been the president and
director of Sinomax USA since its establishment in 2005. Mr. Chen holds a Master of Science
degree in industrial engineering from Louisiana State University and a Bachelor of Engineering
degree in safety engineering from Beijing College of Economics, now known as Capital
University of Economics and Business. Mr. Chen is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man,

an executive Director.

LAM Kam Cheung, aged 53

Mr Lam is an executive Director, chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company.
Mr: Lam joined the Group in May 2004 as the financial controller and was appointed to the
Board in June 2012. He was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company in August
2013 and is responsible for the financial management of the Group. Mr: Lam has over 30 years
experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he was an executive director
and company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0259), a listed
public company in Hong Kong, from October 1995 to May 2004. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor's
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEREERE

LAM Fei Man, aged 46

Ms. Lam is an executive Director. She is responsible for the Group's purchasing operations. She
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Lam joined the Group in January
2000 and served as the assistant administration manager of Sinomax (Holding) Group Limited,
a predecessor company of Sinomax Enterprises, until January 2003. She was appointed to the
Board in June 2012, Ms. Lam has over |8 years” experience in purchasing and logistics. She
holds a bachelor's degree in commerce jointly issued by the University of Canberra and the
Hong Kong Baptist University. Ms. Lam is a cousin of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director; the daughter of a cousin of Mr Chen Feng, an executive

Director; and an aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG Chi Keung, aged 54

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
and corporate governance committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong was appointed to the Board in 4 March 2014. Mr.Wong is currently an
executive director and the chief financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3322), a listed public company in Hong Kong. He was previously the chief financial
officer of Besunyen Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 0926) from September 201 | to
September 2013 and China Dongxiang (Group) Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from May 2007
to April 2010, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Between June 2002 and
June 2006, Mr. Wong was a senior finance manager of China Netcom Group Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (a company previously listed in Hong Kong (former stock code: 0906)
which subsequently merged with China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 0762),
a listed public company in Hong Kong). Between July 1989 and December 1999, Mr. Wong
was employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international public accounting firm, in Hong
Kong as an audit manager Mr. Wong holds a bachelor's degree in business administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in business administration
from the Australian Graduate School of Management, jointly issued by the University of New
South Wales and the University of Sydney. Mr.Wong is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon, aged 62

Professor Lam is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
corporate governance committee of the Company. Professor Lam is the Professor of
Management and Strategy at the Faculty of Business and Economics, The University of Hong
Kong. He is also Head of the Faculty's Management and Strategy Area, Director of the Centre
of Asian Entrepreneurship and Business Values and lan Davies Endowed Professor in Ethics.
Before joining the University of Hong Kong, Professor Lam had worked as a management
consultant and as a regional manager for a bank. He has gained extensive experience in the
area of corporate governance, strategy development and corporate finance. Professor Lam
is the independent non-executive director of Kwan On Holdings Limited (listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 01559) and Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings
Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 03366). Professor Lam is
also the non-executive director of Jacobson Pharma Corporation Limited (listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02633).

ZHANG HWO Jie, aged 58

Mr. Zhang is an independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit committee
and the corporate governance committee of the Company. Mr Zhang was appointed to
the Board in March 2014. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of EVA Precision Industrial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 838), a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang has more
than 25 years of experience in marketing, strategic planning and corporate management in
manufacturing industry. Mr. Zhang was granted with the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2008, and was bestowed as an honorary
fellow by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in 2014. He is currently
the president honoris causa of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Concil, the honorary chairman
of The Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association and the honorary president of Hong
Kong Mould and Product Technology Association.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEREERE

WU Tak Lung, aged 55

Mr.Wu is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee, the
corporate governance committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr: Wu
was appointed to the Board in March 2014. M Wu had worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
an international accounting firm, for five years and was then employed in several companies
in Hong Kong as head of corporate finance and/or executive director. Mr. Wu had over 10
years experience in the corporate finance field Mr.Wu currently serves as an independent
non-executive director of China Machinery Engineering Corporation (stock code: 1829),
Henan Jinma Energy Company Limited (stock code: 6885), Minth Group Limited (stock code:
425), Sinopharm Group Co. Ltd (stock code: 1099), Kam Hing International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2307) and Zhongguancun Science-Tech Leasing Co Ltd (stock code: [601), all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr:Wu holds a bachelor's degree in business
administration in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University and a master's degree in
business administration jointly issued by the University of Manchester and the University of
Wales. M Wu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
he is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong

Securities and Investment Institute.

Moreover, in the last three years, he was an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Media Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1000), First Tractor Company Limited, a company listed on both the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00038) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601038),
Sinotrans Shipping Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and delisted in January 2019 (stock code: 368), and Olympic Circuit Technology Co, Ltd, a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603920).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LAM Sze Chiu, aged 38

Mr. Lam is the general manager of Sinohome Household Products (Shenzhen) Ltd (“Sinomax
Shenzhen”). He is responsible for the supervision of the daily operations of Sinomax Shenzhen.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in 2007 and has been working as the marketing director of the
Group from 2012 to 2016. He was responsible for developing and communicating marketing
strategies and coordinating marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Lam also participated in the
research and development of the Group's products, and was the winner of German Red Dot
Design Award. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Arts degree with honours from York University in
Toronto, Canada. Mr. Lam was appointed as the Chairman of The Youth Club of Hong Kong
Furniture Association and The Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General Youth Association and
a member of the Fujian Youth Federation in 2017, a member of the Youth Committee of the
China Furniture & Decoration Chamber of Commerce in 2018, a member of the Committee
of the All-China Federation of Returned Overseas in 2019, the Chairman of Guangdong
Furnishing Industry Federation and the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations in 2020, and the Vice-Chairman of the China Furniture & Decoration Chamber of
Commerce since 2021. Mr. Lam is the son of Mr: Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman and an executive
Director; and the cousin of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director.

QIAN Hong Xiang, aged 57

Mr: Qian is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is responsible for the supervision
of the daily operation and management of Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. Limited
("Sinomax Kuka"). Mr. Qian joined the Group in 2000 and worked as a general manager and
chief of foam research. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qian worked as a factory manager
and researcher in foams from 1993 to 2000 at Tung Ah (China Holdings) Limited, a company
engaging in the chemical and plastic business. Mr. Qian has over 20 years' experience in
foam production and research and has participated in formulating more than five national
standards. Mr. Qian was a member of the Standardisation Administration of the People’s
Republic of China until April 2018 and an expert in foaming plastics of the China Plastics
Processing Industry Association with tenure from November 2005 to September 2017. He
was presented the National Science & Technology Progress Award (third class) by the China
Light Industry Council in March 2008, and the China Standards Innovation Contribution Award
jointly by the General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the
People’s Republic of China and the Standardisation Administration of the People’s Republic of
China in December 2009. He was also awarded Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry
in PRC by the China Plastics Processing Industry Association in May 2009, and Good Citizen
between 2011 and 2012 in January 2013, Model Worker of Haining between 2008 and 2012
in April 2013 and Outstanding Entrepreneur of 2011 in March 2012 by the Jiaxing People’s
Government.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEREERE

YUE Wai Fun, aged 46

Ms. Yue was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax Health & Household Products
Limited (“Sinomax Health™) in June 2012. Ms. Yue is responsible for the supervision of the
daily operation and management of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue joined the Group in 2004 and
served as marketing manager and brand & marketing manager prior to being appointed as the
general manager of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from

the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

CHEN Xiao Hua, aged 59

Mr: Chen joined the Group in 2013 and was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax
(Zhejiang) Polyurethane Technology Limited (“Sinomax Zhejiang") in October 2013. Mr. Chen
is responsible for supervision of the daily operation and management of Sinomax Zhejiang.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr: Chen was engaged in foam manufacturing from 2002 to 2013
and was a general manager of Sinomax Polyurethane (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, a company indirectly
controlled by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung and Mr. Chen Feng, the executive Directors,
and Ms. Cheung Shui Ying, the mother of Mr. Cheung Tung, Mr. Chen has over 20 years of
experience in foam production and research. Mr. Chen completed a business administration

course for company executives in Zhejiang University in November 2006.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 139 of this report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the Reporting Period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment
properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to

the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable and other donations amounted to

approximately HK$161,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Reporting Period are set

out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Directors consider that the Company's reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
comprise the share premium and the accumulated profits which amounted to approximately
HK$537.1 million as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$541.2 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
Shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option" in the section headed "Directors’ Report” in this report and note 30
to the consolidated financial statements. Save as aforesaid, the Company has not entered into

any equity-linked agreement during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report were as follows.

Executive Directors

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
CHEUNG Tung

CHEN Feng

LAM Kam Cheung

LAM Fei Man

Independent non-executive Directors

WONG Chi Keung
LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P (Resigned with effect from 30 June 2020)

ZHANG HWO Jie
WU Tak Lung
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, three Directors, namely,
Ms. Lam Fei Man, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”), and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Company considers such

Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any member of the
Group which is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this report, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
any Director or the Director's connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Reporting

Period.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the controlling Shareholders,
namely, Sinomax Enterprises, Mr: Lam Chi Fan, Mr: Cheung Tung, Mr: Chen Feng and Ms. Cheung
Shui Ying, in respect of their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-competition as
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2014 (the “Prospectus”) for the
Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The articles of association of the Company provided that every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him/her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in

which judgment is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is quitted.

The Company has arranged for approved Directors’ liability insurance policies to protect the

Directors against potential costs and liability arising from claims brought against the Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
of the Group is formulated and reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company,
having regards to the comparable market practice, market conditions, individual performance
and the Group's operating results. Details of the remunerations of the Directors are set out in

note || to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning in Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or (c)
were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuer (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

Interests in the Company

Name of Director

Nature of interest

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ERHRTEE

RITRARRIRIBFE
i YNGR §

Number of shares

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

EEH% EmtE R ®E" BARERSLE
LAM Chi Fan Founder of a discretionary trust 1,275,906,000 (L)® 7291%
MER SREFENMILA
Beneficial owner 1,500,000 (L)@ 0.09%
BmBEBA
CHEUNG Tung Beneficial owner 1,500,000 (L)® 0.09%
RAR BmBEBA
CHEN Feng Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)@ 0.06%
B AR BmBEBA
LAM Fei Man Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)@ 0.06%
MEZ BmBEBA
LAM Kam Cheung Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)@ 0.06%
MEREE BmBEBA
WONG Chi Keung Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
TER BmBEBA
LAM Sing Kwong, Simon Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
I BmBEBA
ZHANG HWO Jie Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
SRk BmBEBA
WU Tak Lung Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
RiEEE BmBEBA

BEEBEERAA

2000 F E R &
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Notes:

(1) The letter "L" denotes long position.

(2)  The percentage is compiled based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) in issue as at 31 December 2020.

(3)  These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises. Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to
37.5% by Chi Fan Holding Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 100% by The Frankie
Trust. The Frankie Trust is a discretionary family trust established by LAM Chi Fan as settlor
and Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited (“Vistra") acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The Frankie
Trust are LAM Chi Fan and his family members.

(4)  Each of LAM Chi Fan, CHEUNG Tung, CHEN Feng, LAM Fei Man and LAM Kam Cheung,

each being an executive Director; has been granted share options to subscribe for 1,500,000,
1,500,000, 1,000,000, 1,000,000 and 1,000,000 Shares, respectively, under the post-IPO
share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 4 March 2014 (the “Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”), all of which are still outstanding. Each of WONG Chi Keung,
LAM Sing Kwong Simon, ZHANG HWO Jie and WU Tak Lung, each being an independent
non-executive Director, has been granted share options to subscribe for 300,000 Shares

respectively, under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Long positions in associated corporation — Sinomax Enterprises
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HRECEERY e R

Approximate

percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest Number of shares shareholding M
EENY mitE RiP#E AR R 23 b
LAM Chi Fan Beneficiary of The Frankie Trust I5 37.5%
MER Frankiel55ER932 2 A

CHEUNG Tung Beneficiary of The Cheung's Family Trust 5 12.5%
RAR REKEEENZ A

CHEN Feng Beneficiary of The Feng Chen's Family Trust 5 12.5%
R BRI E LR T

Note: The above percentage is complied based on the total number of 40 shares of Sinomax st Dl Bt ER2020F 1283 I HEZEE R

Enterprises in issue as at 31 December 2020, and the remaining |5 shares of Sinomax EDETROBHIORTE MERTI55&
Enterprises in issue is owned by The James' Family Holding Limited, which is owned as to DFEBCEBETRHAThe James' Family
1009% by The James' Family Trust. The James' Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by Holding Limited® %5 > MThe James' Family
CHEUNG Shui Ying the mother of CHEUNG Tung, as settlor and Vistra acting as the trustee. Holding LimitedHJamesZ & {5 sE# 5 1 00% 1
The beneficiaries of The James’ Family Trust are CHEUNG Shui Ying and her family members, 1 o JamesK B 5T R IB 2 B3R KHAIZ 2

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

ERED RAEBMERT A MVistras
ZEEAclamesRKEENREARRKER

HEBEHE

ERRERMNER

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the Reporting Period, had any BRABRSREREEIN RRSBAME
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company EE BRI EESIRESE 2R
been granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under |8 years old, or BHISEATZF UM THERN  UEEA
had any such rights been exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or KARIRO S ESMER BRETEST
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which enables the Directors, or their respective FEERZEEN MARE HERATR
spouse or children under 18 years old, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate. HtE B TEI L ENZH FES

NREEBZEBHISEUATZFLAR
TEEMEAERESZSERN-

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRZEE

22020 12831 B BRAL (REHELRA
BEEYURSITERAE) RRMIEEERD
THEALBRNAATREESREBEREM

As at 31 December 2020, the persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as

recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

34

follows:

Long positions in Shares

Name of substantial Shareholders

Nature of interest

EBMFEFENECMIBERINEWT

RINEYSFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares (" shareholding

TERRAE U mtE Rix®E" BORERDLE

Sinomax Enterprises ©) Beneficial owner 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%

EEBRAXO BmBEBA

Chi Fan Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%
REREEED

The James' Family Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,275,906,000 (L)® 7291%
REREEED

Vistra © Trustee of various trusts 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%
ZEFENRFEA

CHEUNG ShuiYing Founder of a discretionary trust 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%

SRIK B 2REFENMIA

LI Ching Hau Interest of spouse 1,277,406,000 (L)® 72.99%

=58 EER
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The letter “L" denotes long position.

The percentage is compiled based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in issue as at

31 December 2020.

Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to 37.5%, 12.5%, 37.5% and 12.5% by Chi Fan Holding
Limited, Wing Yiu Investments Limited, The James' Family Holding Limited and Venture Win
Holdings Limited, respectively, and beneficially owned in the same proportion by The Frankie
Trust, The Cheung's Family Trust, The James" Family Trust and The Feng Chen's Family Trust,

respectively.

These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as to 37.5% by Chi Fan
Holding Limited.

These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as to 37.5% by The

James’ Family Holding Limited.

Vistra acts as the trustee of The Frankie Trust, The James" Family Trust, The Cheung's Family
Trust and The Feng Chen'’s Family Trust. The beneficiaries of The Frankie Trust are Mr. LAM Chi
Fan and his family members. The beneficiaries of The James' Family Trust are Ms. CHEUNG
Shui Ying and her family members. The beneficiaries of The Cheung's Family Trust are Mr
CHEUNG Tung and his family members. The beneficiaries of The Feng Chen's Family Trust are
Mr. CHEN Feng and his family members.
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3 1 A AFrankiel5 56 RE KB
James K k15 58 K BRI K Ik (5 sE R ABF LA

ZERMEBEFBCERE MELRD
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7. These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises. Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to 7. ZERMBEABLERBE - EHBEE
37.5% by The James' Family Holding Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 100% by The M The James' Family Holding Limited& /% B
James' Family Trust. The James' Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. CHEUNG B375%W 5 > MThe James Family Holding
ShuiYing as settlor and Vistra acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The James' Family Trust LimitedHjames RIEEE B m # B | 00%E i ©
are Ms. CHEUNG ShuiYing are her family members. JamesKIEEEABKRKEL LT (FAHE

RPN Bz 2REE MVistralE EX5E
Ao James RIEEFRENRHEARRKEL LR
HEBEHE

8. These interests belong to Mr LAM Chi Fan, the spouse of Ms. LI Ching Hau. Under the SFO, 8. ZERGEBERELTNEBME LR

Ms. LI Ching Hau is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. LAM B-REFSRAERA TRELLHA
Chi Fan is interested. ARMENTEEEREHNEREE KR T
ERET
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS ER %

During the Reporting Period, the Group had continuing connected transactions and connected RESHN AEEHEETHEALTES

transactions with certain connected persons, details of which have been disclosed in the FEREXZREABRRZ HFBRAR

announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2020, 24 December 2020 and 29 B HE8A20205E 128 180~ 20204 12824H

December 2020. Certain continuing connected transactions are exempt from one or more of K2020F 12298 A RIRE - & THE

the reporting, announcement, shareholders” approval and annual review requirements for the MERZFERCET LTRAUFI4AET

purpose of Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. W—IEyZEBRE A -KREMERFE
BIZRE

The following are the continuing connected transactions and connected transactions of the UTRAERRREHARELHRAE
Group during the Reporting Period that are subject to the reporting and annual review AR BETHRAFEEZHATE  BER
requirements but otherwise exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to RETRRILERENFERERS KEHE
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules: ER5
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Continuing Connected Transactions

()

Lease agreement between Dongguan Sinohome Limited* (B B 5 & FHin B IR
2} 8]) (“Dongguan Sinohome”) and Dongguan Donglian Furniture Co., Ltd.* (5.
B1BE R A E) (“Dongguan Donglian”)

Dongguan Donglian is indirectly wholly-owned by Sinomax Enterprises, the controlling
Shareholder of the Company. Dongguan Donglian is therefore an associate of Sinomax

Enterprises and a connected person of the Company.

On 2 December 2013, Dongguan Sinohome, as tenant, entered into a lease agreement
(the “Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome”) with Dongguan Donglian, as
landlord, for the lease of No. | Dajieling Road, Shahu Village, Tang Xia Town, Dongguan,
Guangdong Province, PRC (the “Dongguan Premises”) for a term of slightly more than
two years at a monthly rental of approximately RMB695,000.

On 18 December 2015, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the "Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease
of the Dongguan Premises for a term of three years commencing from | January 2016
and ending on 31 December 2018 at a monthly rental of approximately RMBI.3 million

after the expiry of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome.

On 18 December 2018, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the “2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease
of the Dongguan Premises for a term of three years commencing from | January 2019
and ending on 3| December 2021 at a monthly rental of approximately RMB660,000

after the expiry of the Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement.

Details of the terms of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome, the Renewal
Dongguan Lease Agreement, the 2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the Prospectus and the

announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and 18 December 2018.
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The annual cap determined by the Directors with respect to the maximum annual
amount of rental payable by the Group under the 2019-2021 Donngguan Lease
Agreement for each of the years ended 3| December 2019, 2020 and the year ending
31 December 2021 was RMB7.9 million, respectively. The rental amount paid by the
Group to Dongguan Donglian pursuant to the 2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB7.9 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$9.4 million).

Sale of foam products by Sinomax Trading to Studio Moderna S.A (“Studio
Moderna”)

Studio Moderna is the holding company of SMSA North America Holdings, LLC, which
holds 48.69% equity interest in Dormeo North America, LLC, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. As a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, Studio Moderna is a connected person of the Company. Each subsidiary of
Studio Moderna is an associate of Studio Moderna and hence a connected person of

the Company.

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax Trading entered into a renewed procurement
agreement (the 2017 Renewal Procurement Agreement”) with Studio Moderna
to govern the sale and purchase of foams products between Sinomax Trading and
Studio Moderna for the term commencing from | January 2017 and ending on 3|
December 2017 after the expiry of the procurement agreement entered into with
Studio Moderna in 2016 (the "Procurement Agreement”). Parties to the Procurement
Agreement would, from time to time, agree to a price list setting out the price,
specifications and delivery schedule in respect of each type of foam products, which the

purchase orders must adhere to.
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On 19 December 2017, Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna entered into a renewed
procurement agreement (the “2018 Renewal Procurement Agreement”) in relation
to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group to Studio Moderna and
its subsidiaries for the term commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 3|

December 2018.

On |7 May 2019, Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna entered into a renewed
procurement agreement (the “2019-2020 Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement’)
in relation to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group to Studio Moderna
and its subsidiaries for the term commencing from | January 2019 and ending on 31
December 2020.

Details of the terms of the 2017 Renewal Procurement Agreement, the 2018 Renewal
Procurement Agreement, the 2019-2020 Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 30 December 2016, 6 January 2017, 19 December 2017 and 17
May 2019, respectively.

The annual cap determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for such continuing connected transactions under the 2019-2020
Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement for each of the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020 was USD30 million, respectively. The total amount of sales to Studio
Moderna pursuant to the 2019-2020 Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately USD3.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$23.4 million).
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Sale of foams by the Company to Gu Jia Household Co., Limited* (BEE X [ER 17 B
PRZE]) (“Gu Jia Household”)

Sinomax Kuka is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is
owned as to 40% by Gu Jia Household. As a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, Gu Jia Household is a connected person of the Company. As such,
each subsidiary of Gu Jia Household is an associate of Gu Jia Household and hence a

connected person of the Company.

On 30 December 2016, Haining Sinomax Trading Co. Limited (“Haining Sinomax”)
and Sinomax Kuka entered into a procurement agreement (the “Original Haining
Procurement Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household and its subsidiaries to govern
the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams between Haining Sinomax, Sinomax
Kuka and Gu Jia Household and its subsidiaries for the term commencing from |
January 2017 and ending on 31 December 2017, after the expiry of the procurement
agreement between, among others, Haining Sinomax and Gu Jia Household entered
into in 2016. On | November 2017, the Original Haining Procurement Agreement was
superseded by a revised procurement agreement (the “Revised Haining Procurement

Agreement”).

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane Household Products Limited*
E#HE (D ZREXERRERZAE) ("Sinomax Zhejiang"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a renewed procurement
agreement (the 2017 Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement”) with Hangzhou
Gu Jia Bedding Co, Limited* (FT/NEBHKIEEBRAE]) (“Gu Jia Bedding"), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Gu Jia Household, to govern the sale and purchase of
polyurethane foams between Sinomax Zhejiang and Gu Jia Bedding for the term
commencing from | January 2017 and ending on 31 December 2017, after the expiry
of the procurement agreement between Sinomax Zhejiang and Gu Jia Bedding entered

into in 2016.
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On 19 December 2017, in view of the prospective expiry of the Original Haining
Procurement Agreement (as superseded by the Revised Haining Procurement
Agreement) and the 2017 Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement on 31
December 2017, the Company as supplier entered into a new procurement agreement
(the "2018-2020 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement”’) with Gu Jia Household as
purchaser for the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams for the three financial years

commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 3| December 2020.

On 18 December 2020, in view of the prospective expiry of the 2018-2020 Gu Jia
Procurement Agreement on 31 December 2020, the Company as supplier entered
into a renewal agreement (the “2021-2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement ) with
Gu Jia Household as purchaser for the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams for the
three financial years commencing from | January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023

Details of the terms of the 2018-2020 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement and the 202 -
2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 19 December 2017, 18
December 2020 and 29 December 2020.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for such continuing connected transaction under the 2018-2020 Gu Jia

Procurement Agreement as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE20I18F12A3IAILEFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE019F1283IALEE
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The total amount of sales to Gu Jia Household pursuant to the 2018-2020 Gu Jia
Procurement Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately

RMB249.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$279.9 million).

Pursuant to Rule [4A55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions for the Reporting Period and

confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:
(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

() inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions Under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued the unqualified letters
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected

transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Copies of the auditor's letters have been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Connected Transaction

(i

Lease agreement between Sinomax Kuka and Zhejiang Puruimei Industry Co., Ltd.*

(I IEHEZEERLE)(“Zhejiang Puruimei”)

Sinomax Kuka is an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Zhejiiang
Puruimei is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Qian Hong Xiang (“Mr. Qian"), who
is a director of several indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
namely, Trade Sincere Limited (“Trade Sincere”) and Sinomax Kuka and a substantial
shareholder of Trade Sincere. Zhejiang Puruimei is therefore an associate of Mr. Qian

and a connected person of the Company.

On | January 2018, Sinomax Kuka entered into a lease agreement (the “2018-2020
Haining Lease Agreement”) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant to which Zhejiang
Puruimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka certain buildings and warehouses situated
on the parcel of land situated at No. 99, Qi Chao Road, Haining Agriculture Foreign
Integrated Development Area, Zhejjiang, the PRC* (REIHT I & EEBEHIIMG
B FMERBEE995%) (the “Land”) with an aggregate area of approximately 18,209
sq.m for a fixed term commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020 at a monthly rent (exclusive of management fees and other outgoing charges and
expenses) of RMB411,522.80 (equivalent to approximately HK$452,675.08), subject to

an increase at the rate of 5% annually.

On 15 November 2019, Sinomax Kuka entered into a supplemental lease agreement
(the “Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement”) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant to
which Zhejiang Purimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka: (i) the second floor of a
certain building situated on the Land with an aggregate area of approximately 2,706
sqm. for a fixed term commencing from 16 November 2019 to 30 August 2020;
and (i) certain buildings and warehouses situated on the Land with an aggregate
area of approximately 6,469 sqm. for a fixed term commencing from 16 November
2019 to 31 December 2020, at a monthly rent (exclusive of management fees and
other outgoing charges and expenses) of RMB48,302.10 (equivalent to approximately
HK$53,132.31) and RMB149,242.88 (equivalent to approximately HK$164,167.17),

respectively.
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On 18 December 2020, in view of the prospective expiry of the 2018-2020 Hainnig
Lease Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement)
on 31 December 2020, Sinomax Kuka entered into a lease agreement (the “2021-
2023 Haining Lease Agreement”’) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant to which Zhejiang
Puruimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka certain buildings and warehouses situated
on the Land with an aggregate area of approximately 23,946.9 sqm for a fixed term
commencing from | January 2021 and ending on 3| December 2023 at a monthly
rent (exclusive of management fees and other outgoing charges and expenses) of
RMB592,097.41 (equivalent to approximately HK$696,585.19), subject to an annual

increase at the rate of 5%.

Pursuant to HKFRS 16, leases shall be recognised as right-of-use assets in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position for the accounting period on or after
| January 2019. Accordingly, the entering into of the 2018-2020 Haining Lease
Agreement, the Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement and the 2021-2023 Haining
Lease Agreement by the Group shall be regarded as an one-off acquisition of assets of
the Group under Rule 14A.24(1) of the Listing Rules.

Details of the terms of the 2018-2020 Haining Lease Agreement, the Supplemental
Haining Lease Agreement and the 2021-2023 Haining Lease Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated |8 November 2019, 18 December 2020 and 24 December 2020.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules in respect of all the continuing connected transactions and
connected transaction entered into by the Group during the Reporting Period and all of the
above continuing connected transactions and connected transaction were entered into in the

manners stated above.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the Group's financial
performance for the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators can be found
in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on

pages 6 to 7 and pages 10 to |9 of this report, respectively.

Environmental Policy and Performance

In conducting its business, the Group's objective is to minimise the adverse effects of
its operations on the environment. In addition, in order to comply with the applicable
environmental protection laws, the Group has established an environmental management
system in its operations in accordance with ISO [4001:2015 international standards and
obtained ISO 14001 certification. The environmental management system will be reviewed
from time to time in order to reduce risks related to environmental issues. The Group has
complied with a number of PRC environmental protection laws in connection with water
pollutants, air pollutants, solid waste pollutants, as well as noise pollution generated from its
manufacturing operations. During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable PRC laws and regulations on environmental laws and was not subject to any fines or
legal action resulting from incidents of non-compliance with any applicable PRC environmental
regulations, nor was there any threatened or pending action by any PRC environmental

regulatory authority.

Other green initiatives and measures have been adopted by the Group to control the use of
energy and resources in the production, business operation and management activities so as
to achieve economic benefit. Such initiatives include reducing manufacturing wastes by using
scrap foams to produce pillows and mattresses, reducing electricity consumption by using LED
lightings and by using diesel hot water system operated by solar energy, recycling used papers,

creating a paperless work environment and promoting water saving practices.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant

impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers, Customers, and other Stakeholders

Details of the Group's relationship with employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 79 to

124 of this report.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(1) Risk of customer concentration

Sales to the Group's top five customers accounted for approximately 37.19% (FY2019:
32.3%) of the Group's total revenue, with one customer in the Group's export sales
segment accounting for approximately 10.0% (FY2019: 12.1%) of the Group's total

revenue.

The Group has not entered into any long-term agreements with these top five
customers. Their purchases are on an order-by-order basis. The Group cannot
guarantee that it will be able to maintain stable relationships with its key customers.
A substantial decrease of purchases could adversely affect product sales, financial

condition and results of operations of the Group.
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The Group will continue to diversify its customer portfolio by actively searching for
new customers and seeking opportunities for strategic acquisition in order to capture

more customers in different markets.

Risk of changing in the economic conditions

To manage the risk of economic fluctuation in the world, the Group is trying to
diversify its investments geographically. In particular;, the Group's factories in the US and

Vietnam have started operations and are expected to generate profit in the future.

Risk of deterioration in the value of the Group’s brands

The Group is dependent on the goodwill in its brands for the continued success and
growth of its business. In particular; the Group relies on sales of its “Sinomax” branded
products in Hong Kong and the PRC, and products under other brands owned by or
licensed to it in other territories. Adverse publicity or regulatory or legal action against
the Group could damage the reputation and brand images of and discourage long-term

demand for the Group's products.

The Group continues to adopt its strategy to promote its brand names through
different marketing schemes. The Group also uses multi brands strategy to promote
“PureLUX",

“Spa Supreme”'and“Tung Ah"so as to reduce the risk of reliance on and

more brands like “Zeopedic”, “Dream Serenity”, "ComforZen”,

“Customize”,

deterioration of a particular brand.
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Risk of volatility in the pricing of raw materials

The Group is exposed to commodity price risks resulting from fluctuation of prices
of chemicals including polypropylene glycol and toluene diisocyanate, which are the
principal raw materials for the production of polyurethane foams. The Group has not
entered into any long-term agreement with any of its raw materials suppliers, nor has
it entered into any hedging arrangements or transactions to reduce the exposure to

fluctuations in raw materials costs.

The Group implements a cost-plus pricing policy in the segments of export sales and
polyurethane foam sales. Price quotations for orders are negotiated in an order-by-
order basis. In determining the product prices, the Group usually takes into account
various factors such as production costs (including costs of raw materials), production
cycle, transportation costs, product types and specification, market price and global

economic conditions.

Risk of compliance with laws and regulations

The Group's business is subject to Hong Kong, PRC, Vietnam and US laws and
regulations. Any failure to comply with laws and regulations could result in legal
proceedings and expose us the civil and/or criminal liabilities. The long term
development of our business largely depends on a steady legal environment.
Unanticipated changes in policies and regulatory practices may adversely affect our
business. The Group will continue to manage and ensure the highest compliance

standard with first-rate independent legal services.
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PROSPECTS

A description of the likely future development in the Group's business is provided in the

section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 19 of this report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 4 March 2014, the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme becomes valid and effective on 10 July
2014 and will expire on the business day preceding the tenth anniversary thereof. Subject
to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, grantees may exercise the share options
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the period commencing

from the date of grant and up to such expiry date as determined by the Board.

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to
eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity interests in the Company, for
their contributions to, and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the Group or for such
other purposes as the board of directors of the Company may approve from time to time,
linking their interests with the interests of the Group and thereby attracting and encouraging

those parties to work better for the interests of the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.
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On 26 January 2017 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company granted a total of 30,800,000 share R2017F 18268 (MRHEBH)) » AAT B

options to 58 eligible participants, representing approximately 1.76% of the 1,750,002,000 58 B BB EERHE£30,800,00017 8

shares in issue as at the Date of Grant. All 30,800,000 share options are valid for a period of 5 ReHE (R H HEAE 85171,750,002,0004% &

years commencing from the relevant vesting date and shall entitle the grantee to subscribe for 19491.76% © BT 530,800,00017 & % 1 B 18

one Share upon exercise of such option at a subscription price of HK$0.69 per Share. 55 B B S WS FE MR F AR AR
TEZERERUEGRKH0.69B T
BEIE KRG

As at the date of this report, the total number of securities available for issue under the Post- HEARSBHR RBREEXLARZEE

IPO Share Option Scheme was 144,500,000 Shares, representing approximately 8.26% of the BERESI T FETNESBHA

total number of issued Shares as at the date of this report. 144,500,00082 B& 15 » AL AR E HERE 8817
B 10 4R BAY8.26% o

The following tables disclose details of movements of share options granted under the Post- TEREEREERN A RHEEERBRESE

IPO Share Option Scheme: RENEBRESHFE

Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding

Exercise asat during the during the during the asat

price per | Jan Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 Dec

Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise period Share 2020 Period Period Period 2021

#2020 0215

IBIR  RERESEA REEHER RESER 1A31H

EBEA RHAH REH 118 SROTHEE  HROE b %% i HERTE

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman) 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
HWER (EZR) WI7EIRBE  0I7EIB1E- 0I8F1F26H~
20181 F26H 203 1F25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H

CHEUNG Tung (President) 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
Ri% (##) WI7EIBWE  017FEIBWA- 20181 B26H-
20181 F26H 203 1F25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H

CHEN Feng 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
BRiE WI7TEIBWE  0I7FEIBWA- 20181 B26H-
2018%1F26H 2031 F25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H
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Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding

Exercise asat during the during the during the asat

price per | Jan Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 Dec

Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise period Share 2020 Period Period Period 2021

120205 015

IBIB  REEEA RESEA REEER AR

EEA B AS FBE 768 BRITHEE  HEAOE g F3 T HKE

LAM Kam Cheung 26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
hEReE WI7EIBKE  W0I7EIBWE- WIBEIFBE-
018F1B26H 03%F1B25H

26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
WITEIFBE  0I7FIBWHE- WI9EIR6E-
019F182A 204%F1B25H

LAM Fei Man 26 Jan 2017 261an 2017 -261an 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
HEZ WITEIANE  WI7FIFBE- 0I8EIF26E-
20181 F26H 2023EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
WI7EIBBE  W0I7EIBWE- 019F 18268~
019F1826H 204F 18258

WONG Chi Keung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 -261an 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
5% WITEIAWE  W0I7FIFBE- 0I8EIF26E-
20181 526H 2023EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WI7EIBBE  W0I7EIBWE- 019F 18268~
019F1826H 204F 18258

LAM Sing Kwong, Simon 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 -261an 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
e WI7EIFBE  2017FIF8E~ 0I18F1B26H -
0181 526H 203EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WI7EIBBE  W0I7EIBWE- 019F 18268~
019F1826H 204F 18258

FAN Chun Wah, 26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - (150,000) - 0
Andrew, |P WI7EIB2E  017EIB1A- WI8FIB26H~
EHRELTAL 20181 526H 203EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - (150,000) - 0
WI7EIBBE  W0I7EIBWE- 019F 18268~
019F1826H 204F 18258

BEEBEERAA

2005 EHRSE
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Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise asat during the during the during the asat
price per | Jan Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 Dec
Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise period Share 2020 Period Period Period 2021
#2020 0215
IBIR  REEHN RESHEA  RESHR 1A3IH
ERA REAEH REH 118 SROTHEE  HXT bt ESd i EERTHE
ZHANG HWO Jie 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
SR WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2018F1B26H-
201851 F26H 2031 F25H
26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H
WU Tak Lung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
R WI7EIBWE  017FEIBWA- 20181 B26H-
20181 F26H 203 1F25H
26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H
Other employees 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 7,660,000 - (1010000) - 6650000
(in aggregate) WITEIBWE  2017FIFWE- 0I8FIF26H-
HitES (BH) 20181 A26A 203E1A25A
26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 7,660,000 - (1010000) - 6650000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H
Total 22820000 - (2320000) - 20500000
ast
Number of share options 20,500,000

exercisable at

31 December 2020
R2020E128318

BfTREREYE
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Notes:

During the Reporting Period, 3 (FY2019: 3) eligble participants who have been granted
share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have ceased to become eligible
participants upon termination of employment and the said share options have automatically

lapsed.

Mr: Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P. ceased to be a director of the Company with effect from 30
June 2020. All outstanding share options granted to Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme may be exercised within one month after the date of
such cessation and any share options which remained outstanding thereafter would lapse
accordingly. None of such share options were exercised during the said period and accordingly,
all of the outstanding share options granted to Mr Fan have lapsed during the Reporting

Period.

Other details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

was outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The articles of association of the Company and the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the

Cayman Islands do not entitle any Shareholder to any pre-emptive right or other similar rights

to subscribe for the Shares.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any Shares

during the Reporting Period.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. Other
than those transactions disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
above, these related party transactions either did not constitute connected transaction/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected transaction/continuing connected
transactions that were exempted from all disclosure and independent Shareholders’ approval

requirement under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 35.3% of the Group's total purchases. The Group's largest
supplier accounted for approximately 9.4% of the Group's total purchases. The average length

of relationship with the Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 10.4 years.

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 37.1% of the Group's total revenue. The Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 10.0% of the Group's total revenue. The average length

of relationship with the Group's five largest customers was approximately 7. years.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company) had
a beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Reporting

Period.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If any Shareholders has any doubt about the taxation implication of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in, or exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to

consult their own professional advisers.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 57 to 74 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, are held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this

report.

AUDITOR

Following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 12 August 2020, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was appointed as the auditor
of the Company with effect from |9 August 2020 to fill the casual vacancy, particulars of which
have been set out in the announcement of the Company dated 20 August 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in the auditors of the Company during

the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
were audited by PwC, whose term of office will retire at the close of the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PwC as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the AGM.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have been reviewed by

the audit committee of the Board.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Lam Chi Fan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance to
safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Board believes that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management and healthy corporate culture, thereby earning the confidence of the

Shareholders and the public.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance. The Company met the applicable code provisions set out in the CG

Code during the Reporting Period.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's corporate governance

practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Directors and relevant employees, who
are likely to possess inside information of the Company, in their dealings in the Company's
securities. The code of conduct are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code") contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules..

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting

Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, with five executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to

the date of this report were as follows:
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Executive Directors Lam Chi Fan (Chairman)
Cheung Tung (President)
Chen Feng

Lam Kam Cheung

Lam Fei Man

Independent
non-executive
Directors Wong Chi Keung

Lam Sing Kwong, Simon

Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J. P *

Zhang Hwo Jie

Wu Tak Lung

* Mr. FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. resigned as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 30 June 2020.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the Company's business. The
independence of the independent non-executive Directors is assessed according to the relevant rules
and requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company requests the Directors to disclose annually
to the Company the number and nature of office held in public companies or organisations and other

significant commitments with an indication of time involved.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
concerning the diversity of Board members. The board diversity policy outlines the factors
to be considered when deciding on the appointments of members to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments. These factors include but are not limited to gender; age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from

time to time.
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Relationship between Board members

- Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman and an executive Director; is the uncle of Mr. Cheung
Tung, the President and an executive Director and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an

executive Director;

- Mr. Cheung Tung, the president and an executive Director; is a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei

Man, an executive Director;

- Mr. Chen Feng, an executive Director; is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an

executive Director; and

- Ms. Lam Fei Man is a cousin of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director; the daughter of a cousin of Mr. Chen Feng, an executive Director;

and an aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director:

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships

among members of the Board.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board and management

The Board is responsible and has general power for the management and conduct of the
business of the Group. The Board oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board also makes decisions on matters relating to
strategies and budgets, financial information, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
dividend, adoption of accounting policies and other matters of operational significance to the

Company.
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The Board delegates day-to-day management and operations functions of the Company
to Board committees and senior management of the Company with clear directions and
authority framework. The Board will review periodically the delegation given to management

to ensure that they are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

The Board has delegated specific roles and responsibilities to the Company's audit committee,
corporate governance committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Details of these committees are set out on pages 64 to 71 of this report.

Chairman and President

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lam is responsible for the formulation of

the overall business strategies and business planning of the Group.

Mr: Cheung Tung is the President (equivalent to the role of a chief executive) of the Company.
Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall management of the day-to-day operations of the

Group.

Mr: Lam Chi Fan is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung. However, there is a clear distinction between

the Chairman’s responsibilities and the President’s responsibilities.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company currently has four independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the members of the Board, who are persons of high caliber with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
independent non-executive Directors bring a diversified range of expertise and provide checks

and balances of safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and the Group as a whole.
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Each of MrWong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr.
WuTak Lung has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years

commencing from 12 July 2020, respectively.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive Directors their confirmation
of independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors have met the

independence guidelines and are independent.

Board meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and a tentative schedule for regular Board meetings
for each year is provided to Directors prior to the beginning of each calendar year. Between
scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve various matters by way of passing
written resolutions. Additional Board meetings may be arranged if required. At least 14 days’
notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the Company aims at sending the agenda
and the accompanying board papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the intended

date of a Board meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held five meetings and the Company held one general

meeting,

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open for

inspection by the Directors.
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The attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings and the general meeting held

during the Reporting Period are set out as follows:

EFHRERNBERETNESTTEZRR

RAGEHHIWT :

Board meetings

General meeting

attended attended
Name of Directors HENS LEEETEERY HERRAERY
Executive Directors BITESR
Lam Chi Fan HEN 5/5 /1
Cheung Tung IRAR 5/5 1/
Chen Feng PR AR 5/5 1/l
Lam Kam Cheung TRERAF 5/5 11
Lam Fei Man MEZ 5/5 /1
Independent non-executive Directors BIFRTES
Wong Chi Keung FTE® 5/5 /1
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MEe 5/5 1/l
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P * DEEEE R 4RI 3/5 I/1
Zhang Hwo Jie SR 5/5 1/
WuTak Lung REHE 5/5 /1
* Mr: Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, ) P resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect * EHRELTHL BREBEUENTESH

from 30 June 2020. Mr. Fan attended all Board meetings and the general meeting held during

the Reporting Period prior to his resignation.
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Accountability and audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of financial statements
of the Group to ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results of its operation and its cashflows. In preparing the
financial statements for the Reporting Period, the Board had prepared the Group's financial
statements on a going-concern basis and in accordance with relevant accounting standards
and regulations. Board members are provided with monthly updates on the Group's financial
position, which give the Directors a clear assessment of the performance, position and

prospect of the Group.

A statement from the external auditor relating to their reporting responsibilities is set out in

the independent auditor's report on pages 125 to 138 of this report.

Continuous training and professional development for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their responsibilities and duties and are committed to
participate in continuous professional development to develop their knowledge and skills. This

is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company provides regular updates on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board
meetings. In addition, the Company also organises briefing sessions to the Directors which
place emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director; as well as the

latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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Individual training record of each Director during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

BEENRESPNZEAEINZEHDT

Reading materials
regarding regulatory Attending seminars

updates and corporate and/or conferences

governance matters and/or briefings
FEARRM
EEEMK
TEEFEE HERSERH
Name of Directors BEiEY ARt Rk HER
Executive Directors HITES
Lam Chi Fan MEN V v
Cheung Tung TRAR \ v
Chen Feng PR AR v v
Lam Kam Cheung B v \
Lam Fei Man MR V v
Independent non-executive Directors BUFRTES
Wong Chi Keung FTE® v v
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MRER V v
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P* BRERT AL v v
Zhang Hwo Jie R v v
WuTak Lung REHE v \
* Mr: Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, ) P resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect * EREATAL BREBIFENTES

from 30 June 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up four committees, namely, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the corporate governance committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company. The terms of reference of these committees are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee currently comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu
Tak Lung. Mr: Wong Chi Keung is the chairman of the audit committee. He has professional

qualifications in accounting and financial management.

The primary duties of the audit committee include, among other things:

- reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity;

- recommending to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor and

approving its remuneration;

- reviewing the Group's consolidated financial statements, annual reports and interim

reports before submitting them to the Board;

- overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, internal control and risk management

procedures and audit process;

- reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group; and

- meeting with the external auditor to discuss issues regarding audit at least once a year

in the absence of the management.

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee held four meetings and reviewed and
discussed with the external auditor the interim and annual results of the Group and
the relevant financial reports. It also discussed matters with respect to the Group's risk

management and internal controls and the re-appointment of external auditor:
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A summary of the work of the audit committee during the Reporting Period was as follows:

(@)  reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the annual results for the year ended

31 December 2019 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020;

(b)  discussed and reviewed the risk management system of the Group, reviewed the
internal control review plan for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the interim

financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2020;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function; and

(d)  approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The attendance record of each member of the audit committee at the meetings held during

the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

RREANNELZEST TERENT

(@)

(@)

ER KA Z BT R A E 2019
FNAIHLEEENEEZEREE
20206830 LE7NE B ERZE LS

HmhkBRAEEZEREERSA
ZHREE29FENA3IHEEEZRA
BB R ET 8 R B E20205F 68530
HIEAEBN TR ;

BERARTAEEFBAENBRIL
K

HOERBEE 202012831 BIEE
ENEESIZTE o

BEERZEEMBHERBSHRRTZ
SEMEHHEIWT

Meetings attended

Name of members of audit committee BERZEERENS HEZERY
Wong Chi Keung FTE® 4/4
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MRER L 4/4
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P* DR ER AR 2/4
Zhang Hwo Jie R 4/4
Wu Tak Lung REHE 4/4
* Mr: Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, P ceased to be as a member of the audit committee since his * EREXTA D CHEBUFRATESH

resignation as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2020. Mr.
Fan attend all meetings of the audit committee held during the Reporting Period prior to his

resignation.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee currently comprises four Independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Wong Chi Keung, the chairman of the corporate governance committee,

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr.WuTak Lung.

The primary duties of the corporate governance committee include, among other things:

- developing and reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board with regard to any change;

- reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management on corporate governance;

- reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements on corporate governance and making

recommendations to the Board with regard to any change;

- developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and corporate governance

manual applicable to Directors and employees; and

- reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

During the Reporting Period, the corporate governance committee held one meeting to
review the Company's corporate governance policies and practices and the compliance with
the CG Code.

EEERHRS

XERREY

e

TEEAZEERRAMUBIIFNGTE
FHEM BETREE (EXERBZEET
&) s A HIR R ERRIER SR

fIsES

il

AEEENTIEREHTEE !

- HERBHARBDEEERNBERR
BROLMENSHRAERGFELE

R

- BAREREFREREEBELR
ERRENEIRFEERER

- BHREREARBDEBTERREIR
ENERKER TMEFNESHRE
FEFHER

- HE RARERBEREZKES
MTRTARERERTM &

- BHEARARBREEELTINER
REGEEARSPELARE-

RESHN CXELRLZEERF—XE
FUBREARTNEEEBBRKRER
RESTEEERTRIZER

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS

67



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERHRS

The attendance record of each member of the corporate governance committee at the

meeting held during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

BREXEELRZEENEHENREHAANE

TzEZNTHEIWT

Meeting attended

Name of members of corporate governance committee TEERZEERENRS HEEERY
Wong Chi Keung FER /1
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon EE 171
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, | P* B ER T o/l
Zhang Hwo Jie SR 1/l
Wu Tak Lung RERE /1
# Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP ceased to act as a member of the corporate governance * CHELTHT CREBLENTESH

committee since his resignation as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
30 June 2020. No meeting of the corporate governance committee was held during the

Reporting Period prior to Mr: Fan's resignation.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee currently consists of one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee is chaired by Professor
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, an independent non-executive Director. Other members are MrWu

Tak Lung, an independent non-executive Director and Mr: Lam Chi Fan, an executive Director.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, among other things:

- studying and making recommendations or proposals to the Board for its review on
the Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management, the Company's incentive schemes and the establishment of a formal and

transparent procedure for formulating the remuneration policies and incentive schemes;

- determining the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the

non-executive Directors; and

- reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate

objectives approved by the Board from time to time.
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In order to recognise and acknowledge the contributions of key employees of the Company,
the Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme enables eligible persons to have a personal stake in the Company and thus motivates

them to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management's emoluments for the Reporting Period and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note || and note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration committee held one meeting to assess the
performance of the Directors and approve Directors” and senior management's performance
bonus, after taking into consideration the comparable market practice, competitive market
condition position, individual performance and contributions of the Directors and the Group's

operating results.

The attendance record of each member of the remuneration committee at the meeting held

during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

EEERHRS
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RARBERBRESIAEBALR
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ERREHEERSREEENIERE
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i

REREHE FNEEEER—RNER &
ETRABELEBRTHEN BRFNNTE
R EFBEARBEREMUAREERK
EEER TEEFRAURBEESER
BREEBRRIRTA

BHNEEENEHFENRE
SRNCHHEIWT

HRETZ

Meeting attended

Name of members of remuneration committee HFMEZSEmEHS HEEERY
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MEE 171
Lam Chi Fan HEN I/
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, | P* SEERE R TRt /1
Wu Tak Lung ** RiEgE o/l
* Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP ceased to act as a member of the remuneration committee * EREXTA D CHEBUFRATESH

since his resignation as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2020.
Mr: Fan attended the meeting of the remuneration committee held during the Reporting

Period prior to his resignation.

ok Mr Wu Tak Lung was appointed as a member of the remuneration committee with effect
from 30 June 2020. No meeting of the remuneration committee was held during the

Reporting Period since Mr.Wu's appointment.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises three members with the majority of its
members being independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee is chaired
by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director: Other members
are Mr.Wong Chi Keung and Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, both being independent non-

executive Directors.
The primary duties of the nomination committee include, among other things:

- reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and making
recommendations regarding any proposed changes to the Board in line with the

Company's strategies;

- developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of

directors:
- identifying suitable candidates for appointment as directors; and
- assessing the independence of independent non-executive Director.

The Company acknowledges and embraces the benefits of diversity among its Board
members. The nomination committee has a policy concerning the diversity of Board
members with measurable objectives. Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the legitimate

interests of the principal Shareholders.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has a nomination policy for the nomination of Directors. Appointment of new
Directors is first considered by the nomination committee. In considering the appointment of
a Director; the nomination committee applies criteria such as relevant experience, professional
and educational background, reputation for integrity and independence as well as the diversity
in the Board. The recommendation of the nomination committee is then put to the Board for
consideration and approval. Thereafter; any Director appointed by the Board is subject to re-

election by the Shareholders at the general meeting after his/her appointment.
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During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee held one meeting to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board. The attendance record of each member of the

nomination committee at the meeting held during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

EEERHRS

RESHRN RLZEEAR—REZENU
BAEZEHNRE RERAN -BREE
BEMEHFERREAANBRTZEE
EEIMTE

Meeting attended

Name of members of nomination committee REZEEHENS HEEERY
Lam Chi Fan MER, 1/1
Wong Chi Keung FTE® /1
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MEE 11

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Reporting Period, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided to

the Group by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor; are set out as follows:

RHETE

RERSHA SIMNERHMEIRKES
SENEHBAAEBRERNEZRIFEZ
RBMAERHSWMT

Fee
&M
HK$'000
TAT
Audit services BIZRE 3070
Non-audit services: B
Reviewing the Company's interim financial information, report on ~ BIZAA B FEA B ER BFEBRER ZEH
continuing connected transactions and review of risk management RS R BZAEBENEREE R A
and internal control of the Group, and conducting financial and tax  FLEEWIEEBEHM B RNBTHFE 2
due diligence for potential acquisition BHAT 610
3,680
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr: Lam Kam Cheung was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 4 March
2014. The biographical details of Mr. Lam is set out in the section headed “Directors and

Senior Management” on page 21 of this report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lam took no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of Shareholders and seeks to facilitate the effective exercise

of those rights by ensuring that the Company communicates effectively with its Shareholders.

The Company promotes effective communication with Shareholders and encourages effective
participation by Shareholders at general meetings of the Company.To ensure a high quality of
communication and level of clarity with all investors and other stakeholders, whilst complying
with its statutory disclosure obligations, the Company endeavours to provide Shareholders
with ready and easy access on a timely basis to matters that affect their investment in the
Company and communicate in a clear; accurate and easy to understand manner with investors
and other stakeholders. Communications with Shareholders are mainly maintained through
the Company's interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars, general meetings and

publications on the Company's website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company, in deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following

factors before declaring or recommending dividends:
(@)  the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition, expected working capital

requirements and capital expenditure requirements, liquidity position and future

expansions plans;
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(b)  the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company;

(c)  the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity ratio and the relevant

financial covenant;

(d)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Group;

(e)  the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry's norm; and

(f)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board also considers that general meetings of the Company provide an useful forum
for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Company shall in each year hold a
general meeting as its annual general meeting. All general meetings other than annual general

meeting shall be called extraordinary general meetings (“EGMs").

Members of the audit committee, remuneration committee, corporate governance committee
and nomination committee and the external auditor also attend the annual general meetings
to answer questions from Shareholders. Notice of annual general meetings is sent to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual general meetings and the
accompanying circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules. The voting results of annual general meetings
and EGMs are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same

day of the annual general meetings and EGMs.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the deposit of a written requisition
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an EGM to be called by

the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the purpose of the meeting, signed by the requisitionists
and deposit it with the company secretary of the Company at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |, MegaBox Enterprise Square
Five, No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly
to convene the EGM to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of

deposit of the requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly

possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests for information to the Directors or
management through the ‘Contact Us' section in the Company's website at www.sinomax.com

or in writing or sent by post to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no members nor Shareholders are permitted to propose
new resolutions at general meetings if the intention to propose the new resolutions is not
specified in the notice convening the general meeting. However, procedures for proposing
candidate(s) for election as Directors at a Shareholder's meeting are set out in the Corporate

Governance section of the Company's website at irsinomax.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders by electronic means, particularly through its website, is an efficient way of
distributing information in a timely and convenient manner. The Company's website at

(www.sinomax.com/group) provides the following information:
- members of the Board, terms of reference of the Board committees, key corporate

governance policies and the Company's constitutional documents;

- latest news, announcements, financials including interim and annual reports and all

material information submitted to the Stock Exchange; and

- other information relating to the Group and its business.

Shareholders can make any query in respect of the Group or to make request for the

Company's financial reports. The designated contact details are as follows:

By post: Sinomax Group Limited

Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |,

MegaBox Enterprise Square Five,

No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
By email: ir@sinomax.com
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Shareholders who have any matters relating to change of name or address, transfer of shares
and loss of share certificates, may contact the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar,

Tricor Investor Services Limited. The contact detalils are as follows:

Address: Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the Reporting Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. A review of the implemented systems and
procedures, including areas covering financial, operational, legal compliance controls and risk
management functions, is carried out annually. The risk management and internal control
systems are implemented to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed and used as a

management tool for the day-to-day operation of business.

The Board has, through the audit committee, reviewed and considered the Group's risk
management and internal control systems to be effective and adequate for the Reporting

Period.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational, legal compliance

controls and risk management functions of the Group were identified.

The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels of responsibility and
reporting procedures. The Group's internal audit department assists the Board and the audit
committee in the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

control systems on an ongoing basis.
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The Company has established Enterprise Risk Management Procedures to ensure safeguard of
assets and to identify, evaluate, quantify and manage existing and potential risks. Relevant rules
and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group's performance are appropriately

identified and addressed.

The internal audit department is responsible for the operation and coordination of enterprise
risk management mechanism, which includes examining, reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management processes and systems, assessing whether risk is properly identified, assessing
significant risk reporting, and reviewing significant risk management. The internal audit
department provides risk management and internal control assessment reports to the
management on a regular or ad hoc basis. The internal audit department also regularly reviews
and reports to the audit committee and the Board on risk management and internal control

affairs. The Group will appoint external internal control consultant when necessary.

The task group on risk management is responsible for establishing the risk management
register and defining responsibilities, procedures and system of risk management, formulating
the annual risk management work plan, carrying out risk assessment, proposing the risk
management strategy, assisting the relevant departments and the enterprises in significant risk
management. It also prepares risk management performance appraisal program and conducts

annual performance appraisal and arranges risk management training.

The departmental management executes risk management strategies, solutions and crisis
management plans for significant risks, dynamically monitor significant risk associated indicators
and executes the procedures and policies of the risk management and internal controls of the

Group.
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In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken within the
Group, the external auditor also assesses the effectiveness of certain key risks and internal

controls as part of their statutory audits.

To help ensure all risks which are relevant to the Group are considered, a systematic approach

to risk identification is followed. Identifiable risk areas which are considered include:

. maintaining a safe work environment for the Group's employees;
. safeguarding and efficient use of assets;

. management of human resources;

. ensuring the Group complies with legal and regulatory obligations;
. achieving established objectives and goals;

. reliability and integrity of financial and operational information; and
. compliance with internal policies and procedures.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information, the Group:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the SFO, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of inside
information, announcements and financial disclosures and authorises their publication as

required;

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information Disclosure Policy; and

(if)  has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the securities transactions
of those employees who, because of their positions, are likely to have access to

confidential or inside information.
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ABOUT US

Company profile

Sinomax Group Limited (“Sinomax” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group") (Stock Code: 1418) is principally engaged in the development, manufacture and sales
of visco-elastic health and wellness products. Since 2001, Sinomax's dedication of adhering
to its belief, “Love Supports Beloved”, has driven it to continuously developing products
ranging from viscoelastic pillows, mattress toppers, mattresses to polyurethane foam, which
has consequently led to the Group's success of being listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (“SEHK") in July, 2014.To secure its leading market position, the Group has constantly
researched, designed, developed and produced high-quality and healthy products through
engaging customers, steering innovation and ensuring high quality standards, in hope of raising

awareness of healthy-living and fulfilling households' everchanging needs.

Corporate vision, mission and core values

Towards our vision of becoming the global leader in the health-living industry, we strive to
provide innovative and quality health and wellness products with our strong research and
development capabilities. In order to understand the needs of our customers, we continuously
engage our customers to promote healthy living and enhance well-being of the community.

Supporting our vision, our core values are:
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Integrity g
Be trustworthy and
transparent to our

stakeholders
RAEKMEHE
DHESEREMN
BERANAE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting standard, period and scope

This report was prepared in accordance to the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKEX ESG Reporting Guide"). More in-

depth information regarding corporate governance is addressed in the section of corporate

Inclusive 8%
To engage and include
stakeholders of our value chain

R PIEEED L
FHELBALRARENER

(0]

03

Win-win #5
Be caring for the environment
and community within business
operations
HEEEHRALIBRNLE

governance in the annual report according to Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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This report covers the ESG performance of the Group's Hong Kong headquarters, Shenzhen
office, and factories in Guangdong, Zhejiang and Shandong Provinces, the People's Republic of
China (the “"PRC") from | January 2020 to 3| December 2020 (the “reporting year”). The
Group shall continuously improve its data collection system, and seek possibilities of including
existing and new premises located in the United States and Vietnam in the future, in order to

increase the comprehensiveness of ESG performance and disclosure.

Reporting principles

We have followed the reporting principles set out in the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide in the
preparation of the ESG report.

. Materiality: In order to identify the material ESG issue to Sinomax's business operation,
the Group invited its key stakeholders including employees, suppliers and customers
to rate the importance of relevant ESG topics. The Board of Directors and senior
management has reviewed the material topics to ensure the topics in this report

address stakeholders’ views.

. Quantitative: To evaluate and review the effectiveness of ESG policies and management
approach, we report our ESG performance quantitatively with clear narration to
explain the impacts. The Group is in the process of developing environmental targets to

reduce particular impacts.

. Balance: This report was prepared in a fair and unbiased basis. The Group fully
disclosed the material key performance indicators regardless of whether performance

has improved or declined in line with the principle.

. Consistency: The Group is consistently following the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide in
disclosure and calculation methodologies are consistent to ensure data is comparable

year-on-year.
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Reporting theme

The reporting theme of this year is “We-lying on quality and innovation”. In support of the
Group's vision and core values, Sinomax believes its quality and innovations could enhance its
customers’ wellness through lying on its products and relying on Sinomax. The Group's efforts

on promoting health and well-being of the community will be further discussed in this report.

Contact details

To continuously refine the Group's sustainability strategy, we welcome any feedback
concerning this report and the Group's sustainability performance. If you have any questions

regarding the report, please contact the Group and its contact details are set out as below:

Address: Sinomax Group Limited
Units 2005-2007

Level 20 Tower |

MegaBox Enterprise Square Five

38 Wang Chiu Road

Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2754 7798
E-mail: in@sinomax.com

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

In the journey to sustainable development, effective communication with stakeholders is
essential to understanding stakeholders' expectation on the Group's development. In this
regard, the Group has established various communication channels to listen to stakeholders'

feedback Throughout the reporting vear, Sinomax has engaged different stakeholder groups via

the communication channels as below:

* Interview

i

* Newsletter
2B Stakeholder group
. BHEmE .

Communication channels
A Wil

Social Media

e 1

* Charitable activities .-~
 Public consultation °
DRBH .

Community

HE

Government and
ather public bodies

Bt 2 LB
T %
L .
. °
. L]
.. .
o .
- .
* Site visits ‘e,
TRER . e
* Inspection aﬁd,i‘nterview ®e o, .
IR ®®e. Suppliers e°°°
PR
* Site visits
IREE
* Feedback and
improvement plan
REER DR #
* Direct communication
HEER
* ESG survey
ESG %
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* Seminars and workshops
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Employees
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Customers
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* E-shop
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* Customer service hotline
and e-mail
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* Mobile application
FHRERRRF

* Facebook

* Instagram

* Retail stores
TERE

* ESG survey
ESG %
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Adhering to the reporting principle of Materiality, the Group had carried out several
stakeholder surveys between 2019 and 2020 and invited its key stakeholder groups such as
employees, suppliers and customers to complete the surveys and rate the importance of the
ESG issues to the Group's long-term development. Based on the survey results, a materiality

matrix was created to identify the material ESG topics to the Group.

Materiality Matrix
EENEMNE

BB
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Impact to Stakeholders (External)

Impact to Business Operation (Internal)

HEBBEOVE (A)

@ Environment @ Social
BIR e

Environment B Social it &

1 Environmental compliance 5 Wastewater management 9 Social compliance 15 Green procurement
BRESHRM BEKERR HEEHRM e

2 Air quality control 6 General waste management 10 Employment practices 16 Product health and safety
ZREBEE —RERNERE TEE1EH EmEREEZE

3 Energy usage and conservation 7 Hazardous waste management 11 Labour standard 17 Product quality assurance
RERE AR AL FERRNER S5 T 2R EREERE

4 Water consumption and 8 Impact on natural environment 12 Occupational health and safety 18 Anti-corruption practices
conservation Y RIBIE B BREREZS RESEH
IKEIBEAREK 13 Development and training 19 Community involvement

SR BRI HERA

14 Raw material selection and supply
chain management
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DELIVERING HEALTH AND WELLNESS PRODUCTS

Developing with innovation

In pursuance of being a global leader in health-living industry, Sinomax is devoted to producing
high-quality health and wellness products with its innovation. With strong research and
development (R&D) capabilities, the Group is continuously enhancing existing or developing
new materials and products to establish a comprehensive product portfolio that targets
different consumers’ needs. Driven by our passion for innovation, we have already developed
and registered over 20 exclusive product design patents as of the end of the reporting year
We hold product design patents and intellectual property (IP) rights with high regard as part
of the Group's assets. Committing to intellectual property protection, we include the relevant

clauses and terms in the contracts with our suppliers and partners to protect each party.

Sustainable procurement

In addition to innovation, raw materials and suppliers are also crucial factors in delivering
premium products. In this regard, the Group dedicates effort in managing its suppliers to

create a sustainable value chain.

In order to deliver safe and healthy products to our customers, we implement a stringent
procurement policy to select and manage our suppliers and raw materials. In view of this, we
have a strict requirement on sourcing non-hazardous, organic and environmentally friendly
raw materials. During the selection process, we prioritize recyclable and natural materials
with low volatile organic compounds (VOC) and certification standards such as CertiPUR-US
certification and UKBS5852 standard.

RIE- g RELARS

RIERERFARER

Bl

ATRASHBEEETESIEE BE
BARBRAmUEEEENRERRFRE
EmoREBMANMERED AEBE T
BEREMNNERAFEFNYRME
o UBIUEDEFAREEEERNER
HE - BRHAMNAB BLEREEE
FROHMELHELFMZEBRER
RABEH -HMBEERERKFENH
HMER UREAXEREEEE AR
FEHREMNSEENRE RMOTEME
BEMEEBHENERTINABRBEERMA
2 LURIEE F -

ESE 2

BRT R 25 RMEAIHER TR
BEEMNBARRZR -RIEMES  2EEXR
NEBAHER UBL—RAIKENE
=k

ATHERRMZE2NBENED M
EREENEBERUEENEERM
WHEEMEM R BER I HAHF
BEZ ARNRFNEMNEBRERNE
RoFEEEBREP HMABLEEELENKE
EREERLCEYIENREBIEE (FI
CertiPUR-USER B FUKBS585212 %) fy 7] [g]
W Fe RIAME L

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS

85



86

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERERHS

[~] BN
CertiPUR-US UK BS5852 standard
certification HEBS58521Z %
CertiPUR-USFZ &
2N ]
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Canada 117 standard
EREABREE100 MERTEE
[ [
—m |
—m —
| _ 4 | _ 4

Low volatile organic compounds (VOC)

EEREERILEY

The Group also places high emphasis on supplier selection. All potential suppliers are required
to undergo a comprehensive assessment on their product quality, price, timeliness and
ESG performance. We consider their business ethics, environmental performance and labor
practices through site visits and document screening in order to minimize ESG risk in our
supply chain. If the potential suppliers fail in the assessment, we will provide them feedback to
enhance their sustainability performance and engage them to be re-assessed in the following

year.

The Group also conducts regular inspection and assessment on its existing suppliers to ensure
product quality and performance consistency. To encourage greater sustainability performance
of suppliers, higher volume order is rewarded to existing suppliers with prominent assessment
performance, where possible. For suppliers who underperform in the assessment, they are
notified and an improvement plan is proposed. If they fail to improve within the proposed

timeframe, they are removed from the qualified supplier list.
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To further minimize the environmental impacts presented in the supply chain, the Group
prioritizes the sourcing of local manufactured material and local suppliers to avoid greenhouse
gas emissions released during the transportation of materials. Throughout the reporting year,

95% of the suppliers were from the PRC.

Local

¥

Number of suppliers

e E 367

Stringent manufacturing process

Apart from raw material quality, Sinomax is dedicated to ensuring the quality and condition
of the final products as its core strategy to gain customers’ trust and market share. With
this commitment, the Group has developed a quality management system and attained the
international certification ISO 9001:2015.The Group has established a quality assurance team
which is comprised of more than 80 professional members to monitor and ensure operations
comply with the standard operating procedure of the quality management system. During the
reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding product

quality and safety law and regulations.

The quality assurance team conducts spot checks on product quality in terms of
environmental, health and safety performance, including VOC content and fire resistance ability
prior to delivery. The products are tested in the ISO/IEC 17025:2017-certified laboratory and
testing centre to ensure the goods comply with safety regulations. On top of product safety,
the quality assurance team also analyzes defected items to design improvement and preventive
measures to minimize the defect rate and wastage of resources. During the reporting year, no

products were recalled due to health and safety issues.
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DaE

R&D Raw material Manufacturing and Delivery
i E procurement quality monitoring 2=t
Condhuct ngfesslional lﬁﬂﬁﬂ?lﬁ iiﬁilﬁﬂ Conduct spot check on
resean\:‘ ail’lﬁ ’eve:pment CertiPUR-US 1SO 9001:2015 Quality products’ environmental and
EATHRNR certification 7% management systems safety performance
Developed and registered Oeko-Tex Standard 100 HEHEERR HER E’J;gi%:?;;ﬂg?%%ﬁ
over 20 design pa;ems Eec] 1SO 14001:2015 Environmental TRs
BRI 72028 management systems Analyse samples at laboratory
IMBRRETER] éVOQ and CFCfree | REEERA and testing centres
FERERAREORMECH RS = A S ch D A A O
REZBUEREN 80 professional quality EEREMRH RO R
assurance members
BORHXHEBREME

Accredited Laboratory Z:2 ] B8 =

Our testing centre in Dongguan has been accredited to comply with the ISO/IEC 17025:2017
General Requirements for the Competence of Testing and Calibration Laboratories by China
National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment.
EMUIRRZAR PO ERETESKTEERATEESHNRAE - HFSISO/IEC 17025 :
2017 CRBIFREBRZENNBHAER) -
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Follow-up actions
IRETTE
Conduct analysis in defected items
and propose responsive measures
through monthly quality
assurance meetings
HIBRRERETON - MBS
BRANEERITRRLELER
Send customer satisfaction survey
and evaluate performance of goods
and services
BREPREEASLTEE RN
BRA% AR
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Connecting with our customers

Striving to deliver customer-oriented products with innovation, the Group realizes the
importance of customer engagement and connection as to understand their needs and
expectations. In this regard, the Group has established a number of customer communication
and engagement channels. During the reporting year, the Group has invited chiropractors from
the Chiropractic Doctors” Association of Hong Kong to launch a live stream on Facebook to

address the public enquires regarding spinal health.

RIE- g RELARS

HERMEZ

ATRANRUUAERAANER K&
BEHAAT OB RN ER
FNBRANREZEZ M -FIEME > £ &
BERUZEARFEEREHRE-N
REFEN FEECBRFEBNETE
HENEXBTEEREFRLETER
LUEEARE B RERER -

c Facebook live with the Chiropractic Doctors' Association of Hong Kong
HEBRRTERENSIRRENREEE
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To facilitate the well-being of customers, Sinomax regularly shares the latest health-related
news and updates to its customers via its retail stores, e-shop and mobile apps. In addition to
receiving the latest information, customers can provide product review or feedback via those
channels. The Group welcomes and values all views from customers. To ensure a systematic
approach, the Group implements the following complaint handling mechanism. During the
reporting year, the Group received 102 complaints. The customer service team has resolved all

complaints with care and responsive measures.

RTREZRHNEI BEATHBETE
BE -BFHENFHREREFOZRD
FHRRERNRMENANE - RT &
WRMEMN TRETUEBELERE
RUERERARB -FERTLL SR
ERFNRBEER AEAERMCUMEER
i AEERBUTRFEEES  NRS
FER AEEREIQRESH - FRRH
B EM DR MR IR A R o

O

01

Customer Service
Department shall follow the
customer compliant
handling policy's
procedures to handle
customers' complaints
BF IR ABELEES PR
BRIEBERHE 7 R E R
BRI
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03

The responsible
department is expected to
communicate and resolve

the issue in an effective
manner and in a way that
satisfies the customers
SEMPIEUBERAERF
MEM A ETEEM
HRR R RE

04

The department shall
generate a report which
consists of the cause,
measures, duration and
solution for both parties'
records
ZR P ERE — N eiEERE
- B~ FESRAZRTS
RMEMETERE

05

Filed cases may be
selected as training
materials to educate staff
members to prevent similar
incidents from occurring
again
SR8 ARG ] LUR R A
RHEEIEAE  UEREE
BAERMSM
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Consumer Caring Scheme
R0 SR aFat @l

In testament to Sinomax's continuous commitment to
elevating consumer care throughout its business, the
Group was awarded with the “Consumer Caring
Companies” for more than 5 consecutive years.

BETEMFEESREKTNAS  FAEEEMREF

Customer privacy and data protection

As a reliable and trustworthy company, Sinomax is committed to protecting its customers'
privacy. The Group has formulated its information management guidelines in the Corporate
Culture Handbook with reference to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. All staff members
are required to follow the guidelines when handling customers' personal information. In order
to prevent information breach, the Group has appointed an external information technology
auditor to check the security system and measures of the e-shop. During the reporting year,
the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding privacy-related law and

regulations.

UERBBERFEBHERRTH [BObE] -

FR—RAFNESEENAG BHER
NFERERNLR - FEEE2Z(BAE
K BABR) 561D - 7 (B ESEFM) hflE
HEBEBEE EXMEEIERER
FRBEANERE By BB TZES A
IEERINE AEBCSER IS EMAM K
B LB BEEFHENRLRAGRE
I o ¥ S B P 0 25 B R A (AT SR (R AR
RBVEESUEREM
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COVID-19 measures

The Group paid heed to the recommendations of the Hong Kong government in maintaining
strict social distancing measures. In response to the risks presented by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has launched the 60 Days Satisfaction Guarantee Campaign, offering
customers a one-time exchange within 60 days from the date of delivery upon the purchase
of certain mattress models. Under the Campaign, customers may try the mattress at home,

limiting face-to-face contact to deter the spread of the virus.

Sinomax places top priority in safeguarding the safety of our customers. In our efforts to
fight the pandemic we have launched bedding products with patented anti-microbial coating
technology. The technology effectively kills more than 97% of pathogens including but not

limited to E. coli.

Anti-microbial Coating Technology

hEZERE
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Apart from the Satisfaction Guarantee Campaign and anti-microbial technology, the Group has
implemented numerous in-shop COVID-19 measures and obtained the Certificate of Outlet
Anti-epidemic Measures Recognition from Hong Kong Retail Management Association to

protect its retail customers and frontline employees.

RIE- g RELARS

FRiE O RE S EINRE RITIN RERE
EfTFZIERMEER LESTEE
TEEEHEREN(EREEHRESE
) URERTERRHRBRET -

Outlet Anti-epidemic Measures Recognition

IESHPS & S TRl iR
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In-shop COVID-19 measures
T 81l B 9% 45 B

Provided hand sanitizers before retail customers try the demo products

>
= pRERN  BHETEEETRASRT

N Sterilized demo products with sanitizers and ultra-violet light before/after retail customer trial
BEEREMAE  LUESEBREMLEES

Required all retail customers to wear face mask and check body temperature before entering shop

ERFABEENENLMBOEREEERER

i Implemented store sanitization regularly

F ")

W =mEsEs
=
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PROMOTING WELL-BEING INSIDE OUT

Recognizing employees as the key to continuous business development, Sinomax strives to

provide a fair, healthy and harmonious workplace for our employees to thrive in.

Corporate governance

Sound corporate governance is crucial in maintaining high standards of business ethics and
integrity. We have established a stringent anti-corruption policy in the Code of Conduct as a
way to ensure ethical business practices. Every employee is required to sign and follow the
Letter of Commitment to Honest and Clean Business Practice to ensure they fully understand
the requirements. To strengthen corporate governance, we have provided anti-corruption

training to the HR and Administration Department during the reporting year

To further eradicate unethical behavior, the Group has set up a whistle-blowing channel for
stakeholders to report any suspected cases. The HR department is to investigate and report
the suspected misconduct to the Board in a timely and judicious manner: The HR department

determines the appropriate disciplinary action if necessary.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

all relevant law and regulations relating to corruption.

RIE- g RELARS

(RS LR
BEERINEIREBRELENERE

RERNHRETRM—ELF BERM

EH TRIRR

¢¥M~L\

RENECXELHERSRENBRER

MBEERBR - ZFE(THER) 2T
ABEERNRESBER URREHETE
EHEBER SUEBTHANERELET
(BEIAGERENERES) R ERMMA
TEERAEENER - BMBEEER
RMEERESEERANERMITEEFIRE
"7 RaEsEle

RE-—SHBABRTR AEECEAR
PERUFREE UEREMAIRES-
ANERBERF RATHMBAELAES
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Being a responsible employer
Labor standard

Pledging to create a fair working environment, we uphold diversity and inclusion, as well as
the basic rights of job candidates and employees. We actively promote equal opportunities to
create a diverse workforce. We do not tolerate any form of discrimination. Each employee is

treated equally regardless of race, ethnic background, gender or other social factors.

To further protect labor rights, the HR department is responsible for screening the identity, age
and working permit of all candidates to deter against any illegal or unethical labor practices,
such as child labor and modern slavery. In cases of any forced labor discovered, the Group shall
terminate the employment contract immediately and remunerate the individual accordingly. In
cases of any child labor discovered, the HR Department shall discontinue the employment and

provide the individual with learning opportunities.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

all law and regulations in relation to employment and labor standards.

Retaining and attracting talents

The Group recognizes its employees as one of its valuable assets. The dedication of our
employees has been the cornerstone to our success and the pillars for future development.
As such, the Group places high importance on acquiring and retaining talent. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages that is reviewed regularly with reference to the market, as

well as benefits such as staff discount on its wellness products.
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Employment breakdown

& & 5

Gender 512149

Number of employees as
at the end of reporting year

Turnover rate for
the reporting year

a BERESFEREIAHY WEFEEIRAE
ok
v Male B1% 977 20%
£ ™
\L Female % 1,104 17%
/
Working level B4R 215 Number of employees as Turnover rate for
at the end of reporting year the reporting year
BEREFERETIAH BEFEEIREER
Management EIE[E 40 7%
Senior £ZI2LR Rl 52 16%
Junior —RREEER 1,989 19%

Age group Eﬁ%illﬁ

2@%
ngﬁ

Number of employees as
at the end of reporting year
BEREFERETAY
30 or below 305%E AT 357
31-50 315X E505% 1,407

51 or above 51z LA L 317

Turnover rate for
the reporting year
REFEETIRAR
29%
17%

9%

Geographical location i EZ|4

Number of employees as
at the end of reporting year

Turnover rate for
the reporting year

BEREFERETIAH BEFEEIREER
Hong Kong &i& 163 17%
PRC E & 1,918 19%
Employment type E{EERI &% Number of employees as Turnover rate for
at the end of reporting year the reporting year
A BERESFEREIAH WMEFEEIRARE
o %
= L
= = Full time 28 2,014 18%
. P 2 _
\\ . " Part time 38 67 32%
\L -,y
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Continuous training and development

Keen to pave our teams' professional growth, we believe an effective training strategy can
help employees reach their full potential. The HR Department provides induction training
to newcomers and customized training to experienced talent to facilitate their career
development. With the aim to understand employees’ needs, the HR Department reviews the

training strategy in a regular basis to ensure the scheme aligns with business developments.

Specialized Machinery Operation Training

TR MR (R IR

A

\/

FHEEERER

AXFEBNBEER RABEENN
BIREEIUEHEIRDEEE - A
NERE DM E TRMHEABIEI AR
BEIESERABENEI LUREMM
MBXER -ATHREINEE ANER
B S E R RIS A AR B - 30 B AR AR B 5t B
ENREXBHRE-

Product Quality Assurance Training

EREEREE
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Safeguarding employee health

Employee health and safety is always the top priority of the Group. In view of this, we
implement an occupational health and safety management system certified according to
the 1SO 45001: 2018 requirements. Based on the international standard, the Group has
enacted corresponding safety policies and guidelines for employee to thrive in a safe working

environment.

As a manufacturer of memory foam, employees have to handle hazardous substances during
the production process. In order to minimize chemical exposure, employees are required to
wear personal protective equipment such as helmets and masks at designated areas in the
factory. The safety manager will perform regular check and maintenance on production facilities
and the hazardous substance storage to ensure on-site operations meet the Group's safety

standard.

Along with on-site safety measures, the Group also aims to enhance the safety awareness of
its staff members. Incident drills and safety trainings are provided to strengthen employees’

awareness on safe operations and emergency response procedures.

RIE- g RELARS

RIS THIRRE

ETNRENZE2 BERAEENEES
BEHEZE - BERILL > HPIBHAISO 45001 :
WISHRENHERRALZ2EER R
REZBEEEE AEBECDHEHEENT
2HRMES EEIAZENIERIE
TEEME

FRRERNREF BETHEERRED
FEREAEME -ATEENLEBEEL
En AEEEXRFFEEIAEIMEER
o A mEE AR EE > fli 2 28N
MEOE 22K EEEHRERERE
RMNBEEVEREE URFRERESE
FRERERNZE2RE-

BRRBZEERN AEBERNRESE
INZe2S# Z2BRHEIMNEBNZE
BFil REE THR2REMNREBRR
BREFHNEH-

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS

gl



100

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HERERHS

In the event of work-related injuries, the site manager is to report to the Administration
Department, which is to assign relevant department(s) to undertake incident investigation
as well as propose corrective and preventive measures within 2 working days. Following the

investigation, a reasonable remuneration shall be provided to the affected staff depending on

|

Emergency drill
BINEE

the injury severity.

Under the holistic safety management system, the Group did not encounter any case of non-
compliance regarding occupational safety law and regulations during the reporting year As
a result of the Group's effort towards creating a safe workplace, there was no work-related
fatality over the past three reporting years. During the reporting year, the lost days due to

work injury was 1,660.5, while the injury rate was 2.6%.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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COVID-19 measures FIEnE B IS BT b

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19, Sinomax has paid extra attention on the disease AEST BN BIERE  REHAERE
prevention and staff protection. The following cautious measures have been put in place to RANREETFERII B - BT EFR

better protect the employees as well as the local community: EETINMEMHE AEECHEBMUATE
HIETH -
Workplace COVID-19 measures
T B R s 1E o
Implemented flexible working hours
BHeH TS EHE
Office .
WAE R Sterilized the common areas with
diluted household bleach frequently
REARBEANHSHAZHE

Intensified online meeting and
teleworking for social distancing
EARMREFES RIS IR

At ¢

Provided epidemic prevention supplies
such as hand sanitizer and disinfectant
wipes for employees
METREEEYR - flm EEEF
B ESHED

Required employees to wear mask at
the office

ERETIRPLEMEOE

%w%

o

Manufacturing plant

B 5

6 Conducted anti-epidemic assessments to enhance

employees’ awareness
R =raTesmmsiEs . uEBRBERR

/% Established COVID-19 Prevention and Control Taskforce
U AT ARG R TR

D -\ Released COVID-19 contingency plan
B wHFEH LSRR

T Checked the body temperature and health code of every staff
when entering the workplace

HEETEAPRQEA - REABBRERT

%o o Carried out disinfection work every day

@ BRR2EESHE

=
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Company culture

Advocating a harmonious working environment, we strive to create an engaging and
supportive company culture. As such, we have provided leisure amenities for our employees
such as the library, recreational center, fitness room and games rooms in the Guangdong
premise. Demonstrating Sinomax's dedication to becoming a people-centric enterprise, the

Group is a signatory of the Good Employer Charter by the Labor Department.

National Day and Mid-Autumn Festival Party
HE B ERERE

L

To celebrate National Day and Mid-Autumn Festival, the
Group arranged a series of festive activities and refreshment
for employees in Dongguan.

REVBEESNIRE  AEMARTETIZHT —RIIEH
BSEENRIZE

ARXIE

REEMENITRE HMBNEER
FREBNARXIE-EHIL ZF/EIR
WA R ANEERREREESE
RERLREEMRLEE - AT REEY
UABENEEZ R FEEERES
TE(FEENE)

Table Tennis Competition

ERNLE

\ll
/l\

Sinomax had organized a table tennis competition in
Dongguan premise to promote work-life balance and enhance

employees’ communications.

BRERSMERPE TS ZIREE  URELRES - X

BEEST 2 HNBE -
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SHAPING A HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT

Environmental management

As a responsible wellness product manufacturer, Sinomax is devoted to mitigating its
environmental footprint throughout its operation. In light of this, we implement an I1SO
14001:2015 certified environmental management system to control and monitor impacts from
our operations including energy consumption, air emission, water usage, resources use and
waste management. We also implement environmental policies in the Group to strengthen
the management of the above environmental issues. To ensure continuous conformity to the
standards, an independent certification agency is appointed to undertake annual site inspection.
Additionally, we engage a third-party consultant to assess the wastewater discharged, air and
noise emissions generated to ensure our operations meet the regulatory level. In recognition
of our environmental performance, Zhejiang premise has been certified as a green factory
by the PRC's Ministry of Industry and Information Technology. During the reporting vear, the
Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding environmental laws and

regulations.

RIE- g RELARS

BIERRIIRIR

IRIREE

EAHBEANRRBERNER BRAWS
EEESEERPRVEREEH BE
FAUE > ZFE B AISO 14001 @ 20155855 AY
REEEZA WEHMESHMEER
EENEE QEEREE - ZRIE B
K BEREANBEENEE KMBREIAE
BRHMTRIEER  UINRY FRIRIEE
ENEEB ATHRREERERE K&
BEZE—EBRLINIERBETEER
Bolttsh HMTEBEE = HBEMTMES
K BRARSHIO URFRMANEER
BEEER AREHMANRRRER NI
BEEESTEIEMNEB/IBAEEN
BRGEIMAD - REFEN AEET
EAMRIREEBNBEIERES-

Green Factory recognized by the PRC’s Ministry of

Industry and Information Technology

PEIRNEEBEZENERSEIR
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Energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions

Sinomax is aware that climate change is a growing critical issue to all corporates. Aligning to
the PRC government's pledge to carbon neutrality by 2060, the Group aims to monitor and
control its energy consumption and associated greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Based on the
environmental management system framework, the Group has developed a number of energy

efficient and low carbon mitigating measures.

In effort to reduce energy consumption and carbon emissions, we are actively participating
in renewable energy integration. In Dongguan and Zhejiang premises, a total of 2,323
MWh energy was generated by photovoltaic panels installed on factory roof-tops during
the reporting year. The clean energy source has prevented [,433 tonnes of carbon dioxide

emissions being released through conventional power plants.

In addition to solar energy generation, the Group has established an I1SO 50001: 20| 8-certified

energy management system to incorporate energy-saving measures into its operation.
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Energy consumption Unit 2019

AEIRTER™ Eafu 20194

%ectricity JI\I;I{‘T,VI:‘# 10875
By 697
SIS 6.120
KT 394
Py 28

g?ge(lgngar;ufacturing) ;I- 23,413
SR 249

Energy intensity MWh / M’ revenue

R JKTLRS, EEKA 6.88

Note 1: The energy consumption of retail shops was not included.

Miz1: ZEBEEETEREER -

Note 2: As the production in 2020 was affected by the pandemic, the GHG emission,
energy usage, water consumption, waste and packaging material were lower than
the last reporting period.

MizE2: HR2020FMEEZEBRE  BERBHN - ORER - AKE - BEYEEM
BB E—REMBE TR -
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GHG emission @ Unit 2019
BERBBHERO @ ESfu 20195
b Scope 1: Direct emission tonnes of CO: equivalent
- EE1 : B (tCO2-e) 1,883
AW_E{LIREE
CO. Scpe 2: Indirect emission _tCOz-e " 9.076
2 EE2 : EEHER AW_ELIREE z
@ Total emissions® tCO:z-e 10.959
BHEHEY AW _ELIREE ’
ﬂl:lp GHG emissions intensity tCOz-e / M’Revenue 3.66
(o) BEYEHEE AW_FLHEE BTEBA :

Note 1: The GHG emission of retail shops was not included.
Mzl : TERERERBHFRTEBREER
Note 2: Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon emissions are referred to

“How to Prepare an ESG Report" published by HKEX. The sources of published
emission factors for the disclosure of carbon emissions are:

e Sustainability reports of the local utility companies (Hong Kong Electric and CLP)

* “How to Prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2" published by HKEX

e Greenhouse Gas Protocol's “GHG Protocol Tool For Energy Consumption in China”

Miz2 RERBHMGERENS Z2REBHMN (NAREERER HERERBS) -
BEREBHHEFHRES

o A NAEFRBBNITHEBRRRS (BREIREARLARPEEZERERLF)

o EBBRPIERN (MARRBERE LEREBMS- WEHE=)

o H RERIFFFH (REFEFESIENRERBI M E T AIER)

Note 3: The Group has enhanced the Scope 2 GHG emission calculation system to improve
the accuracy and comparability of environmental performance in accordance with

HKEX's “How to Prepare an ESG Report” and restated the Scope 2 GHG emission
of 2019.

MizE3 : AEBERET BTN (WARERE - ERE/RE)  HETHENEE
REFHRENERAR  URSREBIENERMEMATLLN - WEMT 20198 BFE&E
2BERMBIE o

Note 4: As the production in 2020 was affected by the pandemic, the GHG emission, energy
usage, water consumption, waste and packaging material were lower than the last
reporting period.

Mizt4 @ HA2020FMAEESBRIEHE  BEREHN - RWREA - AKE - BEVEEMBIE
E—RERETR -
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Air quality

As a visco-elastic wellness product manufacturer, Sinomax understands the negative impacts
of air pollutants such as dichloromethane, toluene and carbon tetroxide generated from the

production process. We are spending ceaseless effort to mitigate the problem.

In our efforts to minimize air pollution, we have installed several spray towers at the exhaust
outlets to curb the release of at least 80% of specific air pollutants into the atmosphere.
Besides, we have also adopted activated carbon adsorption devices and VOC removal
equipment at Guangdong and Shandong premises respectively to control the release of
gaseous contaminants. Moreover; our factories have been boosting the use of cleaner fuel
such as natural gas and solar energy to further lower the air emission. To manage and track
operational compliance, we conduct on-site air quality assessment at least once a year to keep

air emission levels well below the limit.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

air emission laws and regulations.

RIE- g RELARS

TAHE

FRERIERRERRES BETHRE
EBETEENEZRSAEY G _&F
e~ BAEMMEAEH) WAREE - HfI—
BREARBME ) REE B E

RTHEZRSR BAEHRORES
EEZE  UELEEDS0NNERSRY
EAZERT IS HATF DRI EER KLU
REERAEERRMEERELEEAR
EaMERRRRE > LUEHIBE R B - IL5h
RPN IBR-—EEERBREENER §
MRARMAGE  WE—FT B BERGF
B-#EEMERZEARL HASEE
VET-—RBESEREEN L EER
PR IR E

REFER > REBIL B EERBR
R E AR REMS-
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Water & wastewater management RkRKiEKER

The major source of water consumption at Sinomax is the chemical mixing manufacturing BEBKEFERMMEBRERERERF -

process. Despite encountering no issues in sourcing water, the Group places high importance BEARBAKIAZERIFEAMEE B

on water conservation amidst the global concern of water scarcity. With this aim, we have EE2HEHAKNEIT 2EBNESEE

implemented a number of water-saving initiatives or measures to reduce water use. REA K B I WAIE R Z HKE
HE s LURE Ak E

Reuse water at spray towers

P
® 0 EszRmBEamk

. \ Conduct daily maintenance to prevent water pipe leakage
W ETRREEURELKERR

g Turn off water appliances when not in use and avoid running taps
o W) reREEmAABA  LERARESEES

o 0 Keep track of water usage pattern to identify any abnormality
I e B EARE R

o Affix educational posters on bulletin board to convey water-saving messages to staff
EAER LA EEEER - LS TEEHKES

Prioritise the use of recycled water, rainwater or groundwater where possible
o B RELEABRK - FAKIHTK

. Encourage employees to bring their own bottle, instead of bottled water
BT RN - BABIZEBEK

Water consumption Unit 2019
FkE B 20194™
Water consumption®? m?
:@: kgD TH R 254,124
Water consumption intensity m3/ M ’revenue 84.79
[\ EkEE kb E =T {1 DN :

Note 1: Water consumption of Shandong premise was not included due to the breakdown
of water meter in 2019.

MiEE1: AL SRR MK SRS BE - BUtb2019F 2 AR BIS R BB ILRBENAKE -

Note 2: As the production in 2020 was affected by the pandemic, the GHG emission,
energy usage, water consumption, waste and packaging material were lower than
the last reporting period.

MizE2 : AR2020F A EZEBRE BERBHN - BORER - AKE - BERYEEM
B E—REFB TR -
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As the chemical mixing process inevitably generates wastewater with chemicals, Sinomax HREE2EABRETBREMTEES

implements guidelines and various measures to handle and manage the wastewater discharge Ko BRFECEMEEES NS BREMERE

with an aim to minimize the adverse impacts of the effluent discharges: MEETKEER R AR E MRS K
R TR E

Properly connect designated drainage collecting wastewater pipes from spray
tower and sites cleaning to local water treatment plant for proper treatment
and compliance

ERAS MR 5B RIER B EWTRE  BREEE LSRR
B ETEENEBENETER

Provide separate sewer system for staff canteen to sort out waste cooking oil
from municipal wastewater

AETITRERMUEBNT KBRS  UESKhIRBERM

Installed diffluence facilities to treat the wastewater prior to its outflow and
separate rainwater and sewage.

ZERSOMRNE - SRS KEBRAERAFTKD H

Conduct wastewater sampling and assessment regularly to monitor the
quality of the outflow and ensure the compliance to the regulations

TEREATSRERRARER - MAEEBUS KK E W R AR

Waste management BEEYER

With tightening regulations on waste disposal, Sinomax focuses on improving its waste BEEEYEEEENamE  RENS
management approach. We take initiative to avoid, reduce, reuse and recycle our waste. BLLEBEYEER L HMOABHKREMT
PR E L ERM B MNERY -
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A certain amount of hazardous waste such as waste machinery oil, chemical containers and
residue are generated from production processes. Improper storage, handling and disposal
leads to environmental pollution. Hence, we implement a solid waste handling manual to
instruct all frontline staff to handle the waste properly. They are required to separate the waste
by type and place it at designated waste storage areas, which are cleaned and well-ventilated.

Qualified waste contractors are appointed to collect and handle the waste in a regular basis.

In response to the generation of waste foam from the manufacturing process, the Group
has installed recycling facilities at all sites to collect and convert them into resalable material.
In addition to operational waste, the Group also enhances its waste management approach
by increasing the employee awareness on efficient resource usage. Periodic staff training is
offered to further promote waste sorting and recycling. With the effective waste management
initiatives, we have achieved an overall non-hazardous waste recycling rate of 87.7%. We will

continue to explore ways to reduce and recycle waste.

|
>|< — — -

TEBRTPEEL —TEHENREER
W0 BIIN AR 8 (E R B S MR ERY)
TZENHE BENEEGBRIRES
FeFIL BN ERRENREETMH
VIR BRIARE TIEREEREREY -
PEERBEDEERY UREKER
BENBRNEEENREER AEEE
ZEARNBEZRYROH T HNEMNRE
BEEY-

REVEEBRTREENERER &
EEEPA R E 2R B IR UIRET
REBEAUHENERMK [REERE
EMS AEBREBBRSETIEHA L
BHEERVEER Z - RMAMEIRMHEE
BRI LUE— S R B R Y 0 A B U
R - BB RN ERYEEE) R
EEE77%HNESERYEIURE - H IR
BEBRRBVNEIWERYN G -

Waste management training

R EIEIE T
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Waste Type
EEDER

Hazardous waste disposed
ERBNEEERY

3615

Foam recycled
Bl #5948

™ 7425
36%

General waste disposed

BRN—BEEY)
227 i
%45%
¢ 28% 3%
93 £ e
60 ?rw;é)nnes
Paper recycled @
EIRHILER
5765
Packaging material YR
ging

As packaging material is one of the major types of waste generated, we are working on HRBEEMHEEMEEEENTERSE
increasing the use of recyclable and sustainable packaging material to further reduce our Wz —> B IE 06 A oI Bl WA
environmental footprint. We select FSC (Forest Stewardship Council)-certified paper and AIFENSEYR UE—T R/ D FH M
relevant material to ensure paper is sourced from responsibly-managed forests. In an effort to REEH HMEELEZMEEZES
reduce packaging waste from raw material procurement, we procure refillable-packaged raw 05k AR SR MABRAM KL IR SRR B
materials instead of barrel-packaged ones. Following the procurement policy, the Group will REEEEENRM - BRD R RE
continue to promote the use of sustainable material in the future. TRNBERE RMARKARMENER
EORARESE - BERBHR ~&H
TR FE AN SR A R P T SR

Packaging materials Unit
BEMEIRER E5fu
Plastic tonnes
Bl i
Cardboard tonnes
gﬂ AR o7

BREEEBMRAT 200FERS
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Green office

In pursuance of sustainable development, we are not limiting our dedication towards

sustainability in our manufacturing processes only, but also extending our effort to the office.

We have been promoting environmental awareness and green culture in the workplace. In this
regard, the HR Department implements the “Sinomax Green Office Plan” to foster a green

office culture. Employees are encouraged to take the following actions:

Maintain room temperature -
between 24 and 26 degree

Celsius to avoid unnecessary

energy wastage .
ERRERFE24E26BKE :
Z B R RERER :

SEMAE

AXFARBER RATMERAFEHR
RESMANEBRET MEBREER
AMAER -RA—ERSLESANER
RERNGEEXE-EEHE ANERS
B IREGEBHAEE > LUEEERE
WAL WEEE THREILATITE

Switch off all idle electronic
devices and lighting systems
to reduce electricity
consumption
ETrERARBEEMEEFRE
RER

waste where possible

.

Reduce, reuse and recycle

EWRERD - ERMEKE

Print on both sides of a =9
sheet of paper to reduce
paper consumption

TEARSREEE 51 ENLUR D

To show commitment towards energy saving, Sinomax is a signatory of the Energy Saving
Charter organized by the Environmental Protection Department and Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department. We will keep exploring ways to improve our energy efficiency and

continue moving towards a greener operation.

112 Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report

Bring own cups and bottles
to avoid single-use
drinking containers

BB SR AR AL 15
—RMERR

AT RTHBENKSE BECRERR
REMREIREGMN(AENE) R
FREBRRESERNEMNTG % L#
BAERGEBNTNBE
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CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

Being the first enterprise in the industry to receive the prestigious ISO 26000 corporate
social responsibility certification, Sinomax has not hesitated to contribute to the needs of
the community. For example, the Group's staff volunteer team has actively organized and

participated in the following community activities to stand with the community:

Fighting against COVID-19
B DR

The Group donated anti-pandemic supplies including gloves,
safety goggles, personal protective equipment and
beverages to COVID-19 control checkpoint
AEMERBEHEREFRERMER (BF-RMFE-
EEBH  HERRRE)

Sending warmth in the cold winter

RERER

S

In December 2020, the volunteer team in Zhejiang has visited
the unprivileged families with necessities.

12020512 - TR TR RERERERS T 20FRFERE

RIE- g RELARS

HERAR

EAERBERERISO 26000 EH T ST
RENGE REBTHEREALEER F
N AEANETIEZEIBBEERHRSM
UTHEES St ERTRE .

2020 Community Clean Up Activity
20208 LR EE

In order to convey the message of environmental protection

and enhance public awareness, Sinomax has organized
several clean-up activities in Dongguan, Zhejiang and
Shenzhen respectively throughout the reporting year.

RTEERRENALRESARRREH - BHENREFHD

o PP e BIERR  LNAIGS T BRARED -

B XA

Sinomax volunteer team in Zhejiang went on a visit to elderly
care centre and celebrated Mid-Autumn Festival together.

BRI TR EGEER A RE L RETBHIE -
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Considering how economies have been impacted unprecedently in 2020, Sinomax has been
proactive in supporting the community. During the reporting year, the Group has contributed

approximately HKD 161,000 and 2,178 hours to the community.

LOOKING FORWARD

Encountering the challenges of COVID-19 in the past year, we have continually supported our
stakeholders with quality wellness products under the difficult times. A healthy environment
and community are inseparable from our goal to provide customer-centric products. We will
keep delivering innovative products to elevate the sleep health of our customers. We will

continue to foster a green and healthy environment and realize our mission, to become the

global industry leader.

RERETE200EZHAMAENTE,
BE—EEBTRHE REEFERN &
EECAHEEEL 61,0008 T2, 178/
B o

RERE

EBEN—F mE PR E B
g AAERERRTERENERES
HENRRER RENRRNLEHER
PREUNESANERZEREAT Do
Rt AR S EERMEINER LR
ERNERER RAREREEHER
RERIRE  BRAMOES  MAZITHE
HEERKHRE-
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

RS

Environmental Performance Unit 20200 2019

RIFRE B 20206 20194

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions®?®®

BERBHROOO

Scope |: Direct emission tonnes of COz equivalent (tCOz-e) 674 1,883

#HE | BEYN AE_AEREE

Scope 2: Indirect emission tCOs2-e 7,543 9,076

EED : B AE_HERES

Total emissions tCO2-e 8217 10,959

mErme AE—FERES

GHG emissions intensity tCO»2-e/M' Revenue 2.54 3.66

REREBHNEE RE_SEREE/BERA

Energy Usage® BEIRfEF®

Solar energy MWh JEELEF 2,323 2,245

KI58E

Electricity MWh JE LB 9,161 10,875

Natural gas MWh JE R B 480 697

RAR m® I 73K 44,366 6449

Manufacturing diesel MWh JEFLBF 227 249

LERSH Litre (L) F+ 21,349 23413

Diesel used for transportation MWh JEFLBF 1,959 6,120

BHAKH Litre (L) F+ 170,244 570,467

Petrol used for transportation MWh JEELEF 96 394

EBHBRR Litre (L) F+ 10,109 41,445

Gas R R MWh JK LB 0 25
ke AT 0 9,100

Energy consumption BE TR MWh JEELBF 14,246 20,605

Energy intensity SEJRZEE MWh/M' Revenue JKELEF/BE B UL A 44| 6.88

Water Consumption FI7K

Total S8 8 m’ LT3 K 116,151 254,124

Water consumption intensity Fi 7K 2 & m*/M' Revenue 1L /5 K/B BULA 35.94 84.79

Hazardous Waste B EEEY)

Total #85 tonnes Mg 361 354

Hazardous waste intensity 5 = BE Y= & tonnes/M’ Revenue ME/H B U A 0.11 0.12

Non-hazardous Waste & ZEEEEY)

Total 485t tonnes M 1,698 1812

Total waste recycled EEEYIE|INAE S tonnes MA 1,471 [,480

Waste recycling rate EEZE4)[0] I 2 % 87 82

Non-hazardous waste intensity = EEEY) % £ tonnes/M’ Revenue 0.53 0.60
HEEBBA

Packaging Material E3& 44t

Total #85 tonnes M 4,378 5,585

BEEBEERAA

2000 F E R &

(]
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R4

Note (I):

Note (2):

Note (3):

Note (4):

Note (5):

HERELRS

As the production in 2020 was affected by the pandemic, the GHG emission, energy
usage, water consumption, waste and packaging material were lower than the last
reporting period.

Gaseous emissions are insignificant to Sinomax's operations.

Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon emissions are referred to “How to

prepare an ESG Report” published by HKEX. The sources of published emission factors

for the disclosure of carbon emissions are:

. Sustainability reports of the local utility companies (Hong Kong Electric and CLP)

. “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2" published by HKEX

. Greenhouse Gas Protocol's "GHG Protocol Tool For Energy Consumption in

China”

The Group has enhanced the Scope 2 GHG emission calculation system to improve the
accuracy and comparability of environmental performance in accordance with HKEX's

"How to Prepare an ESG Report" and restated the Scope 2 GHG emission of 2019,

The energy consumption and GHG emission of retail shops was not included.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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Social Performance Unit 2020 2019
HERR B 20204 20194
Workforce Profile & T#1
Total workforce (&S 42 A& No. of people A X 2,081 2497
By gender Male 1% No. of people A 977 1233
2R 2 5 Turnover rate % 20 21
BIMRAX
Female M No. of people AL 1,104 |,264
Turnover rate % 17 20
BIRAE
By age group Under 30 years old No. of people A X 357 504
RERERE D 30BR AT Turnover rate % 29 13
BT RAX
30 to 50 years old No. of people A X 1,407 1,645
305% E505% Turnover rate % 17 24
BITRAX
Over 50 years old No. of people A X 317 348
505 A £ Turnover rate % 9 4
BIRAX
By employment type Management & 12/ No. of people A X 40 41
REEHLE D Turnover rate % 7 05
BIRAE
Senior A& 124k 7] No. of people A 52 64
Turnover rate % 16 \
BT RAX
Junior —fi B4R No. of people A X 1,989 2392
Turnover rate % 19 395
BT RAX
By geographical region Hong Kong &7 No. of people A 163 171
bl b) Turnover rate % 17 \
BIMRAX
PRC EIA No. of people A#f 1,918 2,326
Turnover rate % 19 40
BIRAE
By employment type Full time 2 B No. of people A% 2,014 2433
REEELE S Turnover rate % 18 40
BT RAX
Part time 35 No. of people A X 67 64
Turnover rate % 32 |

BIREAX

BEEBEERAA

2000 F E R &
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Social Performance Unit 2020 2019
HERR B 20204 20194
Occupational Health and Safety B ¥ EEZ 2
Injury rate per 1,000 employees & TS BT THE % 26 12.65
Lost days due to work injury I T8k TEA# Day HE 1,660.5 [,1335
Number of fatalities SET- A 1 No. of people A 0 0
Rate of fatalities JE T tE 2 % 0 0
Training and development 3 3| F1 % B
By gender Male 1% Training % 85 85
BIHRE D ZilBEDE
Average training hour 24 35
RATR R
Female Z 1% Training % 69 68
ZIBEN
Average training hour 15 29
RATIR R
By employment type Management EIE/E Training % 25 44
BEEENE D RIEDLE
Average training hour 2 18
23l TR #
Senior &L T2 4R 5] Training % 75 6l
ZilBEDE
Average training hour 4 26
RATR R
Junior — % B 4R Training % 77 77
ZIBENT
Average training hour 20 33
RATFR

Note (1): Calculation methodologies for employee turnover rate, training percentage and average HisE(l): BEIRAR -ZIEA LRI FHE

training hour are referred to “How to Prepare an ESG Report” published by HKEX. B S RIBEEARS 3
3 p port’ p Y YW ERE ST P 8 R AV (1M

Eane=)

RFERE HERERRS) -

Note (2): The Group has enhanced the average training hour calculation system to improve the MsEQ): FAEERRBEFBHIFERNNTE

accuracy and comparability of social performance in accordance with HKEX's “How to BERE HERELRE) W= T2

Prepare an ESG Report” and restated the average training hour of 2019. THEYSNHEAG LR EBEYE
BRI WELT20198%
AT R &
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ESGRB &3
Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
EBE REENIER it B, EH ¥
(A) ENVIRONMENT IR17
Al: EMISSIONS HER#)
Al General disclosure  Information on: Shaping a healthy environment
—RIRE (a) the policies; and EERENIRIE
(b) compliance 103
(@) BR; &
(b) HERERER
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Performance table s
B EE R AR R E - RS
Al2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where Performance table
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per B FE
facility). 5
RERBETRE CIEE) & (NEA)
BE MUSESE( 8RR H) °
Al3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Performance table
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per &R
facility). 5
FrELESREEYEE CUESR) k (NEBR) BE WX
SESE( SERMHE) °
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Performance table
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per &R FE
facility). 5
FRELBEEEYESE CUEtE) Kk WER) BE (N
SESB( BERMHH) °
AlLS Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Energy consumption and greenhouse
achieved. gas emission 104
R E T ER B R PTERR SERERREEREEHN
Al6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Waste management
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. EEEY)EIE 9

HRREEERESERYNG L REELENER
KFSMR

BEEBEERAA

2000 F E R &
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Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
BE MEEARIER il B EH B
A2: USE OF RESOURCES & iR {&
A2 General disclosure Policies Shaping a healthy environment 03
—RRIREE BR G RERIRE
A2l Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Performance table
electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. &R
per unit of production volume, per facility). s
REMB DN ERR/NEEER WE RIH) BFEE
UFETREHE) KBE UEEEEM - §ER
st 8 o
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Performance table
production volume, per facility). ERES I5
REKERTE WNUBEEE SERHEHE) -
A23 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Energy consumption and greenhouse
achieved. gas emission 104
R AE R A St B R IE MR © SERERRBEREHN
A24 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that Water & wastewater management
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. FE7K K257k 12 08
it SR EGE A KR £ RV A R BURAR A K
sHEIRFIEAR o
A25 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Performance table
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. VeSS s
N mPrAEEMENEE COESHE) &k (NER) 8%
EELEE-
A3:THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES IRIE R KA E IR
A3 General disclosure  Policies Shaping a healthy environment 103
—RIRE BR G REIRE
A3 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Shaping a healthy environment
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to EEHENIRE
manage them. 103

HREBAHRRRRRAARERNEATERCHNE
BERTENTE-
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Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
BE PREENIER B EH B
(B) SOCIAL # &
BI:EMPLOYMENT {&{#
Bl General disclosure Information on: Being a responsible employer
—RIEE (a) the policies; and a8EINEE
(b) compliance 9%
(@) B3R &
(b) HEERBER -
BI.I Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Performance table
geographical region. RV € 17
2R ERRE FRAN MR DR ESEH -
Bl.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical ~ Performance table
region. Ve 17
B FlREN KB B DHEERKRLLR
B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY R % 2
B2 General disclosure  Information on: Safeguarding employee health
— MR E (a) the policies; and RESTHEER
(b) compliance 99
(@) BUR; &
(b) HEERBER -
B2 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Performance table 7
ETEREMIE TR AR LR R
B22 Lost days due to work injury. Performance table 7
HIGHEEIFEHH ERES
B23 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Safeguarding employee health
how they are implemented and monitored. RESTRRE 99

R B R RERZ2HEE URBRRTAE
RI3ike

BEEBEERAA
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Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
BE PREENIER B B B
B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING % & 35l
B3 General disclosure Policies Continuous training and development %8
—RRIREE BR REEERER
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Performance table
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). RS |7
BRI REEEN MEREERE FREEES 3D
MZIEEBED-
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  Performance table
and employee category. BAUR 17
BRI R EEEHE D BREETMRINN TR
B4: LABOUR STANDARDS & T %8|
B4 General disclosure Information on: Being a responsible employer
— MR E (a) the policies; and BEENEE
(b) compliance 9%
(@) BR; &
(b) HEERBER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Being a responsible employer
avoid child and forced labour. BEENEE 96
TR SRR HI RO HE B o B T Ks8I T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Being a responsible employer
discovered. BEANET 9%

WA RIRER B R EE A BB P KIS BR o
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Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
BE PREENIER B EH B
B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT ff /i $ & 12
BS: General disclosure Policies Sustainable procurement .
—RRIREE HR BIFERE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Sustainable procurement .
ZHEd DR HERHE - BIFERE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Sustainable procurement
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how A IF 4R
they are implemented and monitored. 85
W E R A HEEFNES > mENTERIBEMRHAE
BHE UREMEANRATRERS %
B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY Z & & E
Bé: General disclosure Information on: Delivering health and wellness products
—RIEE (a) the policies; and RERBERFEERD
(b) compliance .
(@) BUR; &
(b) HEERBER -
Bé6. | Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Stringent manufacturing process
for safety and health reasons. BENTERRE 47
EENEEXER@YTRZ 2 BREFIERMERRN
Btte
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Connect our customers
and how they are dealt with. HERKE 89
BERRERRRBHNRFHEUREE S E-
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Developing with innovation
intellectual property rights. BT AR 2% 85
ot B 4 B R AR PSR L EE AR R ARV 1B 81
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.  Connecting our customers %
B EERIEBERERBORERF- BERHE
B6.S Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,  Connecting our customers
how they are implemented and monitored. BRRHE 89

HHCHEEERRERMLRER URERATRESR
J3ike

BEEBEERAA
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Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
BE PREENIER B B B
B7:ANTI-CORRUPTION R &35
B7: General disclosure  Information on: Corporate governance
—RIRE (a) the policies; and TEER
(b) compliance 95
(@) BUR; &
(b) HERERIER
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Corporate governance
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting & A
period and the outcomes of the cases. 95
RBRESHANRETANEESREY ESEENE 5N
ESEENE =PGRS
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Corporate governance
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. BEEAR 95
W SRR BRRER  URERRTRER S %-
B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT # &% &
B8: General disclosure Policies Care for the community 3
—RRIRE BR BRI
B8.I Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Care for the community
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). HERER 3
EIEMER WHE BEEE - BSIERER X
(- 9=)
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.  Care for the community 13

AFIRBAPAER WEHRAHFRE) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Sinomax Group Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sinomax Group Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group") set out on pages 139 to 299, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3| December 2020;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,
. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of

significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“‘the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Provision for inventories

. Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE") and right-of-use assets (“ROU
assets”) held by the US cash generating unit (“US CGU")

. Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment on trade receivables

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report

ERIER

BESEREETEGHMASRMB(EES
SHER) ((EREFER)) ETHES-BF
M FERRKENEEERRE L5
Bt A BRREAENSEI BORE—
pa b

BESHE ESMEGHNERRERTRE
REEMAESNESTERIEMER

=

il
W

RiEEAESMASH(FESMEET
AU (TpRU)) - EFB/URK EEE LB
BITTRIPNEMBEERSE

(il E

RREBESHFEEREESNEXRHE
AEARBGREMBRRNEARSER
MEE - BLEREAESEHNERRS
MHERERHARRBETREN -EF
TEHELEFRREMEBNER

EEEE PR RS SR M
T

FEREE

- ZERTELEU((REREESE
B MR- -BER®RE (M
X BERRE) UREREEE
(EREEE)) BRE

- BERURENEREEHRE (R
EEER)) T



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Provision for inventories

AR

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

2R MBS RRM 00

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross inventories of
approximately HK$634.4million and provision of approximately
HK$48.9 million.

R2020F 128310 EXERAFERENGI1BRETK
BENBIREHBTT

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of such inventories may not be recoverable if they are damaged
or become obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined.
FENENARIEEFENBREEGB - URLEEFER
BEB R WHHEER T A E AR s AURE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

Our key procedures in relation to management's assessment of the provision

for inventories included:

EERNEERN AN Lz ARREFEE

- Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of provision for inventories and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud:

— THREEERRGEERENARERTEER TEBEE
st 2 FRMERNEE R EMER BRERNKT (NEH
B EFRHEEERENMFHGRN) SHEEXRHE
RERHE A R

- Understood, evaluated and tested key controls over the inventory
provision, including those in identifying slow-moving and obsolete
inventories, and the estimation and review of subsequent selling price
against the corresponding cost;

— TR FENAGFEEENMRELE QEBRERNFIEN
REFENER URHRBERNAHREEBETHIRE
B
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Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Provision for inventories (continued)

FEEE (B

The Group’s management regularly reviews its inventory levels,
ageing and conditions in order to identify slow-moving and obsolete
inventories and assess if provision for obsolescence is needed.
Management also reviews and estimates, if necessary, the subsequent
selling price and the estimated cost to sale of the inventory and
compares with the corresponding carrying cost and estimated cost
to completion to assess if the net realisable value is lower than its
carrying amount. When management identifies items of inventories
which are slow-moving, obsolete, or having a net realisable value
lower than its carrying amount, management estimates the amount of
provision for inventories by assessing their ageing and conditions, or
comparing the items" corresponding cost with the subsequent selling
price.

EEETMRERATENKT BRE KRR > LR R R E
FE IR REA RRERE -BEETE L BRE
R RENEEU NG FEHEME 1 AEENIR
H ARG T IRAETLEE LML 2R3 ERSHE
REEREE EEEERNLFHE RENIERFERNE
REEBENFEEER BEEEBBIGFENRERRT
AREFENEEREAREEBETLER AstFEEES
o

We focus on this area due to the significance of the inventory balance
and, management judgement and estimates involved in determining
the provision.
EEEINEBRENENFEEREAREERBE I REE
FIER G5t
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

- Tested, on a sample basis, the net realisable value of finished goods, by
comparing the carrying amounts of the inventory items against their
respective selling price and the cost to sale subsequent to the year end.
For raw materials and work in progress, we also tested, on a sample
basis, their subsequent utilisation. For those inventory items which have
not been sold subsequently, we evaluated management's assessment
and checked to the source data on a sample basis, in which they made
reference to the historical sales information and performed research on
the market price information and compared with the estimated selling
price;

- RAMEAAUEBREEEENREEEANFEFRENEER
HEER BRAmIAERFEETIE  HRMHKER
mME ESTHEEERBRETHEANS - WNRERE
HNEFE EFTEEERNFGIMEZEREE  EPRK
FSERLHEENTHTIBEREETRE URHEERG
SHEBETHER;

- Attended the inventory observation to observe the inventory

condition;
— BINFEBRMUBEEFEERNR;

- Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of
individual inventory items by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices; and

— WHEREERRBENNER RASEHNFERERENE
it &

Based on the procedures performed, we considered management's
judgements and estimates applied on the inventories provision were
supported by available evidence.

BERFIATHER  EEFXREEEMEFEREM AR E k&G st
BEA/EESFC



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU assets”) held by the United States cash generating
unit (“US CGU”)

XEREELEMN (REREELEM) AFNYE -BER
& (ME - -BERRE) URERREE (EAEEE) N
mE

Refer to notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARG EMBRERMEEISKI6e

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets held by the US CGU were
approximately HK$272.7 million and HK$84.2 million, respectively.
120205 128318 REREEEBUMBHNE BERh&
BUREREEENREEDHIANRLTERATRAER
BIte

As a result of the unfavourable performance of the US CGU during
the year ended 31 December 2020, the management performed
impairment assessments by estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU which was determined based on higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.
RREE020F A HLFEXRAREETEURRRE
EEERBAFZREELEUNTIRESRETRET
i ZREEFADERATFERLENTREREEZTHER
BEET-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

Our key procedures in relation to management's assessment of the
impairment of PPE and ROU assets held by the US CGU included:
EERNEERN AR ELBUMFNYE BERRBUR
ERABREENAEFGZARREFEE

- Obtained an understanding of the management's internal control and

assessment process in identifying the indicators of potential impairment
and estimating the recoverable amount of the US CGU, and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud:

- BREEEMNANEZEREELBUNETRERR MG
stE PRI BRE T RRA A EES R ERER T8EE
Rt 2 TNABEENEEREMES RBEZENKT (N#E
B TEN 2PREEERERR AWML FEEXR
HRRENEBRERE ;
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Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU assets”) held by the United States cash generating
unit (“US CGU”) (continued)

XEREELEMU ((RAREELEM) FNOVE -BER
& (ME - -BERRE) UREAREE (FAEEE) N
i ()

The value in use calculation used cash flow projections based on
management approved financial budgets covering a five-year period
and extrapolate the cash flow projections beyond the period covered

by the budgets with a terminal growth rate. Certain key assumptions

used by the management include revenue growth rates, gross margin,

discount rate, and long-term growth rate. Management also performed

sensitivity analysis on the recoverable amount of the US CGU to

changes in the key assumptions used in the cash flow projections.

There was no impairment loss identified for the year ended 3|
December 2020 based on the management's assessment.
EREEHENREEEEMERELFRBNMERE
UEkAREBRIAEHNBHBAREMASHBRNREAER
A-EEEMERNETHRER BRBABER EHNX.
FRZURRAEERR) - EEETHEEREELEMUN
AREEEHRERERATPEANTIERREECHIREE
THRME DT - RIFEEE ML BE2020F 128318 LEE
B BERSRERE-
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Assessed the appropriateness of the key assumptions used in estimating
the value in use of the PPE and ROU assets. For revenue growth
rates and gross margin, we compared these assumptions to the
historical performance of the US CGU. We also obtained evidence
such as indicative sales orders regarding the expected sales which
were forecasted in the financial budget. For discount rate, we assessed
management’s calculation and made reference to other comparable
companies. For terminal growth rate, we compared it to the industry
research and market data.

SHERMESE -BERREURCAREENEREETH
ERANMRERNBEL - ARNBAERERENR EER
ZERRUEEAREELBUNELRFETLR -EETE
BETRE MWRARFHRE RN ERNENERIEH
BB -HRITRX EEAHEERENGEBREL 2 ZHM
AELRAR -HRRHKERE EEREATERERTS
HEETHER

Compared the current year's actual results with the forecast made
in last year to evaluate the reliability and historical accuracy of
management's budgeting process;
REFENBEREEREZENAAFLE MEHEEERFR
BEBENAREERELEREE

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
key assumptions used in the cash flow projections to understand the
impact of reasonable changes in key assumptions on the estimated
recoverable amount of the US CGU, and to consider if any impairment
loss would be resulted by such reasonable changes. We have also
checked the mathematical accuracy of this sensitivity analysis;
FEEEEN RS ASRATERNIERRETHREE
A AT BT ERRVEGEEHH B S ELEMURMGE
B ENTE TEEZBAEEHSEREMAES
B-BETRE T AEHRIEDWHEBERN ;



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU assets”) held by the United States cash generating
unit (“US CGU”) (continued)

XEREELEM ((REARSELEM) FIFNYE - BER
& (ME--BERRE) URERREE (FAREE) N
miE (@)

We focused on this area due to the significance of the balance of the
PPE and the ROU assets held by the US CGU, and the management’s
impairment assessments involved judgements and estimates.
EEEINMEER AR EZEREELEUMBHYE K
BERuEUREAEEEGHREAKREERBNAET G R
BRHERM{EE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

- Involved our in-house valuation expert to review the valuation
methodology adopted by management and assessed the valuation
assumptions such as discount rate used by management in the cash
flow projections with reference to market data; and

— BFEEAAREBGEERSETHEEE EREEERANG
ERx RFGEEERREEAERATEANGLERS 4
ITRE ; &

- Tested mathematical accuracy and considered the appropriateness of
the cash flows included in the discounted cash flow projections.

—  AEFAENERT TEERRERMRENREANRERE
HEE-

Based on the procedures performed, we considered management's
judgements and estimates applied on the impairment assessments in respect
of the PPE and ROU assets held by the US CGU were supported by available
evidence.

ERFATHER ESRAEEBMEER:ELEUMBYE -
T 5 T2 3%t DA ik PR AR B 72 B R T A P AR B 1 Bif Xk (4 51 2 PJ 19
BEX Sy
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Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) assessment on trade receivables

B2 RWHIANRRE SR ((TRREEEBHE) T

Refer to note 3.1(ii)(b)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 RREMBRRMEE. () (b)))

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross trade receivable of
approximately HK$694.9 million and provision for impairment of
approximately of HK$32.4 million.

2020128310 BXEHAEZERTIREERN498
BARETRAERENIERETe

Management applied the simplified approach to measure the lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The Group measured
the expected credit losses on an individual and a collective basis.
For customers with public financial information to assess the credit
rating, they were assessed individually for the expected credit losses,
the remaining customers with shared credit risk characteristics were
grouped into different categories and assessed collectively based on
their likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customers and their geographical location.
EEERBECAIBEMEESRUTENZMENBE
Bt SREEUENRAFEZEFERREERRE HNF
ARAMBEMALUFEERSMNER  REREHEE
FERHEEERE HEABARGEEARBEHENERBA
AEER REBEEWCRIEERRZ BT HERHEMIE
I B HREEE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

Our key procedures in relation to management's assessment of the ECL on

trade receivables included:

EERNEERYESRENENENEEERI G ZAREERFE

&

Obtained an understanding of the management's internal control
and assessment process of estimating expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;
BREEEMN G EZ BN BN RREERRERNR
G R RE R WBBE Bt 2 THABERENEERHE
MEERBRRARNKT &M THRE - ZHLHEERER
SSIEFFROSURE) sHEE RS RRARE R AR ;

Understood, evaluated and tested key controls over the estimation of

allowance for impairment.

TR STERZEHAERF G RIRREES



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) assessment on trade receivables

(continued)

B EWRENEREEHR (RREEER) T (@

In developing the loss allowances of trade receivables, the expected
credit loss rates are based on historical payment profiles of sales, the
corresponding historical credit losses rate, the external default data,
and adjusted by management’s assessment to reflect the current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
AHTEZBRRENGERERE RBAGEBEREXDER
HENELARRR HRELEEHER IHINBENHUE
TREEEEAMENRRREERT R BERBIRREIN
REEERZATRE BRI EELRE

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade
receivables balance and the management’s ECL assessment on trade
receivables involved judgements and estimates.
EFEINEBEN AN ESRRRBEREAREEREY
B 5 RWRUER TR E BB RS kA B 45T o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

For expected credit losses of trade receivables assessed individually,
with the assistance of our in-house valuation expert, on a sample basis,
we performed market research of the loss given default rate and the
debtors’ credit rating which are publicly available. We evaluated the
credit rating as probability of default which included forward-looking
factor as well as combining the loss given default rate, and compared
with the expected credit loss rates applied by management.
HRERFENEREZENRREERR AR GEES
KWRE T EFHLRIENERMEREHANERBTRE
THHRE - EERERTREABOBRTME AP EEA
BHERR TEAENERR TREEERBNRNEER
BRETHER.

For expected credit losses of trade receivables assessed collectively, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the management's grouping., We then
tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables as at the reporting date used in management’s assessment
to the invoices and other relevant documents. We evaluated the
appropriateness of adjustments for forward-looking information based
on the analysis of macro-economic factors, with the assistance of our
in-house valuation expert.
HRHAREEFGNEZBENENRREEREMNS &%
AT EEENENBE EERRHNEEENEEERE
MARMX RPN RS BN E S RETERIRE D7
EREETHENS EABEEERNHH T ERHEE
RERZNAN BTG THAREENETHENEE
fo
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Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) assessment on trade receivables

(continued)

B EWRENEREEHR (RREEER) T (@
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFTENEESR

- Recomputed the historical loss rate calculation and evaluated the
appropriateness and tested the accuracy of the major data inputs
including historical settlement pattern of trade receivables used in
the expected credit losses models, on a sample basis, to the Group's
accounting records.

- ENAERBEEEERNELERXFE HR SEENEG
sttt AWM S NFEIERARBNERNL  QERH
FEEREATEANEZBURENBTEERN LT

A

Based on the procedures performed, we considered management's
judgements and estimates applied on the expected credit loss assessment on
trade receivables were supported by available evidence.
BERFATHER EEXREEENEZ BETENEREES
BFHEFT BB R G5t BRI S EREX o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do

SO.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error; as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ HENR S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Albert

KW. Lee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEmkEtEERTR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE0F 12831 BIEFE

2020 2019
202045 20194
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5F F#ET FHB7T
Revenue N 5 3,231,701 2997321
Cost of sales HHE A 9 (2,607,886) (2,392,045)
Gross profit EF] 623,815 605276
Other income HAMUA 6 82,031 58479
Net impairment losses of financial assets B EZREREFE 3.1(i)(b) (1,932) (6,107)
Other losses, net HAthigs18 > 358 7 (25,554) (67,140)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RDHAS 9 (319,528) (393,686)
Administrative expenses THRX 9 (202,400) (236,065)
Research and development cost it 35 Al A (48,380) (58,237)
Finance costs BAFS AR AR 8 (39,050) (48,522)
Profit/(loss) before income tax PREFISIMAIEF] (F538) 69,002 (146,002)
Income tax expense FriStRmsZ 12 (7,948) (66,000)
Profit/(loss) for the year FNRF (E58) 61,054 (212,002)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hih2mEuks, (§518)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AR B S B E R AYIEE &
Current translation differences for foreign TEINEFEHYRNHEALE 2 E 28
operations 46,321 (6,699)
Current translation differences for disposal of HEHBATMNRIHAE R Z2E
subsidiaries = (9,623)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FRNEMEENE (BEB) 46,321 (16322)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FR2mEWNE (B518) 48%E 107,375 (228,324)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: THATEEFERRT (E58)
Owners of the Company KABEB A 58,523 (216,509)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R 2,531 4,507
61,054 (212,002)

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

maEmkHMEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2000F 2R3 BLLFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
By EE FHET TAT
Total comprehensive income/(loss) THALTEEFEFREZE
for the year attributable to: W (B518) 48%8 -
Owners of the Company KABEB A 99,549 (224,578)
Non-controlling interests TR 7,826 (3,746)
107,375 (228,324)
Earnings/(loss) per share sR&EAN (B8
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — B #E (B 14 3.34 (1237)

The notes on page 146 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4o A
g O =

MR RR

At 31 December 2020

2020128315

2020 2019
20204 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
By EE FET THATT
Assets BE
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment L E RNy ] ) 528,953 569,836
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 16 198,078 249,110
Investment properties BEYE |7 33,479 33,376
Intangible assets mILEE 8 14,733 15,374
Other receivables H e IA 21 82,109 136977
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 19 8,003 8,409
865,355 1,013,082
Current assets mMENEE
Inventories s 20 585,510 491,845
Trade and other receivables B 5 e E M EWERIE 21 813,930 559,476
Bill receivables e py) 78,168 55,553
Trade receivables at fair value through other FERHMEEREEAT
comprehensive income B Rz EZ WA 23 24,072 44,696
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITEM 25 10,260 1,791
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEBY 25 136,915 240320
1,648,855 1,393,681
Total assets BEERE 2,514,210 2,406,763
Equity R
Equity attributable to the Company’s TRTEEGA AL R
equity holders
Share capital fig 29 175,000 175,000
Reserves #H1E 779,511 679962
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RABIHEB NG 954,51 I 854962
Non-controlling interests PR 36 1,948 10,046
Total equity R 4EEE 956,459 865,008
BREEAMRAT 200FEHE 141
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIRRR
At 3| December 2020
72020 128315

2020 2019
20204 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
MisE FHET FHET
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEAaR 16 162,756 226,154
Deferred government grant 1R JIE BT # B 26 2,229 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIRIEE B 19 17,048 29,874
182,033 256,028
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENRIE 26 678,034 532,053
Bill payables i 3NESE 27 44,902 47 649
Contract liabilities =L =RE 5(iv) 12,559 466
Unsecured bank borrowings ILRIRITERR 28 547,224 622,863
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 16 75,468 59,429
Taxation payable FETFR R 17,531 23267
1,375,718 1,285,727
Total liabilities BE4EEE 1,557,751 1,541,755
Total equity and liabilities EamkEaEREE 2,514,210 2,406,763

The financial statements on pages 139 to 299 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22

March 2021 and were signed on its behalf

Mr. Cheung Tung SRIR St &
Director EF

The notes on page 146 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= BE =L 4=
AR
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE0F 12831 BIEFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FRRER NEGRD
Share Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital options  Translation Retained Sub- controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits total interests Total
el R

BA  RHEE AfHE FEHRE EXEE HE EREE FEEY NGt i a5t
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKSO00  HKSO00 ~ HK$O00 — HK$O00  HK$000
TEr ThEx TExn  TExn  TEx  TExn  TExn  TExn  TEzx  TEx  TEn

(Note (i)
()

At | January 2019 #2019F1B18 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 18002 1510 19427 (20236) 885,041 1,079,429 146414 1225843
(Loss)/profit for the year £/ (88) /i - - - - - - — (216509 (216509) 4507 (212,002)
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEFEEN

translation of foreign operation EREH - - - - - - (3039) - (3039 (3,660) (6,699
Reclassification of cumulative HE-HEREADE

exchange differences to profitor ~ EMDBRHER

loss upon disposal of a subsidiary ERERH - - - - - - (5030 - (5,030) (4593) (9.623)
Total comprehensive loss for the year R B EHE - - - - - - (8069) (216509  (224578) (3746) (228324
Capital contribution by FEREDTE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 390 390
Dividend declared to BFERERMERNEE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (46,258) (46,258)
Recognition of share-based DR AER

payment expense DEE - - - - - 1 - - 1 - I
Lapse of share options BREEN - - - - — (14879 - 14879 - - -
Derecognition of non-controling REE—EREARR

interests upon disposal BIPEREERER

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - S BT (86754)
Transfers of statutory reserve BRELERE - - - 19992 - - - (19992) - - -
At 31 December 2019 ®2019% 128318 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 37994 1510 4,659 (28305) 663419 854,962 10,046 865,008
At | January 2020 20201518 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 37,994 1,510 4,659 (28,305) 663,419 854,962 10,046 865,008
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - 58523 58523 2531 61,054
Exchange differences arising on HEBNERELN

translation of foreign operation EREH - - - - - - 41,026 - 41,026 5295 46,321
Total comprehensive income ERZENGEE

for the year - - - - - - 41,026 58,523 99,549 7826 107,375
Dividend declared to non-controlling  EI3FZ I RPIE KA &

interests - - - - - - - - - (15,924) (15,924)
Lapse of share options BRI - - - - - (936) - 936 - - -
Transfers of statutory reserve BRELTHE = - - 19,053 - - - (19,053) - - -
At 31 December 2020 0205128318 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 57,047 1,510 3723 12,721 703,825 954,511 1,948 956,459
The notes on page 146 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. F146E29ENWE R ZELREMBRRMN—

B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEDEEPR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2000F 12831 BILEE

Notes:

Pursuant to applicable People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer a portion of their profits after taxation to the statutory
reserve and allocation to the statutory reserve which shall be approved by the board of
directors of the entity The transfer had been made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve may cease if the balance of the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital of the entity. The reserve can
be applied either to set off accumulated losses, if any or to increase registered capital. The

statutory reserve is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in Macau is required to transfer a minimum of 25% of annual net
profit to statutory reserve until the accumulated amount equals half of its quota capital. This

reserve is not distributable to the shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7l'\ EE%/}ILE‘IEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEX0ENAINHLIEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
{Esd F#ET TFHET
Operating activities KEED
Net cash generated from operations REPRRIRE R 31(a) 140,867 402,122
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (B /REIEEFER (1,878) 1,572
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") paid B FERZEMER
(ME2EFRFHIE) (28,260) (26,635)
PRC EIT paid on the gain on disposal of a subsidiary T tH & — I B AR Z W
PSR B (R 2EPRISHR - (8,475)
PRC withholding tax paid B EENGR (11,409) (24,102)
The United States of America (the “US") BIREIEFRERE (=)
income tax refunded Frigi 15,356 219
Net cash generated from operating activities RS EHELIRE I 114,676 344,701
Investing activities KEEE
Payment for purchase of property plant BEME MERZRBHE AN
and equipment (29,428) (70,188)
Placement of pledged bank deposits EHRERFRITER (8,469) (1,791)
Proceeds from disposal of property plant HEME KRB R#&EZIEMRIE
and equipment 31(b) 16,774 259,024
Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits REERRIRITENR = 31928
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAB ZREMR 21 33,266 14,745
Interest received BWF 2 603 | 754
Net cash generated from investing activities CEEHEL ZIREFEE 12,746 235472
Financing activities REEE
New unsecured bank borrowings raised MEENEIEFRITER 31(c) 483,142 352,071
Repayments of unsecured bank borrowings BEEIRFRITEN 31(c) (566,486) (599,118)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEREaE 31(c) (70,518) (253,066)
Interest paid [SERERS 31(c) (39,174) (48,890)
Dividends paid BKRE 31(c) (44,051) (19,409)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests JEERERTE 31(c) - 390
Net cash used in financing activities A EE AR EFEE (237,087) (568,022)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERRELEEY (RL)
cash equivalents e hnEEE (109,665) 12,151
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FMRERRAEEEY
of the year 240,320 234435
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes PEREEFWEE 6,260 (6,266)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, FRIZRERIREZEEY
represented by bank balances and cash DSR1THE SR RIRE 25 136,915 240,320

The notes on page 146 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL

Sinomax Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
manufacture and sell health and household products. The Company acts as an
investment holding company and the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 35.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |, MegaBox
Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company is a subsidiary of Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”),

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Comparative amounts in certain notes have been reclassified to conform with the

current year's presentation.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS)
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical

cost basis, except for certain trade receivables at fair value through other

comprehensive income which were stated at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the

first time for their annual reporting period commencing | January 2020:

Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018

HKAS | and HKAS 8

(Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Revised Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

CQVID-19 Related Rent Concession

e RRMEE

TERHIEHE @
2 EBUEE ()
() EEmAE

REVMBERRDREBEESE
MAZRE EETEB
HitzmWmiR A TES
B2 B 5 B UWRRIARR S
WEDRRATFEIR

(i)  FEBEIRAEIATTRASE
sT2R

REEBER2020EI18I1H
HENEERSHBER
FER LI TN 2B BAEET AN :

WVISFHHERS TR
HaER IHRE
HSER
ERGHEN BAZEER
FIRRER
gLl
(BET%)
EENBRS
HRHIE3R
(1B31)
EEGHEN AExEE
FFEE 2B
PR EA
BIREEE
B %R
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EEMBREE AFEhmK
BI5165% B8R
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AR

EHIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FEEHERHEE @

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21

(iii)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments to HKFRS 16
Leases on COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions on | January 2020.

The amendments allow, as a practical expedient, thr Group,as a lessee,
elect not to assess whether a rent concession that meets the conditions
below is a lease modification. The Group makes this election shall account
for any change in lease payments resulting from the rent concession the
same way it would account for the change applying HKFRS 16 if the

change were not a lease modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
(i) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021 (for example, a rent concession would meet
this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 June
2021 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2021);
and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of

the lease.

e RRMEE

2 IEEHHEREE @

2 RREE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all rent concessions
that meet the conditions specified in the amendments. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised HK$!,691,000 as
negative variable lease payments in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the COVID-19-related rent concessions provided by lessors.
These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after | June 2020.

The amended standards and framework listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior period and are not expected

to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

New and amended standards issued by not yet effective

Certain new and amended standards have been published that are not
mandatory for the financial year beginning on | January 2020 and have

not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current®?

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Narrow-scope amendments!"
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

Amendments to annual Annual Improvements to
improvements project HKFRSs 2018-20200

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

O Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on | January 2022

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on | January 2023

e Effective date to be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 GEBREHE @

2 REARERRIRER G

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

REMBERREBEBEEIARFIUR

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the

Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. ARBEIREMBRABRESE
ENMHREK-
(i) Subsidiaries 0 HERE

WEABIEAERERE
HRZAMEER (BES
BIHEER) -ExEER
2 BB R 0J £ [0l K
TERRNEEREYNBER
ENBRHHBEREHY
TERFERSORE
AIREEESZERE- M
BABEEGRBREE
AEEEHERZERS
N Y EVNSREE 2
BRIEEAEELRS
fRe

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

152

Business combinations by the Group (except for business combination
under common control) are accounted for using the acquisition method.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

()

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated

statement of financial position respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in an “Other Reserves”

within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

e RRMEE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to

another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary

comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred:

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

. equity interests issued by the Group;

. fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement, and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity's net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The excess of the:

. consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an

independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial asset.
Amounts classified as a financial asset are subsequently remeasured to fair value

with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23

24

25

Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from

such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The executive directors of the Group are regarded as the chief operating
decision maker who will review the operating results of the Group on a

consolidated basis, and make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

26

Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars

(“"HK$") which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

26

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through other

comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@)  assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of

that consolidated statement of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)  Group companies (continued)

(b)  income and expenses for each consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

() all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

27

28

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at carrying values,
representing cost less depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their

estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, plant and machinery,
leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures, and motor vehicles are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight
line method to allocate their cost over its estimated useful lives, at the following

rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements, 0% to 33.3% or over the term

furniture and fixtures of the lease, whichever is shorter

Buildings Over the shorter of the term

of the lease or 35 years
Plant and machinery 10% —20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

consolidated statement of financial position date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised within administrative expenses in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less impairment losses,
if any. No provision for depreciation is made on assets under construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to

property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29 Intangible assets

()

(i)

Customer relationship

Customer relationship was acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life
and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses.

The customer relationship has finite useful lives ranging from 7 years
to 10 years and is amortised on a straight-line basis. Its useful life was
determined with reference to a number of factors, including historical
customer data and management's experience and industry knowledge.
Useful lives of customer relationship are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period by considering the changes in above factors.

Brand name

Brand name was acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the brand name is developed through years of advertising,
promotional campaigns and customer satisfaction. Brand name has an
indefinite useful life and is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10  Impairment of non-financial assets

211

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the follow

measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through

other comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

()

(i)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and liabilities and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI). For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business

model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iij)  Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or liability at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment

of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the

Group classifies its debt instruments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iij)  Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in “other losses, net” together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iij)  Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate

line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iv)  Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. For other
receivables and deposits, the Group applies the general approach in
assessing the expected credit loss. See note 3.1(ii)(b) for further details

of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured.

2.12  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future event and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,

insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
comprises merchandises and other direct costs. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services

performed in the ordinary course of business.

They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all
classified as current assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group, whose contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, were factored
to reputable financial institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement
according to the Group's daily fund management needs. These trade receivable’s
business model is therefore achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling of these assets. Such trade receivables was therefore classified as

financial assets carried at FVOCI.

For details of the accounting policies and impairment policies, please refer to

note 3.1 (ii)(b).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R G MR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 29).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. These amounts
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented

as non-current liabilities,

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawn
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as prepayment for

liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 IE

2.19  Borrowing costs 219

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax 220

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

220 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amount will be available to utilise those temporary differences

and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
220 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(i)  Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the asset and settle the liability simuftaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.21  Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until

the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit costs

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans which are available to all relevant employees. These plans
are generally funded through payments to schemes established by

government or trustee-administered funds.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

221

Employee benefits (continued)

()

(i)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefit relating to employee service in the current and

prior periods.

The Group also contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution plans and other employee social security plans, including
pension, medical, other welfare benefits, organised and administered by
the relevant governmental authorities in respect of its employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group contributes to these
plans based on certain percentages of the total salary of employees,

subject to certain ceiling, as stipulated by the relevant regulations.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus is recognised as a liability when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation for payment of bonus as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the

obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12 months and are

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2

222 Share-based payments 22

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the share
scheme option, including Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Employee share option

The fair value of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is

determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions (e.g. the entity's share
price)
. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance

vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an

employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement

for employees to save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

223

224

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations

may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management's best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to

the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods sold or services
performed, stated net of discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of goods or services is
transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and services may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is transferred

over time if the Group's performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. does not creates an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the

Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a

point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recognition (continued)

When determining the transaction price to be allocated to different
performance obligations, the Group first determines the service fees that
the Group entitles in the contract period and adjusts the transaction price
for variable considerations and significant financing component, if any. The
Group includes in the transaction price some of all of an amount of variable
considerations only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the

uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group presents the
contract in the consolidated statement of financial position as a contract related
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's

performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract related asset is the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods and services that the Group has transferred to a customer or
cost to obtain a contract. A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to a consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if

only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recognition (continued)

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the Group presents the contract liability when the payment is
made or a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the
Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from

the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue

streams of the Group.

(i) Revenue from sales of health and household products — Retail

For sales of health and household products through the Group's retail
network, which comprising self-operated stand-alone retail shops,
concession counters in department stores, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases and receives the goods at the retail shops and concession

counters in department stores or when the goods are delivered.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods and takes delivery in store or makes an order
online. Under the Group's standard contract term, the end customer has
no right to refund nor exchange for most of the household products,

including pillows and bedding products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recognition (continued)

()

(i)

Revenue from sales of health and household products — Retail

(continued)

For sales of health and household products on internet, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the customers,
being at the point the goods are delivered to and received by the
customers. Delivery occurs when the goods have been delivered to the
customer’s specific location. When the customers initially purchase the
goods online, the transaction price received by the Group is recognised
as a contract liability until the goods have been delivered to the

customers.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods and takes delivery in store or makes an order
online. Under the Group's standard contract term, the end customer has

no right to exchange nor refund.

Revenue from sales of poluurethane foam and health and household

products — Wholesale

For sales of health and household products to the wholesalers, revenue is
recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to and received by the wholesalers’ specific
location, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer's

acceptance of the products.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Revenue from sales of poluurethane foam and health and household

products — Wholesale (continued)

Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.

Under the Group's standard contract term, the customer has no rights to
return once the goods are accepted by the buyers. The Group generally

allows a credit period ranging from 7 days to 120 days upon delivery.

2.25 Earnings per share

(i

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing;

the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

225 Earnings per share (continued)

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination

of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the weighted
average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been

outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

2.26 Leases

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated

on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions,

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group s a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease

and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease

component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease

incentives  receivable

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially

measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees
. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain

to exercise that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects

the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also

included in the measurement of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group where possible, uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Short-

term leases are leases with a lease term of |2 months or less.
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AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

226

227

Leases (continued)

As a lessor

The Group classifies all leases as operating leases as the Group will not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor, is
recognised within “other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for

assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values when there is a
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Group will comply

with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary to

match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
the senior management of the Company under policies approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units to cope
with overall risk management as well as specific areas such as market risk, credit

risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Market risk

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China (“the PRC"),
Hong Kong, United States (“the U.S.”) and Vietnam.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Market risk (continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The functional currency of the Hong Kong reporting entities
is HKD and the transactions are mostly denominated in HKD
and United States dollar (“USD"). For transactions or balances
denominated in USD are reasonably stable with the HKD under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the directors are of the opinion
that the Company does not have significant foreign exchange
risk, the exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates will only arise
from the translation to the presentation currency of the Group.

Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The functional currency of the PRC reporting entities is Renminbi
(“RMB") and the transactions are mostly denominated in RMB
and HKD.The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control

promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Market risk (continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The functional currency of Vietnamese reporting entities is
Vietnamese dong (“VND") and the transactions are mostly
dominated in VND and USD. The conversion of VND into foreign
currencies is subjected to the rules and regulation of the foreign

exchange control promulgated by the State Bank of Vietnam.

As majority of the transactions are denominated in the functional
currencies of the respective entities. The Groups has no material
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and does not

have material exposure on foreign exchange risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Market risk (continued)

(b)  Interest rate risk

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group's borrowings and receivables
are carried at amortised cost. The Group monitors closely its
interest rate exposure by maintaining an appropriate floating
rate on borrowings and considers hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. The position is regularly
monitored and evaluated by reference of anticipated changes in

market interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Market risk (continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2020, if interest rate
had increased/decreased by 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis
points) with all other variable constant, the Group's post-
tax profit and total comprehensive income would have been
approximately HK$2,239,000 lower/higher (2019: post-tax loss
and total comprehensive loss would have been approximately
HK$2,586,000 higher/lower).

(i) Credit risk

@

Risk management

Credit risk arises if a customer or other counterparty fails to meet
its contractual obligations. The credit risk of the Group mainly
arises from trade and other receivables and deposits with banks

and financial institutions.
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AT IR R MIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

@

Risk management (continued)

The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure
to any financial institutions. Substantially all the deposits in banks
are held in reputable financial institutions located in Hong Kong
and the PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality and management does not expect any losses arising from

non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to large or long-established customers with good
repayment history comprise a significant proportion of the total
sales. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and

other receivables falls within the recorded allowances.

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report

3

MBRERERE (B

3l

MEBERER (8

U

EEmE (&)

@

BEEE (&

AL EFE BRR
i 28 B 1E 7 & R 1%
BREERRE &&E
BAREHRITEM
DEAEERTE
FESENTRK
B EEERARH
TREENEED
ERY BHAEH
RZEHFHAE
MOAMELEEM
e

AEBTRBEBR
LEROEEESE
EETHNERH
EEm-MEBGR
fFEME AR
ARAEFHEN
HEBBNEZE
7o AERBE T
B 5 K E fth FE W
TE B9 45 B 30 4 B W
SCERBY S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the

expected credit loss model:

. trade receivables at amortised cost,

. bill receivables, other receivables and deposits

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment

loss was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Trade receivables at amortised cost

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics

and the days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of 12 months and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within the period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product index of the countries, export index,
and Consumer Price Index to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjust the historical loss rate based on

expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses of financial assets in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited

against the same line item.

The Group uses two categories for those trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss allowance is

determined for each of those categories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

For trade receivables relating to corporate customers,
which are listed entities with satisfactory credit history, are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. As at 3|
December 2020, the balances of such individually assessed
trade receivables and the corresponding loss allowance are
HKS$ 111,271,000 and HK$388,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBEBER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) W)  EERE (&)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) ) EHEELRE (B
() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued) () IREIHRAE
B E5RNK
A ()
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis HEF=EH
EERE
Other than those trade receivables which were assessed PRz E BT
by individual basis, trade receivables have been grouped HH B 5 eI
based on shared similar credit risk characteristics and the RIEN B S
days past due. FEWRIETH 1R
BHAENEM
EERBFE
K a B R BUE
T4
The following tables present the balances of gross carrying TREHR
amounts and loss allowance in respect of the collectively 20205 12831
assessed trade receivables as at 31 December 2020: HAERMEET
HHE 5 W
MIAMREE
BB REBER
SR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBEBER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) W)  EERE (&)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) () EHEENEE (B
(i) Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued) ()  REIER AT
EZERENR
MIE (&)
Past due
k.l
Not ~ Within 3160 6190  91-120 121360  Over
yetdue 30 days days days days days 360 days Total
3B GE O 9E ONIE B8
31 December 2020 00ENA3I1H WABH A 0B A  120B 3608 360B A
HKF000  HKF000 HKS000 HK$000 HKF000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TEr TErx TEx TErx TEx TEx TErx TExn
Trade recelvables ERRYE 400620 85151 20564 3032 14180 8329 17767 583644
Expected loss rate HEER 07%  08%  S57%  115%  194%  675%  842%  55%
Loss allowance BEERE 2731 716 1225 400 2746 567 14963 32009

For 2019, the expected loss rate is 7%, provision
amounting to HK$30,751,000 was provided for the gross
trade receivables balances of HK$437,611,000.

BEEBEERAA

20194 > &
HBEBRXS
7% ERABE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

MBRERERE (B

3 MEEBREZ @

) EERE &)

b) EHEENRE B

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued) () RS AE
B E5RNK
0B ()

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 3l RI12B31HH
December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as B2 rWIE
follows: BEREER
MEEEES
RUF
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Opening loss allowance at | January 5318 | BBVEBYI RS I8 54 30,751 24913
Increase in loss allowance recognised Rt IEm R
in profit or loss during the year SR B 18,802 19,111
Receivables written off during FRRBEWREM
the year as uncollectible 14 FE WA B (16,870) (13,004)
Exchange differences ERER (266) (269)
Closing loss allowance R12A3I HNER B IEEE
at 31 December 32,417 30,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual

payments for a period of greater than 360 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within statement of profit and loss.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited against the same line item.

3

MBRERERE (B

3 MEEBREZ @

) EERE &)

b) ZTHEELFE (&

BB A st
B2 BRI
oA ()

R E&EA
s [o] 78 HA B
hiE B 5 e
FE-WESE
Ea el A
BREE (H
PEE) BB
ANEZEARE
BER BN
2 Rm AR
360K i % {F
BRI

8 5 [ W e
MR E R
REBE@ERAF
HBERBER
B R HE
Ut (2138 1 i 85
MIETh A
FIEH °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring facilities
to manage the credit risk of its trade debtors. As at 31
December 2020, trade receivables of approximately
HK$24,072,000 (2019: HK$44,696,000) was subject
to non-recourse factoring arrangements and therefore

derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include bill
receivables, other receivables and deposits. Management
considers that the credit risk of these balances has
not increased significantly since initial recognition with
reference to the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected credit losses

which was immaterial.

3

MBRERERE (B

3 MEEBREZ @

) EERE &)

b) EHEENRE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBEBER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) W)  EERE (&)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) () EHEENEE (B
(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (continued) (i) YEIER AT
ENHEHME R
BE (8
While cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and BERE KRR
pledged bank deposits are also subject to the impairment TEBYT
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss HEFKRBR
was immaterial. BIRITERD
BETERY
BREER S
9 5% By Rl B Z
X -BERTE
Ay E B 1R I
AEK-.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HBERER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) W)  EERE (&)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) () EHEELNRE (B
(iii)  Liquidity risk (i RBEZRER
With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims BIEE RN
to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and ensure HUHRERE
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of B, xEEN
available financing, including short-term bank borrowing. BERERERE
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, MR IR
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining TEEY L
adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents and BBEEREH
flexibility in funding through having available sources of RITERER
financing. NEHNHEN
o] A R S R R
REEZHFAA
1o B AR
eSS EIECy
B oAEEE
BEF NN
REkRESE
BYIREFE
EHEEM
WEBEST
RE TR
REFEEH
BAE-
As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents F22020%F 128
of the Group approximated HK$136,915,000 (2019: 3IEKEH
HK$240,320,000). WRERRE
FBEBMOR
136,915,000/
70 (20194 ¢
240,320,000
7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires a term loan that
contains a clause that gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time shall be classified in total
by the borrower as current in the statement of financial
position. This is irrespective of whether a default event
has occurred and notwithstanding any other terms and
maturity stated in the loan agreement. As at 3| December
2020, borrowings of approximately HK$27,096,000 (2019:
HK$142,137,000) was classified as current liabilities due to

this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 HERBEER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) ) EEEE &)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) ) ZHBENEE )
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i REBEZEMR
@
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's EEEREE
liquidity reserve (comprising the undrawn borrowing HREREE
facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents (note 25) EAEERDN
on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally BB B
carried out at local level in the operating companies of the (BEXRRER
Group, in accordance with practice and limits set by the MEEBHEE)
Group. These limits vary by location to take into account URREHER

the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In
addition, the Group's liquidity management policy involves
projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these,
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal

and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt

financing plans.

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBEBER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) W)  EERE (&)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) b) HEENRE B)
(iiiy  Liquidity risk (continued) (i RBEEER
(&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities TRUAEER
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining NEmaER
period at the end of the reporting period to the R AR
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the AR HRE
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. HREELHE
HA B B9 I % HA
BET DM
RPRENE
BERARBES
WIREME
On demand Total
or within One to Two to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years five years  cash flows amounts
BREXRH AERRE
—£R  —ERE ZELE BRI RELE fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TAT FER TiEx TAT FER
At 31 December 2020 12020% 128318
Trade and other payables B REM
NE 607,795 - - - 607,795 607,795
Bill payables ISNESE 44902 = - - 44902 44902
Lease liabilities HEAE 81,433 47,738 74,053 68419 271,643 238224
Bank borrowings HITEN 564,966 - - - 564,966 547,224
1,299,096 47,738 74,053 68419 1,489,306 1,438,145
At 31 December 2019 120195128318
Trade and other payables BAREM
BfRIE 43799 - - - 43799 43799
Bill payables BHEE 47649 - - - 47649 47649
Lease liabilities RE&R 74476 146,394 16542 109,060 346472 285,583
Bank borrowings SRITER 645,115 - - - 645,115 622,863
1,205,232 146,394 16,542 109,060 1477228 1,394,087
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to
continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry,
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which calculated
as net debt divided by total equity (as shown in the balance sheet, including
non-controlling interests). Accordingly, the net debt to equity ratio as at 3|

December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

e RRMEE

3 MEBERER @

32

BAER

AEEEREAZBERARE
AEERBEEENEN UF
BRRRERLBRBEMET
MEFRNTUREFREE
ARBLUB D ERRAE

AEFNBABREARERE K&
EARERCFRENRES
B OREREER BTHMR
FHEEELUR D BEF -
ART—BAEEREBEE
BEXEEEA BEAREE
LFaEMRUEBREE WEE
BEXRN BEFERER)
stH o AL 722020F K 2019F
B3I HNFEEHEELEE
W

2020 2019

20204 201945

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT TATT

Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRIRITER 547,224 622,863
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED (136,915) (240,320)
Net debt FEIE 410,309 382543
Total equity AR 956,459 865,008
Net debt to equity ratio FEEHEELEE 43% 44%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 by level of inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure the fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels

within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1);

inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data. (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33

Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets carried at fair value as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

3 BAERER

33

4= AR
17 (=

ATk R MI5E

T8 @

DFEME @

TERENAKEEBR2020F K
2019F 12831 HIZ A FEFER
ZEREE

Valuation technique
and key inputs
f{E TR
TEHAE

Sensitivity

BRE

Fair value
Financial asset Fair value as at hierarchy
TREE RUTHRZATE ATERER
31 December 3| December
2020 2019
20204 20195
12A31H 128318
Trade receivables at FVOCI 24,072 44,696  Level 3
BEHEMEEE =
BATEIRZ
B2 EUIE

There were no transfers between levels |, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value

measurements during the year. For transfer into and out of level 3 measurement

see (iii) below.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy

levels as at the end of the year

* Discounted cash flows

RERFEERE

* Estimated settlement
period from these
trade receivables and
risk adjusted discount
rates of 1.23% to
2.73% (31 December
2019:3.13% to 4.35%)
per annum quoted by
the banks

RITMRzZEES

FEWRRIR Z 45 &

1 BAR R L Ben 5B 2 47

REATEIBUE

2.73% (2019 12831

B :3.13%E435%) °

A slight increase in risk-
adjusted discount rates
used would result in a
slight decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
P66 FA B /2 i 5B 2 47
REEH EAREY
NTEEMRLD R
2R e

A slight increase in
estimated settlement
period used would
result in a slight
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa

PR {sE RO (& 5B 1T HA
/g EARERA
TENERL O RZ
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mE—MR

P

F_MKRE=RZ

ﬁﬁ#%ﬁ°ﬁ%%k&%ﬁ

k)——i\

_n

Y(in) °

AEBRNBRDEFERIA

RETERHS

FEE2ET

73/'\

TERGRZENEERY -

BEEBEERAA

2000 F E R &

213



214

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT IR R MIEE

4= A
777 R |

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33

Fair value estimation (continued)

()

(i)

Financial instruments in level |

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the statement of financial position date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, price services
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly

occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument

is included in level 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments at FVOCI
includes the present value of the estimated future cash flows at the fixed

rate stated in factoring agreements plus LIBOR.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the

years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019.

3

e RRMEE

MBRERERE (B

33

AFEE @
(i) E=FHEHIA

W—EHZREEARSHIL
FERABRETR G AR
AZEMIRIAS=E
R e

ARFEEBEMEZEIE
R ATEIERNERT
AR EGERMEER
REHZTRENEER
REFARRESREN
BEM EHBRITEAZES

%

TRENHEE2020F K
2019F12A3IHNE=R
TAMEE-

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHBT

As at | January RIAIH 44,696 87,769

Additions NE 462,570 682,770

Disposal HE (483,322) (725,694)
Fair value change recognised REME GRS 2 AT ESE

in other income 128 (149)

As at 31 December ®12A31H 24,072 44,696
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which,

by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise

judgement in applying the group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

@)

(b)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group's past historical data, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key

assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 3.1(ii)(b).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated cost to completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. Management

reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and

intangible assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment;
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates. Management
judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly in assessing; (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as

a result affect the Group's financial condition and results of operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognized when management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilized. Where the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in

the period in which such estimates are changed
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group's internal report in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating

segments based on these reports.

The Group is currently organised into the following three geographical markets as

follows:

China market Manufacture and sale of health and household products
and polyurethane foam for customers located in the

Mainland China (“the PRC"), Hong Kong and Macau.

North American market ~ Manufacture and sale of health and household products
for customers located in the United States (“the U.S."),

Canada and other North American countries.

Europe and other overseas Manufacture and sale of health and household products
markets and foam for customers located in overseas except for
those customers located in the China market and North

American market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

()  Segment revenue

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by operating and reportable

segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

WA RDEER @@
0  DEKA
TXEHEEERAKRITRS

DERE DBV A EEWRABI DA

HE2020F 12831 HILEE

Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets Total
BRMN R B Ath
FETS EENS BINHIE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
External sales HIMNHE 1,649,701 1,372,313 209,687 3,231,701
Cost of sales HE R (2,607,886)
Other income Hr A 82,031
Net impairment loss TREEZHEBEBEZE
of financial assets (1,932)
Other losses, net HhEsis 28 (25,554)
Selling and distribution expenses S5 KD EHRI % (319,528)
Administrative expenses THRX (202,400)
Finance cost PR A (39,050)
Research and development cost B85 AR 2K (48,380)
Profit before income tax PRETSIR AT A 69,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 WARSEER @
(i)  Segment revenue (continued) 0  IEUA @
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE2019F12B3IHILEE
Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets Total
BOM R E A
PEIT S EEMS BINTIS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TAET FTHET FTHET

External sales HIMNEE 1,849,128 1,064,520 83673 2997321
Cost of sales HE A (2,392,045)
Other income Htnr A 58479
Net impairment loss EHMEEZHERERE

of financial assets (6,107)
Other losses, net HhEs18 - 358 (67,140)
Selling and distribution expenses 5 K 388 5 &2 (393,686)
Administrative expenses THRX (236,065)
Finance cost MR (48,522)
Research and development cost  iff 2% A 2% (58,237)
Loss before income tax PRETISIRAIEE (146,002)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

AR EBER (&)

i ERENKmAS

(a)  Type of major products @) ETEERHEEY
Revenue recognised at a point in time during the year is as follows: T PO 5 1 BR5 ] B e 520
W
2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Sales of health and household products  #HE BERKEEMR 2,054,608 1,775,802
Sales of polyurethane foam HERAREK 1,177,093 1221519
Total 85t 3,231,701 2,997,321
(b)  Geographical markets (b) HFEHE
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is AEBERBIIBERUA

presented based on the location of the retail shops and concession

counters or location of customers for wholesales.

MERDRETTERE
NEEERTERRBIE
M ETHENTRRAE
MFLUES o

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
China market HE 5
—The PRC —fE 1,311,310 459,149
— Hong Kong, Macau and others — &8 B REMM S 338,391 389,979
North American market EETH
~The US. —%E 1,269,099 941,840
— Others —HAth 103,214 122,680
Europe and other overseas markets BN R H I 5 209,687 83,673
Total 4mst 3,231,701 2,997,321
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i)  Other segment information

@)

()

Geographical information

Information about the Group's non-current assets (excluding other
receivables and deferred tax assets) is presented based on the

geographic location of the assets:

e RRMEE

WA RS ERER ()
i) EfthoErEr
@) HEEH
AEEFRRDEE (78

EHAMEWRIRRIEER
BHEE) WEHDNREE

IR EFURT
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The US. ESE| 370411 446,127
The PRC s 329,712 328954
Hong Kong P 19,130 22034
Vietnam iEs) 59,400 74493
Macau JEPY 4 621
778,657 872,229

Information about major customer

Revenue from a customer in the North American market contributing

over 10% of the total revenue to the Group during the years are as

b EFEEFEHEN

RERRBILETH—
IEFHBA (EREE

follows: BAWABI0% )|
.
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAT
Customer A ZAA 323,451 361,790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

(iv) Liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

AR EBER (&)
v ERENERN&RE

FEBCHEIUTREREN

customers: BRENERE:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHTT
Receipt in advance from customers for the sales FTAWEFENBERREBERBER
of health and household products 12,559 466
(a)  Significant changes in contract related assets and liabilities (@) BEREAEEREEBHELX
1

Contract liabilities mainly represent advance payments received from

customers related to retail sales in Hong Kong and PRC. Contract

liabilities increased mainly due to increase in retail, wholesales and

exporting sales of which deposits were received from various individual

customers or wholesaler in PRC.

(b)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the

year related to carried forward contract liabilities.

®)

BRNERI2ERERK
DAEBRTETER
AEMM - anaRE
MPBEBHRTE HE 3
MHOFERE R WE
REFEXERBAZF N
AR BIR BRI

BRREBMIERZK
A

TRIRER RS RAEE
ENERERENBRAE
o

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHBT

Sales of health and household products  #HEBRERKEER 466 893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

OTHER INCOME Hituhzs
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest income from bank deposits REBFTERFBHA 414 1,754
Interest income from cash consideration receivables RERBIREREZHERA 2,876 -
Imputed interest income from rental deposits HERE Z At BBA 1,003 1,404
Interest income from investment in subleases BENEZFEWA 189 -
Government subsidies (note a) B RaRG (Fifsta) 40,831 3219
Rental income HEWA 11,669 14,145
Scrap sales EERLEH & 22,479 33,458
Others Hith 2,570 4499
82,031 58,479

Notes: MsE

(@  The amount mainly represents salaries and wages subsidies received from the

governments for the use of paying wages of employee during the year due to

COVID-19. It also includes certain subsidies received for purchasing machinery, it is

recognised in accordance to the useful life of the machinery.

@ ZEBRIBEMNHEHREENE
EERBFRINARMEETE
WFERIERE -ETEERER
BEGNETHR DREREN
ERERT MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

OTHER LOSSES, NET 7 HfthEsR B
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y BB KRR ENWE, (E518) 830 (1,759)
Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets RELLFERAREENNG 668 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A B M S = 44,058
Gain from sale and leaseback transaction EBMELRZMERE = 49,698
Net exchange differences [ERERFE (26,898) 5334
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 2 R sk B Y R (B RS 18 = (17.274)
Provision for impairment losses on right-of-use assets FTREEEZ BEGEEE - (10,481)
Impairment loss on goodwill HENRERE = (36,463)
Impairment losses on intangible assets B EEZAERS - (100,253)
Loss on initial recognition of investment in subleases BREIDHEREZHE (154) -
(25,554) (67,140)

FINANCE COSTS 8 BAFSRA

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FH7T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITETAE 23,316 32,309
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEN R 14,505 12,450
Interest and charges on factoring of trade receivables ~ JHIEE 5 BRI IBREZF ENER 1,229 3,763
39,050 48,522

Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 ERMHEISHRX
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRARTNEFEENR 2,098,601 1,900,950
Employee benefits expenses (note 10) BERMEX (HEE0) 417,731 450,621
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 641 6,772
Auditor's remuneration ZEEMEN & 3,680 5038
Bank charges IRIT&EH 8,602 8,819
Concessionaire commission for BERAREEFTEERAE ([ta)
department store counters (note a) 43,575 50,281
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 1,964 5031
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MR R BT E 67,936 71,848
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 75,168 73934
Legal and professional fees FEREXER 18,126 28,502
Marketing expenses TIHEEE 30,098 28,050
Transportation expenses EuE 81,594 82,606
Others Hith 282,098 309,344
Total cost of sales, administrative expenses and HEMATHHEZ RIEE K
selling and distribution expenses 7R < 4288 3,129,814 3,021,796

(@  Concessionaire commission for department store counters is generally

calculated by applying pre-determined percentages to actual sales made through

respective counters.

@ BERAIFEERFEEMAE—
RUEBENERIFERRRA

AEBEBEDLLFE

BEEBEERAA

2005 EHRSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 0 (BERFHX
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Wages and salaries (including directors’ emoluments) T & KN# & (BIEEZWS) ()

(note a) 401,114 417,229
Retirement benefits costs (note c) RIRER B (i 5Ee) 14,455 30,887
Share based payment expenses MM AERAMEZ - 84
Other post-employment benefits HABER AT 2,162 2421

417,731 450,621

The employee benefits expenses amounting to HK$84,161,000 (2019:
HK$129,032,000) are recognised in selling and distribution expenses; HK$82, 165,000
(2019: HK$97,226,000) in administrative expenses; and HK$251,405,000 (2019:
HK$224,363,000) in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

(@)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the

year included four (2019: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in

the analysis presented in note | 1. The emoluments paid and payable to the

remaining one individual (2019: three individuals) during the year are as follows:

EBERFFEZ A #84,161,0008 7T
(20194 © 129,032,000 7T) Thit 4z
EREWNBRZHERDHEBX
EEER ;5 82,165,000/ 7T (20194 :
97,226,000 75) Th iR 1T BRI 2 P 7E
525 }251,405,000% 75 (20194 .
224,363,000/ 70) THiX 88 & Al A R

=]
At ©

@ hEEREHMAL

FRAEBLNURSFNES
BIENE (019F MK ES
BEZHMFBHNMEE o
FEARBT—% (2019F : =4)

ANTHFHBZ BT -
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFHET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, BEXFHE EEE HitZK
other allowances and benefits in kind EYHm 1,872 7016
Retirement plan contributions IRIRET B 75 165
1,947 7,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[0 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

@

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments for the one individual (2019: three individuals) fall within the

10

R E MR R MTEE

BE®RFIH% (@

@ FoEREHMAL G
Z—% (2019 =4) AE2

following bands: MEEEMT

2020 2019

20204 20194

Number of Number of

employees employees

BEAK BE A

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T £2,000,0007 7T I -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2,500,0007 75 = 2

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 23,000,000 75 = |
During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors FRAEAEETERESEY X

or the five highest paid individuals mentioned above as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments for the four senior management (2019: four senior

management) fall within the following bands:

FFtAfiReHALZAEA
ME EAMATRMARE
EE 2 RN K BB BB
(20194 : £E) o

b EREEEEHMW

NaEhEER (2019F 45
IREBIEE) WEHINESENT ¢

2020 2019
20204 20194
Number of senior Number of senior

management management

SREEBEAE SHREEEAK

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 77T % 1,000,000 7T
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000 7T

2 2
2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 R |

10

AT IR R MIEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

(©

Retirement benefit plans

The Group participates in Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“"MPF Scheme”)
for all qualified employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at a rate of 5% specified in the rules, but
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable

in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC and Vietnam are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC and Vietnam
government, respectively. The PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in future years.

The Group maintains multiple qualified contributory saving plans as allowed
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code in the US. These plans
are defined contribution plans covering employees employed in the US and
provide for voluntary contributions by employees, subject to certain limits.
The contributions are made by both the employees and the employer: The
employees’ contributions are primarily based on specified dollar amounts or

percentages of employee compensation.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total contributable charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amount to HK$ 14,455,000 (2019: HK$30,887,000).
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] 2 i BT 0 )RR Y B 5K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

Il BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS I ERNENRED
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EERESTHASME
The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the years ended 31 B ZE2020F K2019%F 128318
December 2020 and 2019 is set out below: LFESUEERRBITHA
BHNMEHEIMT
Performance Share Retirement
Salaries related based benefit
and incentive payment scheme
Fee allowances  payments  expenses contributions Total
KRR

#ERk REAM SKERLR  BAER
ik R BB fx sHEIf® st
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TRz FEx TRz  FERT  TER

For the year ended #ZE2020F12831H

31 December 2020 IEEFE
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (note i) MERALE (5 - 1,571 500 - 14 2,085
Mr CheungTung (note i) RIRZCAE (B 5Eii) - 1,626 1,000 - 14 2,640
Mr. Chen Feng [y - 2,310 500 - = 2,810
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MiRE L - 1,481 650 - 18 2,149
Ms. Lam Fei Man MZEZ/NE - 1,037 500 - 18 1,555
Independent non-executive HILIFHITER

directors
Mr.Wong Chi Keung FEBREE 220 - - - = 220
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, & EEUR

Simon 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SREESTE 220 = = = = 220
Mr.Wu Tak Lung SERAE 220 - - - = 220

880 8,025 3,150 = 64 12,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

Il BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) Il ERNENRER @

(a)  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) @ EERESTHRASME @
Share  Retirement
Salaries based benefit
and payment scheme
Fees allowances expenses  contributions Total
LA AR
ek RERAR  RKET
ik A fAx S st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TAET TAET TABT
For the year ended #ZE2019F128318

31 December 2019 LLEFE
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (note i) MERFE (i) - 2,006 5 8 2,029
Mr. Cheung Tung (note ii) SRR A (FMY5Ei) - 2,078 5 18 2,101
Mr. Chen Feng PRAE S 4 - 2,224 4 - 2228
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MEBRELE - 1,576 4 18 1,598
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEZNE - 1,096 4 18 I118
Independent non-executive ~ FEILIEHITEE

directors
Mr.Wong Chi Keung FEREE 240 - - 241
Professor Lam Sing Kwong MR

Simon 240 - - 241
Mr. Fan ChunWah Andrew  SEERZESR A (FIEFiN)

(note iii) 240 - I - 241
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie REEL 240 - | - 241
MrWu Tak Lung REREL 240 - | - 241

1,200 8,980 27 72 10,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Il BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

@

(©

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

Note:

0) Mr: Lam Chi Fan, an executive director of the Company, is also the Chairman of

the Board.

(i) Mr CheungTung, an executive director of the Company, is also the President of

the Company.

(iiy ~ Mr Fan Chun Wah Andrew had resigned as an independent non-executive

director of the Company with effect from 30 June 2020.

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during the
year ended 3| December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during
the year ended 3| December 2020 (2019: Nil).

e RRMEE

I ERNENRED (8

@

©

EERRETHASHE (8

BieE

() EATRTEEHEALLERN
BEER.

(iy FREDITEFREREETS
KRERH -

(i) ERERELLFBRAERAIEL
FRTEFBH > B2020F68
0BEEHM-

ERBRMERN

HZE2020F 12831 HLEEE
EBZEENI B ERT AR
BH (20194 : ) o

EERRERERN

BHZE2020F 12831 BIEEE
5 FEE T B AU ) B
BH) (20194 : ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 R |

AT IR R MIEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’

services

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ services (2019:
Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such

directors

During the year ended 3| December 2020, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or controlled body

corporates and connected entities of such directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 32, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company's
subsidiary was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any

time during the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FRfSIRREX
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Current tax: BNERTR IS

Hong Kong profit tax (note i) HEAEM (H5T) 5512 1,950
PRC enterprise income tax (note ii) FRE{ EFTSIR (YT 18,390 37819

PRC withholding tax on distributed profits from REFEMMBARED K@ 2
PRC subsidiaries hEITRN 11,409 24,102
US income tax (note iii) EEIFFSHR (BT = 385
35311 64,256

(Over)/under-provision in prior years: BEFE (B /TR !

Hong Kong Profits Tax A 335 (215)
PRC EIT B RAER 497 (2.738)
US income tax (note iii) EEIFF1SHR (P ETi) (15,356) -
(14,524) (2,953)

Deferred taxation (note 19) FIERRIE (HEE19) (12,839) 4,697
7,948 66,000

Notes: ME -

() On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue () MR20I8FE3I[2IB EREUEEEE
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits 2017E1% (BT (B75) RAEZE
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted (TEZE)) » H3I ARG MRS - %
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 BZER0I8F3IAHEEER A E
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above BZEREBBHERR - REFESHM
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%, while only one entity nominated by a group of RE AEREEBRELERET
“connected entities” will be entitled to select the lower tax rate. The profits of group AR EAL 5% MBE R B
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be TR RF R 6.5%EH 1 MRBEA—
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. ATEREE RANEESAREE

RiENHE FHANBRAEHE
1569 92 B R G AR 6 5080
B-TE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 R |

AT IR R MIEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

0

(i)

(continued)

Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits
above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, PRC EIT is calculated based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profit of those subsidiaries established in
the PRC for both years, except for certain PRC subsidiaries being approved as High
and New Technology Enterprise by the relevant government authorities which are
subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% for 3-year period which will expire in 2021
and 2023 (2019:2019 and 2021), respectively.

The US corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.The US income tax includes (a)
federal income tax calculated at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 on the estimated US federal taxable income and (b) state income tax
calculated at various state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject to tax in a specific state
(i.e. state taxable income) is calculated based on the federal taxable income with state
tax adjustments, which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states (i.e.
percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned or specially allocated to the
respective states in which the Group operates) based on the apportionment factors

provided from the state tax returns in previous year

In 2020, the tax refund to certain US subsidiaries mainly represent the tax relief
measures implemented by the government in accordance with the Coronavirus Aid,

Relief, and Economic Security Act.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)  Under the law of Viethnam on Corporate Income Tax (the “Vietnam CIT"), Vietnam

CIT is calculated based on the statutory rate of 20% of the assessable profit of those

subsidiaries established in Vietnam and these companies had no assessable profit

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

4= AR
17 (=

ATk R MI5E

FrFHR (&)

PiEE

()

(ll‘g)

RiEHECEMRER (MEL¥MRE
)k HEbEMERBENHE
M2 ZEWEAT 2 RGN Z
0% FEREH]E MEZEABR
HZE2020F 12831 HIEEE W EESR
MimH o

GERThEMEE RS RHFRA
wH (B18) BFERNMERMEXH
BRUIE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT TATT

Profit/(loss) before income tax BT ERAER], (B8) 69,002 (146,002)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate RENERREFENRIE 11,385 (24,090)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR B (IR F5 =2 & 10,766 32,544

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BAMRNIRANREZE (21,783) (2,822)

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (14,524) (2953)

Tax effect of tax loss not recognised KREDBREBEENRBEE 21,450 19,086

Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised HRABERERNFES (6,791) -
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings of PRC HREIHT B AR R D IRBRFIHEINR

subsidiaries 3,409 41,363

Income tax on concessionary rate REBREGENMRER (165) (165)
Effect on different tax rates of subsidiaries operatingin  TEEM B AR EZSNIB AR

other jurisdictions TRMENZE 4,201 3037

Income tax expense PGS 7,948 66,000

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

I3 DIVIDENDS 13 KRE
No dividend was paid and declared by the Company during and for the year ended 31 B E2020F 12831 HIEFE > ARF
December 2020 (2019: Nil). During the year, a subsidiary of the Company declared and KRR REIRERS (20194 © ) o F
paid dividend amounting to HK$ 15,924,000 to non-controlling interests (2019: declared R RARBEIN—RIE LB B IFER
HK$46,258,000). R BRI AR 215,924,000 75

(20194F : 53k46,258,00038 7T) ©

14  EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14 SKREN @B
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the EREBEEANREESRERAREER
owners of the Company is based on the following data: Fl/ (B18) THiRIBI N8R+ E
2020 2019
20205 20195
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and HESREAREERT
diluted earnings/(loss) per share: (B8 2 &7,/ (B8
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners RABEB NEBEAFE
of the Company A,/ (F518) 58,523 (216,509)
Number of shares for the purpose of basic and SHESREAREEHEEY
diluted loss per share: ('000) RHEE (TR !
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HESRELAREERT]
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) (B518) 2 BB M98
per share 1,750,002 1,750,002
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) ~ SRERREFERF],/ (58) B 3.34 (1237)
The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 3| December STEEE2020F 20191283181
2020 and 2019 does not assume the exercise of the share options as the exercise FENSREERT (BB 18R
prices of those share options are higher than the average market price of shares and RTEERE RAZZSBREN
they are antidilutive during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. TEESR RN N E E2020F K&2019
FRABEFENFIHEEASR
REEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 R -BERzE

Leasehold
improvements,

Freehold furniture Construction

land and Plant and and Motor in

buildings machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total

HEME
KAEHE 3 A

ITHEREF BERHS R%E RE HEIR st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HKSO000  HK$O00  HK$000
TER TER TER TET TET TET

Cost R
At | January 2019 0191818 222884 436,008 231,861 15,568 50482 956,803
Additions HE 809 40262 16,640 3070 17845 78,626
Transfer from right-of-use assets BRECAREE

(note b) (FgzEb) 162,965 - - - - 162,965
Disposals (note b) BE (Mzto) (162.965) (5882) (6,505) (1966) - (177318)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERBAT (83902) (28,603) (1,987) 981 - (117473)
Transfer from construction in progress B EEET R 49,122 1,388 - (50,510 -
Exchange differences EREE (3513) (10,482) (2,885) (510) (1374) (18,764)
At 31 December 2019 120195128315 136,278 480425 238512 13181 16443 884,839
Additions HE - 22,200 4343 354 3649 30546
Disposals HE 6) (5285) (15422) (120) - 1915)
Transfer from construction in progress $# BTEET12 - 430 999 - (1,429) -
Exchange differences ERER 9,091 13645 3445 718 150 27,049
At 31 December 2020 12020128315 145,363 511415 231877 13051 18813 920519
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15 ¥%- -BERRE (@

Leasehold
improvements,
Freehold furniture Construction
land and Plant and and Motor in
buildings machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total
REME
kA% RAE R
IHREF BERKS REE AE HEBRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Depreciation and impairment ERAE
At | January 2019 20191818 59,071 125,828 79338 10,482 - 274719
Depreciation for the year (note a) S AITEE (Hif5Ea) 6,866 44,104 18,599 2279 - 71848
Impairment losses recognised RBR NS 2 HEHE
in profit or loss (note ) (FizEc) - 13,151 4123 - - 17,274
Disposals HE - (3373) (6,135) (1,462) - (10970)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERBAT (12,547) (13212) (1,561 (2,440) - (29,760)
Exchange differences ERER (1915) (3469) (2623) (o - (8,108)
At 31 December 2019 120194128315 51475 163,029 91,741 8,758 - 315,003
Depreciation for the year (note a) ~ FAITE (Hizka) 6,620 37,126 22,884 1,306 - 67936
Disposals HE - (363) (4491) (LH7) - (5971)
Exchange differences EREE 4320 6,459 3268 551 - 14598
At 31 December 2020 2020 128318 62415 206,251 113,402 9498 - 391,566
Carrying values REfE
At 31 December 2020 20205 128315 82,948 305,164 118475 3553 18813 528953
At 31 December 2019 2019128315 84803 317,39 146771 4423 16443 569,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

@)

Depreciation of approximately HK$3,053,000 (2019: HK$3,987,000) is included
in selling and distribution expenses; and HK$ 13,364,000 (2019: HK$20,791,000)
in administrative expenses; and HK$51,519,000 (2019: HK$47,070,000) in cost

of sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Acquisition of a property and sale and leaseback of the property

On 30 August 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with the lessor, an
independent third party, for exercising the purchase option to acquire the leased
property from the lessor at a consideration of approximately US$20,804,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$162,275,000). The acquisition was completed
on 30 September 2019 and the carrying amount of right-of-use assets at that
date together with direct attributable costs, totally amounting to approximately
HK$ 162,965,000, were transferred to property, plant and equipment from right-
of-use assets.

After completion of the above acquisition, the Group and a purchaser (the
"Purchaser”), an independent third party, entered into a purchase and sale
agreement pursuant to which (i) the Group agreed to sell and the Purchaser
agreed to acquire the property at a consideration of US$33,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$257,400,000); and (i) after completion of
the disposal of the property, the Group and the Purchaser have executed
a new lease agreement to lease the property for a term of ten years
starting from | October 2019. The sale and leaseback transaction was
completed on 30 September 2019 and the property with a carrying amount
of HK$162,965,000 has been derecognised from the property, plant and
equipment. The lease liabilities arising from the new lease agreement of
approximately HK$129,217,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$84,480,000 at 30 September 2019.

15

R E MR R MTEE

% BERRE (@

@

BEEBEERAA

RiEd2mBaii E
#93,053,0008 75 (2019 :

3,987,000787c) st AHE K 4
B 5 13,364,000 7T (2019
£ 120,791,000 7T) 5t ATTELEE
Sz 5 51,519,000 7% (20194 :
47,070,0007 7T) 5t ATHE M A 0

TR R U R E 2 E&HE
[E]

1201988300 REBAY
%ﬁ/\@%—*_ﬁ) S — 1%
TUBEBTHFEREEEER
Lx,xszo,804,ooo%n (HERH
162,275,00078 7t) 2 X E M@ H
HAKBHEME -ZBWE
BRR2019E98308 A > % B
BHMEFEAREEREEERE
BIE(G R AN 4851 49162,965,000
BTERFAREEEERY

X BEREE-

TR EMKEEEREE AEE
HEH (BRI BIE=A)
S —MBEERE B ()&
EERRHEMEARRKE
ZW % 18%433,000,000% 7T
(FBE M #9257,400,000% 7T) 5
RNTEREEZMER K&
BEREEATL—MHMNAEE
HE UBEEZY B20195F
0B I HEEAHB+F -E£&AME
RBER2019F9B30H %M
BREEA 162,965,000 7T )
EBRIEME -BEARE
RHEED o 1R2019F98308 » ¥
NWHEERZELENHRESEY
|29,2|7,000%ﬁ$i$ﬁ%§@ﬁ%&
B E 484,480,000 THER

B
ae ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 R |

15

AT IR R MIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of a property and sale and leaseback of the property

(continued)

As a result, the Group has recognised a gain on sale and leaseback transaction of
approximately HK$49,698,000 included in other losses, net. Details are set out in
the Company's circular dated 25 September 2019.

Impairment assessment of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-

use assets

As a result of the unfavourable performance of certain subsidiaries
incorporated/established in the US, Hong Kong and the PRC (the "Under-
Performing Subsidiaries”) during the year ended 31 December 2019, the
management conducted impairment assessments of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the Under-Performing Subsidiaries, and
recognized an impairment of HK$17,274,000 and HK$10,481,000 against the
carrying amount of property plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
respectively. The Under-Performing Subsidiaries are separated into three cash
generating units (“CGU") for the purpose of the impairment assessment
which are US CGU, HK CGU and PRC CGU. A CGU is considered to be
impaired when its recoverable amount declines below its carrying amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(©

Impairment assessment of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-

use assets (continued)

The management conducted impairment assessments of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the US CGU as at 31 December 2020.The
recoverable amounts of the US CGU was determined based on value in use
calculations and certain key assumptions.Value in use calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the management covering
a five-year period. The model assumes an average growth rate of 3% (2019
22%) for the five-year period, a pre-tax discount rates of 16:4% (2019: 14.5%).
Cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using growth rate of
2% (2019: same). Management estimates the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
market assessment of the time value of money and specific risk relating to the

industry.

Based on the value in use calculations, there are no impairment recognised as
the recoverable amount of the CGU was higher than its carrying value. If the
average growth rate used in the value-in-use calculation had been 1% lower
than management's estimates at 31 December 2020, the Group would have had

to recognise an impairment amounting to HK$3,136,000.

In 2019, impairment loss amounting to HK$17,274,000 and HK$10,481,000
has been provided for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,

respectively.

e RRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

16  LEASES le FE
(@)  Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet @ REAEESREREDNEE
Leased land Leasehold
use right properties Machinery Total
HEL
fErmE HEME Has st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THET THT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
At | January 2019 20191 B I H 64,117 309,652 - 373,769
Additions RE - 163,484 6613 170,097
Disposals HE (42,172) (166,072) - (208,244)
Impairment losses recognised  F 1B MR Z BB IR

in profit or loss - (10481) - (10,481)
Depreciation e (1,549) (70,528) (1,857) (73934)
Exchange differences EREE (1,464) (633) - (2,097)
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 18,932 225422 4756 249,110
Additions hE - 51,835 309 52,144
Disposals HE - (27,357) (363) (27,720)
Transfer to investment in #BEEAAKRE (W)

sublease (note i) - (4,904) - (4904)
Depreciation (note i) IE (MEki) (369) (72,800) (1,999) (75,168)
Exchange differences ERER 1,429 3,187 - 4616
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 19992 175,383 2703 198,078
As at 31 December 2019 #2019 12831H
Cost [N 20,48 295950 6613 323,044
Accumulated depreciation REtifE (1,549) (70,528) (1,857) (73934)
Net book amount RERE 18932 225422 4756 249,110
As at 31 December 2020 12020128318
Cost (DS 21910 318,711 6,559 347,180
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (1918) (143328) (3,856) (149,102)
Net book amount REEE 19992 175383 2,703 198,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

16  LEASES (continued) 6 FHE @
(@)  Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (continued) @ RESEELRREINEE @
(i) During the year, a subsidiary has entered into sub-lease agreements () FRN—KMEAT LM
regarding two leased properties. The portions of right-of-use assets BHEEWMETIIDHER
that associated with the sublease agreements has been derecognised o BN HIBEAERN
accordingly. NEAEEECHEELL
o
(i) Depreciation expenses of HK$44,442,000 (2019: HK$39,708,000) has (iy ITERIZ44,442,0008 7T
been charged in cost of sales, HK$6,305,000 (2019: HK$5,587,000) (20194 : 39,708,0003&
charged in administrative expenses and HK$24,421,000 (2019: T) BEHERATRR
HK$28,639,000) in selling and distribution expenses respectively. 6,305,000 7% (20194 :
5,587,000/ 78) 11T EXFH
2 H0FR K 24,421,000 7
(20194 : 28,639,000 7T)
BIRE kD HFE Nk
Leasehold
properties Machinery Total
HEME tas Mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT
Lease liabilities HEaE
At | January 2019 20191818 327,023 - 327,023
Additions RE 205,869 6613 212,482
Payments (NE (263,487) (2,029) (265,516)
Interest expenses FMEMZ 12,156 294 12,450
Exchange differences ERER (856) - (856)

BEHEEEMRAD 200FEHE 245



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

16  LEASES (continued) 6 FHE®
(@)  Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (continued) @ RESEELRREINEE @
Leasehold
properties Machinery Total
HEWE B33 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFAET
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 280,705 4878 285,583
Additions "B 47,830 309 48,139
Disposals HE (27,393) (388) (27,781)
Payments N (82,809) (2.214) (85,023)
Interest expenses FEREL 14248 257 14,505
Exchange differences ERER 2,801 - 2,801
At 31 December 2020 7220205 12831 H 235,382 2,842 238,224
As at 3| December 2019 720198128318
Current BPEA 57,493 1936 59,429
Non-current JEBNHA 223212 2942 226,154
Total HEst 280,705 4878 285,583
As at 3|1 December 2020 720205128318
Current BHEA 73,595 1,873 75,468
Non-current JERNHR 161,787 969 162,756
Total aEst 235,382 2,842 238224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

LEASES (continued) 6 FHE®
(b)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement: b REEEEEREREDNEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAEEEREE
Leased land use right HETMERE 369 1,549
Leasehold land and properties GEN=TamiuleE/ES 72,800 70528
Machinery es 1,999 1,857
75,168 73,934
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEsBHNFE (Hs) 14,505 12,450
Expense relating in short-term or B ENEEATNERRMNMEYS
low-valued leases 1,314 1913
Expenses related to variable lease payments HESHENTRBERANES (H59)
(note 9) 43,575 50,281
59,394 64,644

(d)

(e)

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the total cash outflow for leases
were HK$85,023,000 (2019:HK$283,207,000).

See note 2.| (iii) for the adoption of practical expedient related to HKFRS 16
Leases on COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes. Details of the lease maturity analysis

of lease liabilities are set out in notes 3.1(iii).

See note |5 for further details of impairment assessment on right-of-use assets.

BE200F 123 HIEEE M
EMIRE M H 4850 485,023,000
%70 (20194 © 283,207,000
7o) ©

RTBENAERYHREE
Bl Sk MM mEimk B BB
NEEER I EHANBRER
ZEAHNELFE AR
2.1 iy °

6 & 15 5% 30 R 5 00 BR AR A FF
ENHEEETHNERERU
SSERRN -HEEELRST
REfERER-HEEREN
BIMSMOWONFBEENKE
3.1(iii) o

EREAREERENENE
255 A2 RIS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BEME
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFAT
As at | January ®IBIH 33,376 90,224
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAT = (50,860)
Depreciation for the year FRFE (1,964) (5,031)
Exchange differences FERER 2,067 (957)
As at 31 December 128318 33,479 33,376

As at 31 December 2020, the fair values of the Group's investment properties were
HK$125,534,000 (2019: HK$121,345,000). The fair values have been arrived at based
on a valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer not

connected with the Group.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined based on the market
comparable approach which is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The inputs used in the fair value measurements mainly include the market unit sale rate
of comparable properties of similar size, nature and location. The calculation assumes
HK$2,402 (2019: HK$2,140) gross unit rate per square foot. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior year and there were no transfers into or

out of Level 3 during the year

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. The above investment properties are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 EREE

Customer
Goodwill Brand name relationship Total
EmE miELTE ZRR% Wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
At | January 2019 120191818
Cost DN 61,409 85,483 62,769 209,661
Accumulated amortisation and Rt EELAE
impairment - - (25,853) (25,853)
Net book amount REEE 61,409 85483 36916 183,808
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE019F1NA3IHLEE
Opening net book amount BT RE 61,409 85,483 36916 183,808
Amortisation charges (note a) BIHER (5ta) - - (6,772) (6772)
Impairment charges (note b) HERZ (M) (36,463) (74,117) (26,136) (136,716)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BRELSR (24,303) - - (24,303)
Exchange difference BEREER (643) - - (643)
Closing net book amount HIRERE B - 11,366 4,008 15,374
At 31 December 2019 and 7?2019 128318 K
| January 2020 2020518 1H
Cost %N - 85483 62,769 148,252
Accumulated amortisation and Rt EEAE
impairment - 74.117) (58761) (132,878)
Net book amount REEE - 11,366 4,008 15374
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020FE 183 HILEEE
Opening net book amount TR RE - 11,366 4,008 15,374
Amortisation charges (note a) EIHE R (M5ta) - - (641) (641)
Closing net book amount HRERmZE - 11,366 3367 14,733
At 31 December 2020 1220205128318
Cost (DS - 85,483 62,769 148,252
Accumulated amortisation and R EELAE
impairment - 74,117) (59,402) (133519)
Net book amount REEE - 11,366 3367 14,733

BEEBEERAA

2005 EHRSE

249



250

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 R |

18

AT IR R MIEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

@

(b)

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in selling and distribution expenses

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment assessment on intangible assets

Management monitors and reviews the business performance at the cash-
generating units (“CGU") level. In 2016, the Group acquired 51% equity interest
in Dormeo North America, LLC (“Dormeo”). The Group recognised intangible
assets of brand name and customer relationship in relation to such acquisition

and allocated to the Dormeo CGU at the acquisition date.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The
model assumes an average growth rate of 4% (2019: 3%) for the five-year
period, a pre-tax discount rate of 19.4% (2019: 17.2%). Cash flows beyond
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates of 2%
(2019: same). Management estimates the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
market assessment of the time value of money and specific risk relating to the

industry.

As a result of the impairment assessment, there are no impairment of brand
name and customer relationship resulted (2019: the Group recognised
impairment for brand name and customer relationship amounting to
HK$74,117,000 and HK$26,136,000, respectively). There were no reasonably
possible changes in any of the key assumptions that would have resulted in an

impairment write-down in this CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

DEFERRED TAXATION 19 BIERRIA
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting NTARPBFRESEHNRIERIBLE
purposes: ki
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Deferred tax assets BERBEE 8,003 8,409
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE (17,048) (29,874)
(9,045) (21,465)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) assets recognised and UFAREFERBEFEERIN
movements thereon during the current and prior years: TERERBELEE (BB BERH
29
(a) Deferred tax assets @ IRERESE
Allowance for
Unrealised inventories
profit in Tax and credit
inventories losses losses Others Total
FERE FEREEE
Rigd  REBE W BREE Hith st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

At | January 2019 20191 B1H 112 14433 8435 2471 25451
Charged to profit or loss BERINRE #2) (10438) (3735) (1534) (15,749)
Release upon disposal of HE—BKBAE

a subsidiary S - - (608) - (608)
Exchange differences EREER - (83) (326) (276) (685)
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 70 3912 3,766 661 8,409
Credited/(charged) to BiER A (0

profit or loss 147 (2,304) 1,348 - (809)
Exchange differences ERER - 100 289 14 403
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 217 1,708 5403 675 8,003
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(b)

AT IR R MIEE

|9  DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19 EIERRIE ()
Deferred tax liabilities b IERERESRE
Fair value
Undistributed  adjustment Fair value
profits of on  adjustment
Right-of- PRC  investment on intangible
use assets  subsidiaries  properties assets Others Total
TENE REWME BEEE
NP4 S ZRF ZAT
ERREE  2RER HRE ERE Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET  FER  TEn  TER  TET  TER
At | January 2019 R2019F 1818 - (14,594) (55,754) (25,704) (410) (96,462)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ B8# st A/ (0FR) (1274) (17,261) 880 22,475 410 5230
Release upon payment of dividends 218k B BB LI E 8=
to profit or loss - 5822 - - - 5822
Release upon disposal of a subsidiary  HH & i /A B B it [0 - 390 53,703 - - 54093
Exchange differences BEREE 4 268 LI71 - - 1,443
At 31 December 2019 12019128318 (1,270) (25,375) - (3229) - (29.874)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ B#8# st A/ (05R) 1,275 (3409) - 135 - (1999)
Release upon payment of dividends 218k BB LI E B =
to profit or loss - 11,409 - - - 11,409
Release undistributed profits to BERDEENEBE
profit or loss - 4238 - - - 4238
Exchange differences EREE () (817) - - - (822)
At 31 December 2020 120206128318 - (13.954) - (3,094) - (17,048)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax loss amounting to HK$267,508,000 (2019: HK$191,620,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$117,621,000 (2019: HK$35,871,000) and HK$56,039,000 (2019:
HK$56,039,000) that will be expired from 2021 to 2025 and from 2037 to 2038,

respectively. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
deductible temporary differences arising from allowance inventories and credit loss
amounting to HK$54,538,000 (2019: HK$33,360,000) as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

e RRMEE

IEIERRTE (8

RB|EHIFR AR RREIRAZR
o] 880 M > 3 1 25 20267,508,000 78
7 (20194 @ 191,62,0,0005 75) BIR
BEERDELREBESE - KERR
BEEBESAI17,621,00087T(2019
1 35,871,000/ 7T) &56,039,00075
TT(20194F & 56,039,000587T) K548 >
DBIBE2021 EE2025%F K H20374E
FE038F M o HthEs B mIRHR 4
##o

2020 B3 I H T EREERE
EFEBEBELENTIRBRREERE
54,538,00078 75 (20194 : 33,360,00078
7T) BRRIERIBEEE > T"HIRAK
0] SE 5 FE SR A1) 7] 8 FB 0] 40 Rl B B
MERET LUK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

19  DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19 IRIERRIA (@)
Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared at 10% RIEPE X FTISIR)% > B20085F 1 B
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. | B#E > REIN B AR A H P B
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements FETE KB AR B 321 0%H 3 X B4 T8
in respect of temporary differences attributable to the undistributed profit of certain I8 o AR AL BRI E R R
PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 amounting to HK$497,129,000 (2019: ERENER UKRa B RER AT
HK$348,601,000), as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the SERDEREMESE At UELET
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not be R B B B A B 5220204 12 B3I HBY R
reversed in the foreseeable future. DIRE 497,129,000 75 (20194

348,601,00078 7T) FE(LRYER BT = 48
M S BRRELEIERIEEHE

20 INVENTORIES 20 F&
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials ERRt 255,327 198,130
Work in progress IR 108,824 107813
Finished goods K m 221,359 185,902
585,510 491 845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

INVENTORIES (continued) 0 #FE®
The cost of inventories is recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales BRAEZ M AHERRNZTFEMN
amounted to HK$2,098,601,000 (2019: HK$1,900,950,000). & %E%2,098,601,0005 7T (20194 :
1,900,950,0007 7T) ©
As at 31 December 2020, the inventories of the Group are stated after a provision for 2020 12831 B AEENEERE
impairment on inventories of approximately HK$48,934,000 (2019: HK$38,300,000). SHREFEREZEE%£148,934,0008 T
(20194 : 38,300,000 7z) % 58K ©
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2 BHREMEKTE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFHTT
Trade receivables B 2 EURIE 694,915 437611
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 3.1(b)(i)) B EEEREE b)) (32,417) (30,751)
Trade receivables, net B2 IR P8R 662,498 406,860
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BORIEREMEWRIE
Advances to staff HETRM 2,249 1,744
Cash consideration receivables (note a) FETIRERE (Mista) 123,654 148,603
Net investment in sublease NEFRE 4,132 -
Other tax recoverable HthEUIR TR 8,443 18,110
Prepayments for purchasing raw materials and BERMEBORIER
operating expenses KERE 49,049 64,652
Rental and other deposits HEREMEE 30,603 41426
Others Hith 15411 15,058
233,541 289,593
Total trade and other receivables 85 KR EMEWRIAREE 896,039 696,453
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 7 82,109 136,977
Current portion BIEREE 813,930 559,476
896,039 696,453
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21

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@  The balance represents the consideration receivable in relation to the disposal
of 51% equity interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co. Ltd completed in 2019.
According to the sale and purchase agreement, the total cash consideration of
RMB157,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$176,891,000) will be settled
by four installments. During the vear, the Group received the second instalment
amounting to RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$33,266,000). The remaining
instalments amounting to RMB50,000,000 (equivalents to HK$58,318,000) and
RMB57,000,000 (equivalents to HK$65,336,000) would be due in 2021 and
2022 respectively.

The Group's retail sales are made both through its retail network comprising stand-
alone retail shops and concession counters in department stores and through
internet sales. The Group also sells health and household product directly to overseas
wholesalers and retailers and the polyurethane foam to furniture manufacturers in
the PRC. Sales at self-operated retail shops and sales through retailers in the PRC
and internet sales are transacted either by cash or credit cards. For sales made at
concession counters, the department stores collect cash from the end customers and
then repay the balance after deducting the concessionaire commission to the Group.
The credit period granted to department stores ranges from 30 days to 120 days. For
sales to wholesalers, retailers and furniture manufacturers, the Group generally allows a

credit period ranging from 7 days to 90 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses,

presented based on the dates of invoice.

21

e RRMEE

B 5 REtIEWTRIE (&)

UTRAEHNREERERENESRE
WRIENRE DT (RBEZZAHZE
5 o

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Within 30 days 30BELA 397,758 217711
31 to 60 days 31E60H 157,527 124,367
61 to 90 days 61E90H 86,883 38,876
91 to 180 days 91ZE180H 20,007 23,394
181 to 365 days I81ZE365H 323 2512
662,498 406,860

(i) Fair value of trade receivables ) BrREREZATE

(i

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount

is considered to be the same as their fair value.

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the

group's exposure to credit risk and foreign currency risk can be found in note

3.1(ii)(b).

FR 7% B HA & 7 FE WO B9 K2 A 1
B HREERSSEERT
B4R -

() RERERKRO

FEERAEBMBREER
Bz BIER A ERBEE
BB ZAENMEEZERK
REFERA2ABREEHER
HoBHMEZRURIBRE &
SEmENEERRKRIMNER
7 BRI S RIMEES. 1 (i) (b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)  Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate net carrying amount of HK$174,293,000 (2019:
HK$126,779,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$16,725,000 (2019: HK$20,849,000) has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default by considering the background
of the trade receivables and historical payment arrangement of these trade

receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over the balances.

22 BILL RECEIVABLES

The amount represents bill receivables which are not yet due at the end of the
reporting period. The following is the aging analysis of bill receivables based on their

time to maturities as at the end of reporting periods:

21

B 5 REtIEWTRIE (&)

0 EEREREKO @)

2020 1283 1B AEEZ
B RWHBAGROERAF
BEE 417429300087 (2019
1 126,779,000 70) Z FEUR
BoHERKREHHEEAEB R
BB RRE T 16,725,000 7T
(20194 : 20,849,000/ 75) B#
B0 MU £ I EEEHE
WRBZESRZEEZEN
REZzZESNMZH HiE R
BRABN -AEEUEMLZ
SHEBRBETMEAER

ZETER/NREMRBRBHNE
W - U T AR RS HRZEEH
BB 25BN R B ARG DA

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within 30 days 30H MR 10,523 8,832
31 to 60 days 31E60H 62,961 7996
61 to 90 days 61 90K 1,213 9,840
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 1,609 28,208
181 to 365 days 181 365K 1,862 677
78,168 55,553
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BILL RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the bill receivables above amounting to approximately HK$73,124,000 (31
December 2019: HK$39,549,000) had been endorsed for settling the trade payables
for which the maturity dates of the bill receivables have not yet fallen due as at the end
of the reporting period. All bill receivables of the Group are with a maturity period of

less than one year.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group performed impairment
assessment on bill receivables and concluded that the probability of defaults of the

counterparties is insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group, whose contractual cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement. The Group's business model is
therefore achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these assets.

Such trade receivables was therefore classified as financial assets carried at FVOCI.

As at 31 December 2020, the effective interest rates of the factored trade receivables
at FVOCI ranged from 1.23% to 2.73% per annum (2019: 3.13% to 4.35% per
annum). Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs adopted for their fair value
measurements are disclosed in note 3.3. As at 3| December 2020 and 2019, the fair
value changes on trade receivables at FVOCI are insignificant and accordingly, no fair

value changes are recognised in equity as FVOCI reserve.

23

e RRMEE

FEIER R (8

StA LBz FEW R 4973,124,00078
(20194128318 : 39,549,000 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i)

Categories of financial instruments

24 £HTHE

) ERMTAEMNSE

2020
20205
Financial
assets at fair
Financial  value through
assets at other

amortised comprehensive

2019
20194
Financial
assets at fair
Financial ~ value through

assets at other

amortised comprehensive

cost income cost income
BEiRHM FiBEAM
2HEKE 2HEWE
RS AS BRATFE BEHEAER BATE
5IikZ FiRZ HERZ HERZ
TREE EMEE THMEE TRMEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TR FAET
Financial assets TREE
Trade receivables B 5 e EIE 662,498 = 406,860 -
Bill receivables P ZE 4% 78,168 - 55553 -
Deposits and other receivables 155 K EL M FE U =R 1B 173,800 - 205,087 -
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBEEEY 136,915 - 240,320 -
Trade receivables at FVOC] ZREMEENE
BATEYERZ
8 2 U8 - 24,072 - 44,696
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

24

EMIA®

() SRMIANSEG

2020 2019
2020 20194
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
YRR BH PR 45 FR R E A A
FiRZ HERZ
ERAaE Eduy =N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Financial liabilities TRAE

Trade payables BB ENIA 509,854 342,597
Bill payables FE T 4% 44,902 47 649

Financial liabilities included in other STAHMENTIERESEEZ
payables and accrued liabilities THEE 97,941 122,344
Bank borrowings RITEM 547,224 622,863
Lease liabilities HEAE 238,224 285583

Note: The fair values of the financial assets at amortised cost approximate their

carrying amounts.

st REERA B EMEEY

ATRREEEEES

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

25

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 35 RERREEBYUKREBIERETE
%:IX
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEES 136,915 240,320
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 136,915 240,320
Pledged bank deposit (note) BIREIRTER () 10,260 1,791
147,175 242,111
Denominated in: LIRS EHsSHE -

— Hong Kong Dollars —ATT 18,987 24,840
— Renminbi — AR 64,174 144,508
—US Dollars —E7 57,858 67,158
—Vietnamese Dong —HmE 5,739 2478
— Canadian Dollars —mrc 115 154
— Others —HAth 302 1973
147,175 242,111

Note: B EE

Pledged bank deposits with original maturities more than three months carried fixed interest
rates of 0.3% to 1.55% (2019: 1.55%) per annum as at 3| December 2020. Such bank
deposits had been pledged to secure the Group's general banking facilities and were classified

as current assets. The pledged bank deposits have been released upon the settlement of

relevant bills payables.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group performed impairment
assessment on pledged bank deposits and bank balances and concluded that the probability

of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit

losses is provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

% BRRHEMEMNTRIE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Trade payables B RENIE 509,854 342,597
Accrued salaries fEstins 41,173 44,025
Accrued operating expenses FEsTRCE R 66,656 58,752
Accrued royalties FEsTEREE 8,963 5,959
Amount due to a non-controlling P — IR AR SR
shareholder (note) BEIE (T3 6,543 6,543
Dividend payable to a non-controlling N —BIFERKRRZEE
shareholder — 26,849
Deferred government grant EEEUT A6 B 4,284 -
Refundable deposits received BWAIRERSE 8,268 12,855
Other taxes payable HARAIRM 19,346 20901
Interest payable P2 - 124
Others Hith 15,176 13448
170,409 189,456
Total trade and other payables B 5% Kk HMPE A ISR 680,263 532,053
Less: G
Non-current portion of deferred government grant AT B 2 FEREAEE 7 (2,229) -
Current portion BNHAER > 678,034 532,053

Note: The amount was unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable on demand.

e RRERERR - FEZUE 2B
BEZXER-

BEEBEERAA
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) % BESKREMECGRE @

FALMZESRAEMENTRIE
73,124,00055 7T (20194 © 39,549,0005
T HUBEEEREN EEKRE
BZIBERREHEAREREEE (W
£22) ©

Included in the trade and other payables above amounting to HK$73,124,000 (2019:
HK$39,549,000) had been settled by endorsed bills for which the maturity dates of the

bills receivables are not yet fallen due as at the end of the reporting period (note 22).

BRBRMRENEERNFI0E60
B MRERSARREZEHLS

The credit period of trade payables is ranging from 30 to 60 days. The following is the

aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting

27

period. MEZREMRIBNERE DA T o
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Within 30 days 30B LA 352,822 204,285
31 to 60 days 31E60H 93,842 94,940
61 to 90 days 61E90H 35,503 19,081
91 to 180 days 91E 1808 19,041 17,746
Over 180 days B 180H 8,646 6,545
509,854 342,597

BILL PAYABLES

The following is the aging analysis of bill payables at the end of the reporting period

presented based on bills issue date:

7 ENER

UFAREHARERHAAHRZES

MENEERE D

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within 30 days 30HMUA 8,579 6,107
31 to 60 days 31E60H 9,546 11,639
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 3,202 6,481
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 23,575 15712
181 to 365 days 1812365H - 7710
44,902 47 649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BILL PAYABLES (continued)

Bill payables were secured by pledged bank deposits of HK$10,260,000 (2019:
HK$1,791,000) as at 31 December 2020 and guaranteed by the Company and certain

of its subsidiaries.

UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS

R E MR R MTEE

7 EARE @

2020 12831 H BN EHBUE
R IR 1777 2010,260,00078 7T E 36 1
(20194 © 1,791,00058 7T) I AN T
REEBETHB AR RMER.

8 EEPIRITER

2020 2019

202045 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFHET

Trade financing BEEMN 257,607 119,332
Revolving borrowings BIRE™M 100,400 119,900
Term borrowings THEER 189,217 376,992
Other borrowings HMEM = 6,639
547,224 622,863

Variable-rate bank borrowings carry interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rates and Hong Kong Prime Rate plus a

specific margin of the relevant banks.

AP RRITERREBRITAENR
B mABRTEARFEREERESR
MEMABBERTHFENBRE -

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFHET

Variable-rate borrowings FERNERMER 547,224 616,224
Fixed-rate borrowings EEFREN = 6,639
547,224 622,863

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

28

UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates)

on the Group's borrowings, are as follows:

28

EIIRIRITER (8

AEBNERERAEX (HTFEER

STHIRIZ) EIM T

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFATT
Effective interest rates (per annum): BRAX (B8F):
Variable-rate borrowings FEARER 1.57% — 4.90% 2.48% — 557%
Fixed-rate borrowings B e ZE=E™N N/A RiEH 3.00%
The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the functional AEBELEREBRERINEE B
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below: NWEBHENERSEINNT
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Us$ ETT 77,484 164,762

The Group's banking facilities are secured by the corporate guarantees given by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Except for the gurantee was
provided by a non-controlling shareholder to secure the bank facilties granted to a
subsidiary of the Group to the extent of RMB 1,320,000 (2019: RMB19,800,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

28  UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 28 EIKIPIRITER (@

Loan covenants breached EBREMEL

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group breached certain financial BE09F12A3IBILELFE  KEE
related loan covenants of bank borrowings with carrying amount of HK$397,019,000. ERTIREEA397,019,0008 5818
During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group completed renegotiations of TERNETHBEMERZN &
the financial loan covenants of these borrowings with the relevant banks, The banks FI00FNAHILEFE AEET
granted waivers for immediate payment of certain bank borrowings and also approved R EAERARTT M ZEETNHBER
amendments on certain financial loan covenants for the bank borrowings. As at year LOBHETER BITRE TR
ended 3| December 2020, the Group has not breached any financial covenants. ERNEEERE L% THEY

RITERNETHHEERZNELE
BB E2020F12A3IHILEEE &K
EFREREMRHBEELN-

29 SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 29 FAFKE
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE &5
‘000 HK$'000
Tz FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.! each BRROIBTHNEER
Authorised: EE
At | January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 201981 BIB 20198128318
31 December 2020 202012831 H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
shares
RiHEE
‘000 HK$'000
T iz FHET
Issued and fully paid: BRITRER
At | January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 201981 BIB 20198128318
31 December 2020 20204E 128315 1,750,002 175,000

BEHEEEMRAD 200FEHE 267
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AT IR R MIEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, a share option scheme was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company (the "Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme™). The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants under

the scheme have or may have made to the Company.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$I to the

Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 13 December 2013, the Company had authorised to grant to 40 eligible
participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,918,000 shares under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. In February 2014, the Company granted share
options to 137 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,903,000

shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular share option
offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be a price representing a
30% discount to the Offer Price (as defined in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 June 2014).

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall be vested equally in five tranches commencing on 10 July 2014, the
first date on which dealings in the shares of the Company commenced on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and on each of the first, second, third and
fourth anniversary of the Listing Date. The grantees to whom a share option
has been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise the share option any time after the share option has been vested but
in any event on or before the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing
Date. The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
not transferable and share options not exercised within the exercise period will

lapse and cease to be of further effect.

e RRMEE

0 FERESE (8

BEEBEERAA

BRAREEAMERESS (@

RIBEE R AREE A BRE
BEZANBEERES R
ZRODZABEERLEEE (TR
BARNAGHEA2014FE68308
ZIBRERE) frE30%°

REERAMEERBRES
IRTELAEARANBRES
BH2014E78 108 (AT KNG
R BRMEENEH) (Tk
mHE) BEE RETABE
BEFEE-F_BABEA -$F=
BB EHRFENEBERTY
DERGBE - REERAHEE
EREREIERBREN
ARARBRNEREERBR
(EEEABERTAER LTH
HERBEFERERR A B
RITHEERE - RESRAR
HERBRESIBHNBR
BRI EE RPN TER
RITENERERRUERE
BEEHMMA -
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e RRMEE

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

0 FERESE (8

()  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) ) BRARBIEFERESD @
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July 2014 and ceased to have BRAFEERBERESS
effect after 10 July 2014. Share options granted prior to the expiration of the BER2014F7H10BE® > B
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall continue 014FE7B10HBABEEN
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option N RBRAMBEERBRE
Scheme. The following tables disclose details of movements of share options stE|EmAl i H B E R R1T
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: FEHEREREES U RRE

BERAREERBRESS
T TREEREERA
MEEMBREEIRENE
RENEEFE !
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
Exercise at during 3| December during 3| December
Options Vesting period Period | January 2019 the year 2019 the year 2020
120195 120195 120205
IAIA 12A318 12A318
BiRiE BEH (cd HRTHE RERKH  HRTE RERKY  HRT
(Note) (Note)
(B35 (BizE)
Directors
EZ
Tranche | 10022014 - 10072014 10072014 - 1007.2019 4,045,240 (4,045,240) - - -
s 014F28108E201457 014E7810HE
E 108 201978108
Tranche 2 10022014 - 10072015 10072015 - 10072019 4,045,240 (4,045,240) - - -
BT WI4FIR10BE WISETRI0BE
015%78 108 019F78 108
Tranche 3 10022014 - 10072016 10072016 - 1007.2019 4,045,240 (4,045,240) - - -
E=1 WI4F2F10BE WICETRI0BE
016F78108 201978108
Tranche 4 10022014 10072017 10072017 - 10.07.2019 4,045,240 (4,045,240) - - =
FIH 0I4F28108E WI7F7R108E
017478108 019F78 108
Tranche 5 10022014 - 10072018 10072018 - 1007.2019 4,045,240 (4,045,240) - - -
0t WI4F2F10BE WIBE7RI0HE
201878108 201978108
20226200 (20226,200) - - -
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(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 FERRAERTE (B
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) ) BRARBIEFERESD @
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
Exercise at during 31 December during 31 December
Options Vesting period Period | January 2019 the year 2019 the year 2020
20195 20195 1420205
IBIH 12A318 12A318
BiRiE BEH (Ed: HWRITE REAKE  HRTE REAKY  HRITE
(Note) (Note)
i) (PzE)
Senior management
BREEE
Tranche | 10022014 - 10072014 10072014 - 10.07.2019 1,007,560 (1,007,560) - - -
FHt W014FIB10AE WI4ETBI10AE
201478108 201978108
Tranche 2 10022014 - 10072015 10072015 - 10.07.2019 1,007,560 (1,007,560) - - -
BN WI4ELRI0BE WISETRIBE
2015578108 201978108
Tranche 3 10022014 - 10072016 10072016 - 10.07.2019 1,007,560 (1,007,560) - - -
i WI4FIB10AE WI6ETBI0AE
2016F78108 201978108
Tranche 4 10022014 - 10.07.2017 10.07.2017 - 10.07.2019 1,007,560 (1,007,560) - - —
FH WI4ELRI0BE WITETRIBE
2017478108 201978108
Tranche 5 10022014 - 10072018 10072018 - 10.07.2019 1,007,560 (1,007,560) - - -
EBitin WI4FIB10AE 0I8FTBI0AE
2018F78108 201978108
5,037,800 (5,037,800) - - -

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

0 fEkiEStE (8

(i)  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) ) ERFZBEARRESD (B
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
Exercise at during 31 December during 31 December
Options Vesting period Period | January 2019 the year 2019 the year 2020
120195 12019 120205
AR 12A31H 12A31H
Rk FRH T8 HRTHE RERKM  HRTE REAKRM HRTE
(Note) (Note)
(M) ()
Employees
ES
Tranche | 10022014 - 10072014 10072014 - 1007.2019 1,432,300 (1432,300) - - -
s WI4F28108E WI4F7A108E
014878108 019F78 108
Tranche 2 10022014 - 10072015 10072015~ 10072019 1434300 (11434,300) - - -
BH 0I4F28108E 0ISF7R10BE
2015578 108 2019578108
Tranche 3 10022014 - 10072016 10.07.2016 - 10.07.2019 1434300 (1,434300) - - -
=i WI4FIB100E WI6ETRI0AE
2016578108 2019578108
Tranche 4 10022014 - 10072017 10072017 - 1007.2019 1434300 (1434,300) - - -
Ett WI4F2F10E WI7ETAIHE
2017578108 2019578108
Tranche 5 10022014 - 10072018 10072018 - 1007.2019 1434300 (1434,300) - - -
Fof#t WH4F2R108E 0IBF7AI0BE
2018F78 108 01978108
7,169,500 (7,169,500) - - -
32433500 (32433,500) - - -
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period - - - - -
REEHRAFIE
Mzt : BE2019F 12A31HLEEE

Note: During the year ended 3| December 2019, all remaining share options under

the PerIPO Share Option Scheme which have not been exercised during

the exercise period expired and the said share options also automatically

lapsed. The lapsed/expired share options amounting to HK$14,879,000 are

transferred from share options reserve to retained profits.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, no lapsed or expired share

options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are transferred from share

options reserve to retained profits.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

0 FERESE (8

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

are as follows:

BRAREEAMERESS (@

REERAFEERBRES
B MM BRESENT

Number of Fair value

share options Exercise per share

Date of grant granted Exercise period price option

R SERE

BB B 171FEH TEE ZATE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Tranche | 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2014 — 10.07.2019 0.74 041
F—it 2014528 10H 2014578 10HZE
201978 10H

Tranche 2 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2015 — 10.07.2019 0.74 043
BTt 2014528 10H 2015E7810HE
2019578 10H

Tranche 3 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2016 — 10.07.2019 0.74 045
F=H 2014528 10H 2016F7HI0HE
2019578 10H

Tranche 4 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2017 — 10.07.2019 0.74 0.47
At 2014528 10H 201775 10B=E
201978 10H

Tranche 5 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2018 — 10.07.2019 0.74 048

SRt 201428108 2018FE7HI0HE

20197H10H

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, calculated using the

Binomial Model was approximately HK$15,662,000. The Group did not

recognise any expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil) in

relation to the share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme granted

by the Company.

ERERELBEER_-E
AEEFGBEZAFEAN
15,662,000% 75 o B £ 2020412
B3 BIEEE ~EBHERE
NERHNERAHEERE
RS BIIBT 2 BIRERDT
Bz (20194 : ) o

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS
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AT IR R MIEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, a share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme becomes valid and effective on 10 July 2014 and will expire
on the business day preceding the tenth anniversary thereof. Subject to the
rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, grantees may exercise the share
options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during
the period commencing from the date of grant and up to such expiry date as
determined by the Board.

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to the eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity
interests in the Company, for their contributions to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interest of the Group or for such other purposes as the board of
directors of the Company may approve from time to time, linking their interests
with the interests of the Group and thereby attracting and encouraging those
parties to work better for the interests of the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any particular
share option granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the directors of the Company in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price shall at least be the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company's share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue at the Listing Date (without taking
into account any shares that may be issued upon the full exercise of the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme), being 165,000,000
shares of the Company (“Option Limit"). Options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (or any other
share option schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Option Limit. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company, the Company may refresh the Option Limit at any time provided
that (i) the Option Limit as refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the approval by the shareholders of the
Company; and (i) the options previously granted (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the provisions of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Option Limit as refreshed. The Company may also, with the
approval of the shareholders of the Company, grant share options in respect of
shares of the Company in excess of the Option Limit (as refreshed from time to
time) to eligible participants specifically identified by the Company before such

approval is sought.

e RRMEE
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AT IR R MIEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company from time
to time. No share options shall be granted under any schemes of the Company
(including the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit

being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each grantee in any |2-month period up to the date of
offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1%

limit shall be subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

In addition, any grant of share options to a director; chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates is
required to be approved by the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is proposed to be an option
holder) of the Company. If the Company proposes to grant share options to
a substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive director of the
Company or their respective associates which will result in the number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the [2-month period up to and including the date of offer of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue; and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, based on the
closing price of the Company's shares at the date of offer of each grant, such
further grant of share options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors, the approval of shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.
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(ii)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 0 BREtE @
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BRARBEREREAD @
The below table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by TRERBELERES - 5R
the Group's directors, senior management and employees: EERBNEEFENAADR
e
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
at during 3| December during 3| December
Options Vesting period Exercise period | January 2019 the year 2019 the year 2020
12019 12019 12020
AR 128318 128318
FElR1E BEH e HATE REAKE  EHXTE RERRY  ERTE
(Note) (Note)
(M) (PizE)
Directors
EZ
Tranche | 26012017-26012018 27012018 - 26012022 3,750,000 - 3,750,000 (150,000) 3,600,000
Eoi” WI7FIR6AE WISFIRVAE
201818268 202218268
Tranche 2 26012017-26012019 27012019 - 26012022 3,750,000 - 3,750,000 (150,000) 3,600,000
BH WI7FIRBAE WIYFIRVAE
2019%1 8268 202218268
7,500,000 - 7,500,000 (300,000) 7,200,000
Senior management
EREERE
Tranche | 26012017-26012018 27012018 - 26.012022 950,000 - 950,000 - 950,000
F—H WI7FEIRBEE WIBFIRVHEE
2018F 15268 202215268
Tranche 2 26012017-26012019 27012019 - 26012022 950,000 - 950,000 - 950,000
ETH WI7TEIBUEE WIYEIFHEE
2019F 15268 202215268
1,900,000 - 1,900,000 - 1,900,000

AT IR R MIEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

e RRMEE

0 fEkiEStE (8

(i)  The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) i) BERAPERERERESE @
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
at during 3| December during 3| December
Options Vesting period Exercise period | January 2019 the year 2019 the year 2020
#0195 2019% 120205
1B 12A31R 12A31R
Rk RRH TR HATHE RERKM  EHRTE RERKM HXITE
(Note) (Note)
() ()
Employee
B8
Tranche | 26012017 -26012018 27012018 - 26012022 8,650,000 (1940,000) 6,710,000 (1,010,000) 5,700,000
s WI7EIAUBE WIBFIRVHEE
2018%F 1 F26H 200 A26H
Tranche 2 26012017 26012019 27012019 - 26012022 8,650,000 (1940,000) 6,710,000 (1,010,000) 5,700,000
EIH WI7TEIFWBEE WIYEIFVHE
2019F1A26H 00FIA2H
17,300,000 (3,880,000) 13,420,000 (2020000) 11,400,000
26,700,000 (3880000) 22,820,000 (2320000) 20,500,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period - 22,820,000 - 20,500,000

RBEHRDFITE

Note: 3 (2019: 3) eligible participants, who have been granted share options

under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have ceased to become eligible

participants upon termination of employment and the said share options have

automatically lapsed. The lapsed share options amounting to HK$936,000

(2019: HK$325,000) are transferred from share options reserve to retained

profits.

BEEBEERAA

MIsE : 3% (0194 : 3%) REERA
MEEEBREAEERER
BNEER2HENELER
MARBETBASER2HEE
fEiEREC S KM%
L AH936,000 7T (201945 :
325,000 7) 2 BR MM RE
BHEREREERERE R
Fo

2005 EHRSE
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30

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 0 BREtE @
(i) The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BEBRARRERBERENE @

Details of the share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

REERAFEERBRES

are as follows:

Number of
share options

B M ERESENT

Fair value
Exercise  per share

Date of grant granted Exercise period price option

=4

g fEhg

"L HAEA BIREHRE 1TEH TfEE ZATHE

HKS$ HKS$

BT BT

Tranche | — Directors 26012017 3,750,000 26.01.2018 —25.01.2023 0.69 02022
E—H-EF 201751 B26H 2018FE 1 H26HE
20231 H25H

Tranche | — Senior management 2601.2017 950,000 26.01.2018 —25.01.2023 0.69 0.2041
F—i—=REED 201751 B26H 20185 | B26HE
202351 B325H

Tranche | — Employee 26012017 10,700,000 26.01.2018 —25.01.2023 0.69 0.2041
F—i—1EE 2017818268 20185 1 B26HE
20231 B525H

Tranche 2 — Directors 26012017 3,750,000 26.01.2019 —25.01.2024 0.69 0.2002
BFWM-FF 201751 B26H 20191 B26HE
20244 1 H25H

Tranche 2 — Senior management 26012017 950,000 26012019 — 25012024 0.69 02027
FIH-EREERE 201751 B26H 20191 B26HE
2024 1 H25H

Tranche 2 — Employee 26012017 10,700,000 26.01.2019 — 25.01.2024 0.69 02027
EH—EE 201781 8268 20191 B26HE

202451 B25H

For share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, the weighted

average remaining contractual lives is 1.07 years (2019:2.07 years).

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, calculated using the
Binomial Model was approximately HK$6,249,000. The Group did not recognise
any expense (2019: HK$84,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020 in
relation to the share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme granted

by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

@)

31

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to net cash generated from

REEERSE

@ FRREET (BR) BEEE

operations: TR FENHER
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH7T
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRPTSIRATER], (B518) 69,002 (146,002)
Adjustments for: BTHEIERE
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 641 6,772
Depreciation of investment properties LEMERE 1,964 5031
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥)Z BB KR BITE 67,936 71,848
Depreciation of right-of-use assets THREEENE 75,168 73934
Finance costs B Al A 39,050 48,522
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LE—BRBABZ @ - (44,058)
Gain from sale and leaseback transaction ERHELRZERE = (49,698)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ TRHRE BEBIEINIE T 2R ERE
model, net of reversal on trade receivables Mk & 7 EWEIE [ 1,932 6,107
Impairment losses on property, M BB ERERE
plant and equipment - 17274
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FREEENERE - 10,481
Impairment loss on goodwill e ERE = 36,463
Impairment losses on intangible assets B EERERE - 100,253
Interest income FEWA (4,482) (3,158)
Loss on initial recognition of MEEDBNAKE 2 I8
investment in sublease 154 -
(Gain)/loss on change in fair value of trade BEEMEERERATENEZ
receivables at FVOC| B R RWEIE 2 A T EEEH)
(W) /#518 (128) 149
Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets ~ HEFRAEEEZ W m (668) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property plant and HENE -BERREZ
equipment Ww) /#18 (830) 1,759
Provision for inventories GE&EE 10,634 10,327

Share based payment expense

DURG R ERARE X

BEEBEERAA
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31  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 3 KEEYRE @
(a)  Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to net cash generated from @ PB& ManEH, (B BREE
operations: (continued) TIREFENHK . (B
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH7 FBR
Operating profit before working capital changes ‘& E & G EB)F] 2 K& HH) 260,373 146,115
Changes in working capital: EEESEE .
Changes in inventories FEEE) (95,246) (1,320)
Changes in trade and other receivables B S R EMEWRIEES) (207,563) 254412
Changes in trade receivables at FVOCI FEEMEEBGERATENEZE
7 W IR E B 20,752 42815
Changes in bill receivables FE U 4 S B (19,733) 74,754
Changes in trade and other payables B REMENTIEES) 168,036 (77,263)
Changes in contract liabilities BHNEEEEH 12,093 (427)
Changes in bill payables PN RiREH (2,747) (36,964)
Changes in net investment in sublease DHEBEFEEH 4,284 -
Changes in deferred government grant BT RBN & E 618 -
Net cash generated from operations REELREFE 140.867 402,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

31  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 3 REEERE @

(b)  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment b HEYE BERREZFSHIE
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal of property, REERERERT HEY
plant and equipment comprise: X BERRBEZMERELS

&
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Net book amount: BREFE -
Property, plant and equipment (note |5) W BB Rkl (MEEE15) 15,944 166,348
Gain transfer to leaseback transaction WRBEEENRS - 94,435
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME -BRERSREZ
plant and equipment (note 7) Wi, (8518) (MisE7) 830 (1,759)
Proceeds from disposal of property; HEYZE BB Kk 2 PRigRIE
plant and equipment 16,774 259,024

() Net debt reconciliation © FERHE
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for AEHI 2N EFENF
each of the year presented. BENRFEBREH DM

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TAT

Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 136,915 240,320
Pledged bank deposits BHERRTER 10,260 1,791

Dividend payable FERTIRR - (26,849)

Interest payable FEIH] 2 - (124)

Lease liabilities HE&R (238,224) (285,583)

Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRIRITIERR (547,224) (622,863)

Net debts FEE (638,273) (693,308)
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 31 KEERLRE @
() Net debt reconciliation (continued) © FEEHRG
Cash and Fixed Pledged  Unsecured
cash bank bank bank Lease Interest Dividend
equivalents deposits deposits  borrowings liabilities payable payable Total
RERAE EHRG [2kisi EiEH
SEm R OBOER B0ER HE8F RGNS EORE st
% HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$'000
%  TER TER TEn THER TEn TARn TEn
Netdebtasat | January 2019 R0I9EIBIBHFEE 234435 32,394 (873757) - (500) - (607428)
Fffect on adoption of HKFRS 16 ¥4 E BN B IR S %8
LA - - - () - - (0)
Net debtasat | January 2019 R0I19EIBIHNFEE 234435 323% (873757) (327,003 (500) — (934451
Financing cash flows MERER 12,151 (3239%4) 247,047 265516 36,440 19,409 549960
Non-cash changes FREEH
Finance costs RIS - - - (12450) (36072 - (48,522)
Dividends declared to BERTIFEREqH
non-controlling interests k8 - - - - - (46258) (46259
Net movement of leases HEZH3E - - (212482) - - (212482
Foreign exchange translation ~ JMNEIRE (6266) - 3847 85 8 - (1,555)
Net debt as at R2019F 128313
31 December 2019 28R 240320 - (622863)  (285,583) (124 (26849  (693308)
Financing cash flows HERER (109,665) - 83,344 85023 24,669 44051 135,891
Non-cash changes FHEEH
Finance costs A - - - (14505)  (24,545) - (39,050)
Net movement of leases HEZHEE - - - (20574) - - (20574)
Dividends declared to BERTIEERER
non-controlling interests ZKE - - - - - (15924) (15924)
Foreign exchange translation ~ JMNEHRE 6,260 - (7,705) (2585) - (1278) (5308)
Net debt as at R2020F 1283188
31 December 2020 =l 136915 - (547224 (238224) - - (638273)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

Group has the following transactions and balances with related parties:

g INE

BRREFEREHMBRRAMBOPIKE

Sy REBBRREBEL 2R 5 KA

e
Relationship Nature of transactions/balances 2020 2019
[FRER X5/ EHRNE 20204F 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH7T FHT
Fellow subsidiary Interest expenses on lease liabilities
incurred during the year 921 1,466
RRMEAR FRMELHEEEEZFRRAX
Fellow subsidiary Lease liabilities as at year end 8,701 15,725
EEGIEAG FRZHEEER

In addition, certain trademarks owned by fellow subsidiaries of the Company were

used by the Group free of charge during both years.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other member of key management during the

i *EERMEEERARE R
AETARBRENBLARHEENE

R

TEERASHMHE

EERHMTEEREREREREH

reporting period was as follows: BFRENGD T
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Salaries and allowances i KR Rh 13,752 11618
Performance related incentive payments RIGIERAREIT TR 1,684 618
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RREFFT AR 99 108
Share based payment expenses MEMmAERMMBES - 34
15,535 12,378

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= =
in e SRR MEE
33 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 33 KEHERT AR
The Group as lessor FEBBHBEA
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$11,669,000 (2019: RERBRZWERSTKRAS
HK$14,145,000) and all of the properties held for rental purpose have committed 11,669,000 7T (20194F © 14,145,000
lessees for the next few months to twenty years (2019: few months to eleven years). 7T R EENMFEEZMEME
RARTRBBEZ+F (20195 : KK
BAE+—F) HREAGEABEA
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HEERKNREEERENT
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Within one year —FR 16,387 9,373
In the second year < 8,840 11,287
In the third year B 2,463 4635
In the fourth year Euifes 203 149
In the fifth year ERF 203 286
After five years HEMNE 1,520 910
29,616 26,640
34  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS ¥ BFEE

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not

REEHRBITNELRERSER

recognised as liabilities is as follows: NWEAERFEZNT :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of UM E BERREBITLN
property, plant and equipment contracted BRRGEMBERRERE
for but not provided in the consolidated FEENGRT
financial statements 8,878 6,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

e RRMEE

3B FARTEMBA
AR ETEMBABFENT
Proportion of share capital/

registered capital/

charter capital/quota capital

charter capital/ and voting power held

operations/ quota capital by the Company
establishment BEOIRMERE TRATFEREFMES
Name of subsidiary ML HMER[HEEXS RFEL BEEZL  Principal activities
B AR AE BE /Rt REES RiR R LAY TEEH
At 3| December
i12A318
2020 2019
2020 2019
Directly owned
EEAER
Treasure Range Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$27 100% 100% Investment holding
&E BERTET REER
Indirectly owned
EEER
Ascension International The BVI Ordinary shares US$ | 100% 100% Investment holding
Development Limited RBREUHEE BERET KREER
BERERERERAT
Fullelite Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
HEERAT KERZEHE EBRIOET REER
Year Prosper Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
BERRAH EERYES EBERIET REER
Wonderful Health Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
EBRAES EBERIET REER
Trade Sincere Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$100 85% 85% Investment holding
BHARAT BERYES BHERI0ET REER

BEEBEERAA
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35  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 3B FAATTEMBAR &
(continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of share capital/
paid share capital/ registered capital/
Place of registered capital/ charter capital/quota capital
incorporation/ charter capital/ and voting power held
operations/ quota capital by the Company
establishment BETRMERE FRATAFERE FMES
Name of subsidiary S HMEL BHEES /S ER /FEER Principal activities
YNGR g/t REER RFREN LA TEEH
At 31 December
RI12A318
2020 2019
20206 20194
Sinomax International Investment The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding and
Limited HERYEE  BBERIOET provision of treasury
EREBRRERRAR management services
REERREHIE
E18
Sinomax Health & Household Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of
Products Limited s HK$ 1,000,000 health and household
REREREARERAR E4E % 1,000,000 7T products
TERMERERE
Em
Sinomax International Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of health and
PRERRERERAR A HK$10,000 household products
E3B%1000077T BErXEEREE
Dongguan Sinohome Limited* (note |) The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
RRBHZEARERAF () HK$32,000,000 health and household
HMER products
32,000,000/ 75 NERBERERRE
Edm
Shandong Sinomax Household Products ~ The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Processing, manufacturing
and Technology Limited* (note I) # RMB30,000,000 and sales of
WEERRBERREARAR (HH) AMERARE polyurethane foam
30,000,0007T NI RERHERR
AR RA

288 Sinomax Group Limited 2020 Annual Report



35

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 35

(continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

charter capital/

Proportion of share capital/
registered capital/
charter capital/quota capital

and voting power held

FABTERBAR (@)

operations/ quota capital by the Company
establishment BETRMERE FRATAFERE FMES
Name of subsidiary S HMEL BHEES /S ER /FEER Principal activities
YNGR g/t REER RFREN LA TEEH
At 31 December
RI12A318
2020 2019
2020 20194
Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co, Ltd*  The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of polyurethane foam
(note 1) H RMB35,000,000 HERREEA
LEBMABRERASR (H:E1) ARERARE
35,000,00075
Sinohome Household Products The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of
(Shenzhen) Limited* (note 1) ) HK$ 1,000,000 health and household
ExxERD () BRAR HMER products
(FfzE1) 1,000,000 DERMEREREE
o
Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
Technology Limited * (note 1) FREY US$30,000,000 health and household
B (WD BaERMEERAT HfEX products
GE) 30,000,000 75 RERHERERKE
Em
Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam The PRC Registered capital 51% 51% Manufacture and sale of
Co. Limited* (note 2) (“Sinomax Kuka") F[E] US$2,100,000 polyurethane foam
IR EEKERERAT HMEX RERHERREEA
(Fffz2) (TR 2,100000% 7

BEEBEERAA

2000 F E R &

289



290

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

35

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

charter capital/

3B FAATTEMBAR &

Proportion of share capital/

registered capital/

charter capital/quota capital

and voting power held

operations/ quota capital by the Company
establishment BETRMERE FRATAFERE FMES
Name of subsidiary S HMEL BHEES /S ER /FEER Principal activities
YNGR g/t REER RFREN LA TEEH
At 31 December
RI12A318
2020 2019
20206 201945
Sinomax Macao Commercial Offshore Macau Quota capital 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
Limited B MOP100,000 household products
DB RPIEFEERGERAT FLEREARPIE HERERKEER
100,0007T
Sinomax USA, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 100% [00% Wholesale of health and
EE stock of no par value household products
00 EEEEER HERERKXEER
Sinomax East, Inc. The US | share of common stock 100% [00% Manufacture of health and
EE with no par value household products
IREEELER HERERRXEER
Dormeo North American, LLC The US Issued and fully paid share 51.31% 51.31% Investment holding
(TDormeo ) = capital US$50,481,560 BERR
BETRBERE
50,481,560 7T
Top Shop TV, LLC The US Issued and fully paid share 51.31% 51.31% Investment holding
£H capital US$42,103,890 BERR
BETRBERE
42,103890% 7T
Octaspring Operations US, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 51.31% 51.319% Manufacturing and sales of
= stock of US$0.0001 health and household
par value products
100 B R E(E RERBEREREE
0.0001 =TT & BR i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

charter capital/

e RRMEE

3B FAATTEMBAR &

Proportion of share capital/
registered capital/
charter capital/quota capital

and voting power held

operations/ quota capital by the Company
establishment BETRMERE FRATAFERE FMES
Name of subsidiary S HMEL BHEES /S ER /FEER Principal activities
YNGR g/t REER RFREN LA TEEH
At 31 December
RI12A318
2020 2019
2020 20194
Octaspring US, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 51.31% 51.31% Retail and wholesale of
£MH stock of US$0.0001 health and household
par value products
00 B R EE TERMEREREE
00001 EXTTEBR i
TSTV Canada Limited Canada 1,000 shares of common 51.31% 51.31% Retail and wholesale of
MEKX stock of no par value health and household
|, 000R EE A T B products
TERMEREREE
i
Sinomax (Vietnam) Polyurethane Vietnam Charter capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
Technology Limited (note ) HE US$3,300,000 polyurethane foam
Sinomax (Vietnam) Polyurethane BHEX RERHERRRB DK
Technology Limited (Ff 1) 3,300,000 7T
Sinomax (Vietnam) Household Vietnam Charter capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
Products Limited (note I) g UsD3,000,000 health and household
Sinomax (Vietnam) Household BHER products
Products Limited (FffE1) 3,000,000 7T RERHERBRRE
E

BREEBEBMRAT 200FERS
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35  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 33 AATEEMBAR @

(continued)

Notes: BifsE

(1) The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned enterprise. () ZERFLVIEEECER M
(2)  The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign equity joint venture. Q) ZERADUPISELERAEMo
Al the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their respective places of incorporation/ FETENBARFENES s/
establishment. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of or any RitEEE - BRENBASNREARL
time during the reporting periods. HApE RS TEARESES

* English translated name is for identification purpose only.
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R E MR R MTEE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 36 IR
Place of establishment Proportion of ownership
and principal place interests and voting rights held  Profit/(loss) allocated to ~ Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business by non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests interests
Bl 3L 3t B Re FREERIERFIR R DEREFEREDZ
MEARRE TEEEME e R g RAERILEA i®H, (8518) RetFrmiRigs
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 2019F 20205 2019F 20205 20195

HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET THET

Sinomax Kuka The PRC 49% 49% 12,086 14,999 35,409 35322

REEBRER &

Dormeo Us 48.69% 48.69% (9,538) (11.212) (25,002) (15464)
e

Chengdu Xingang (Note) The PRC - - - 772 - -

RS (5T T

Individually immaterial subsidiary (17) (52) (8,459) 9.812)

with non-controlling interests

FREIFEREDR 85

REAWBAD)
2,531 4,507 1,948 10,046
Note: On 15 November 2019, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase agreement MEEE D BR2019F 11 BI5H AEEHE2IRHA
with Mr. Liu Jiaming, a director and a non-controlling shareholder of Chengdu T MBHAEBRERAD (TR
Xingang Sponge Co. Ltd ("Chengdu Xingang"), to dispose of its 51% equity interest MAE)CEESRFERRR) FTIE
of Chengdu Xingang. On 12 December 2019, the disposal was completed and the EnE WHEERMBHEZSI%
Group lost control of Chengdu Xingang. RRECF2019F 128 128 BARHE
8 REAERRERBHABZEH
fEo
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R G MR R MR

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(@)  Sinomax Kuka

Summarised financial information in respect of each of Group's subsidiaries that

had material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before the elimination of intragroup

transactions.

36

JerEiRtEns ()

@ EEHEER

ERAEEEREANFERE
mMERBARNMBERR
REHIMT o U THHERR
RIEREEERNRZA 2 25

At 31 December

128318
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Current assets REEE 165,177 146,667
Non-current assets FEREEE 33,205 14,124
Current liabilities nREAE (126,118) (88,706)
Net assets BEFE 72,264 72,085

Total equity attributable to MUF AT G iRRE

— owners of the Company S VUNCIE 2= DN 36,855 36,763
— non-controlling interests —JEERER 35,409 35322
72,264 72,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Sinomax Kuka (continued)

36 FEERERD (B

@ EEEERE@

Year ended 31 December

BENAIHLEEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Revenue WA 403,942 361,449
Expenses 53 (379,277) (330,839)
Profit for the year FEAEF] 24,665 30,610
Profit for the year attributable to T AT EMEFEREF
— owners of the Company S VYNCIEZZ =N 12,579 15611
— non-controlling interests —JEER S 12,086 14,999
24,665 30,610
Other comprehensive expense for the year A TEMFEREMEEES
attributable to
— owners of the Company . YNEIEZZ= DN 4,085 1953
— non-controlling interests —JEERR R 3,925 1,876
8,010 3,829
Total comprehensive income for the year — ~FJ A LG FER 2 U IEEE
attributable to
— owners of the Company . VAEIEZ T =N 16,664 17,564
— non-controlling interests —JEEER S 16,011 16,875
32,675 34,439
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests {4 FIFFERER ZRKE 15,924 44,580
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEB BB MATEE 15,424 85913
Net cash outflow from investing activities B 2 ISR EE (3,949) (2.204)
Net cash outflow from financing activites ~ FRE EBIZ IR &M HF 58 (27,827) (105,504)
Net cash outflow IRE M 5 (16,352) (21,795)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R G MR R MR

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 36 FEIERRED (@
(b) Dormeo ()  Dormeo

At 31 December

296

128318
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Current assets MEEE 47,956 42874
Non-current assets FERBEE 119,831 121,209
Current liabilities MENEE (174,702) (151,274)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (44,434) (44.569)
Net assets BEETE (51,349) (31,760)

Total equity attributable to MR A TR RLR

— owners of the Company —RREHEBA (26,347) (16,296)
— non-controlling interests —JEERER (25,002) (15,464)
(51,349) (31,760)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 36 FEIERRED (@
(b)  Dormeo (continued) )  Dormeo (&
Year ended 3| December
BENAJBLFE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHTT
Revenue WA 81,751 84,340
Expenses 53 (101,340) (107,367)
Loss for the year FAEEE (19,589) (23,027)
Loss for the year attributable to THATEEFAER
— owners of the Company ar: /NIE ZE PN (10,051) (11,815)
— non-controlling interests —JEER S (9,538) (11,212)
(19,589) (23,027)
Total comprehensive expense for the year N A LB FERE M 4E%E
attributable to
— owners of the Company . YNEIEZZ= DN (10,051) (11,815)
— non-controlling interests —IEERR RS (9,538) (11,212
(19,589) (23,027)
Net cash outflow from operating activities &= /EE) 2 IRE R HFEE (18,591) (11,488)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEES ZIREMAFRE 17,064 15291
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Re O TRAFEE (1,527) 3,803
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

37

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND RESERVES OF

THE COMPANY

FABMBEN KRR

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET

Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N EPANGIEoL 5 779,389 779,389

Current assets TMEEE
Other receivables HAthREWRIE 344 528
Bank balances and cash RIS 260 1126
604 1,654
Current liabilities mEaE

Other payables HARE T RIE 288 1,555
Amounts due to subsidiaries I B ABIE 63,050 58,633
63,338 60,188
Net current liabilities mERERE (62,734) (58,534)
Total assets less current liabilities MEERRSAE 716,655 720,855

Capital and reserves BARRH#E
Share capital & 175,000 175,000
Reserves HE 541,655 545855
Total equity B 716,655 720,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR R MTEE

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND RESERVES OF 37 FATNMHERREERR @
THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves TATIEEES)
Share
Share Capital options Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
fERR1E
RIDEE RAEHE #fE RBER #ast

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$O000  HK$O000
THET THET THET THET TET

At | January 2019 R2019%1 B 18 404,520 (5) 19,427 130,452 554,394
Loss and total comprehensive ~FENEIENREME

expense for the year P 48%R - - - (8,650) (8,650)
Recognition of share-based AR &

payment expenses ERAMAEEZ - - Y - y
Lapse of share options FER R R - - (14,879) 14,879 -
At 31 December 2019 F2019% 128318 404,520 5) 4,659 136,681 545,855
Loss and total comprehensive ~FRNEIBNEMH

expense for the year S 48%E - - - (4,200) (4,200)
Lapse of share options ERERMN - - (61) 6l -
At 31 December 2020 1220205128318 404,520 (5) 4,598 132,542 541,655

BEHEEEMRAD 200FEHE 299



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBREE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out below:

FEERBELEAMREREZRZEURE
ERGERE BREEEZFEMBER
=) HIWT -

RESULTS E
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20196 20185 20176 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FATT FATT FHATT
Revenue WA 3,231,701 2997321 4263322 4,183,786 3,499,762
(Loss) profit before tax PRIRAT (B518) &F 69,002 (146,002) 27,586 58,242 110978
Income tax expenses FESH R (7,948) (66,000) (22,744) (7,457) (10,526)
(Loss) profit for the year Fr (518 &F) 61,054 (212,002) 4,842 50,785 100,452
Attributable to: T AT
Owners of the Company RREHEB A 58,523 (216,509) (5,801) 39,674 103,525
Non-controlling interest FEER R 2,531 4,507 10,643 (RRN (3,073)
61,054 (212,002) 4842 50,785 100,452
ASSET AND LIABILITIES BERERE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 201845 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TR R R
Total assets BEEE 2,514,210 2,406,763 2903219 2,883,172 2,537,083
Total liabilities BREE (1,557,751) (1,541,755) (1,677,376) (1,573,706) (1,322987)
Total equity T 4A%E 956,459 865,008 1,225,843 1,309,466 1,214,096
Attributable to: TN
Owners of the Company RREHEBA 954,511 854962 1,079,429 1,155,030 1,059,290
Non-controlling interest R R 1,948 10,046 146,414 154,436 154,806
956,459 865,008 1,225,843 1,309,466 1,214,096

Sinomax Group Limited

2020 Annual Report



S E MAXS

Sinomax Group Limited

B EEE AR/ S .




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務概要
	董事長致辭
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理層
	董事報告書
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	封底



